
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, February 07, 2022 - 5:00 PM

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. Call Public Mee2ng to Order

II. Execu2ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu2ve Session to discuss the following ma7er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and commi�ees -
specifically the Rockwall Economic Development Corpora�on (REDC) - pursuant to Sec�on 551.074
(Personnel Matters)

2. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incen�ves pursuant to
Section 551.087 (Economic Development).

3. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property off of John King Blvd pursuant
to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

4. Discussion regarding legal issues pertaining to an exis�ng 212 Development Agreement for
property within the Extraterritorial Jurisdic�on (ETJ) pursuant to Sec�on §551.071 (Consulta�on
with Attorney).

5. Discussion regarding terms of lease with cellular providers in the vicinity of Boydstun Avenue,
pursuant to Sec�ons 551.071 (Consulta�on with A�orney) and 551.072 (Delibera�on regarding
Real Property)

III. Adjourn Execu2ve Session

IV. Reconvene Public Mee2ng (6:00 P.M.)

V. Invoca2on and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Campbell
   

VI. Proclama2ons / Awards / Recogni2ons

1. Black History Month
VII. Open Forum

This is a �me for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda or set for a
public hearing. Per Council policy, public comments should be limited to three minutes out of respect for other ci�zens'
�me. If you have a topic that warrants longer �me, please contact the City Secretary at kcole@rockwall.com to be
placed on the Agenda during the "Appointment Items" por�on of the mee�ng. This will allow your topic to be
provided sufficient �me for discussion and will permit proper no�ce to be given to the public. On topics raised during
Open Forum, please know Council is not permi(ed to respond to your comments during the mee�ng since the topic
has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Mee�ngs Act requires that topics of
discussion/delibera�on be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance of the Council mee�ng). This, in
part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also be involved in the discussion.

VIII. Take any Ac2on as a Result of Execu2ve Session

IX. Consent Agenda

These agenda items are rou�ne/administra�ve in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City Council
mee�ng, and/or they do not warrant Council delibera�on. If you would like to discuss one of these items, please let
the City Secretary know before the meeting starts so that you may speak during "Open Forum."

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the January 18, 2022 regular City Council mee�ng, and take
any action necessary.

1



2. Z2021-050 - Consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to Ar�cle 04, Permissible
Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] for the purpose of amending
the Condi�onal Land Use Standards for the Bed and Breakfast land use, and take any ac�on
necessary (2nd Reading).

3. Z2021-051 - Consider a request by Henok Fekadu for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) for Residen�al Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.189-acre parcel of land
iden�fied as Lot 4, Block B, Chandlers Landing, Phase 19 Addi�on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall
County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses, addressed
as 5108 Yacht Club Drive, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

4. Z2021-053 - Consider a request by Javier Silva of JMS Custom Homes for the approval of an
ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residen�al Infill in an Established Subdivision on a
0.23-acre tract of land iden�fied as a por�on of Block 9 of the F&M Addi�on, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 803 Aus�n Street, and
take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

5. Z2021-055 - Consider a request by Patrick Filson of Kirkman Engineering on behalf of Marlyn
Roberts for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Restaurant with Less
Than 2,000 SF with a Drive-Through or Drive-In for the purpose of construc�ng a restaurant/retail
building on a 0.799-acre por�on of a larger 2.02-acre parcel of land iden�fied as Lot 2, Block 1,
Meadowcreek Business Center, Phase 1 Addi�on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Commercial (C) District, situated within SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, generally located east
of the intersec�on of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and Ralph Hall Parkway, and take any ac�on
necessary (2nd Reading).

6. Z2021-056 - Consider a request by John Delin of Integrity Group, LLC for the approval of an
ordinance for a Zoning Amendment to Planned Development District 85 (PD-85) [Ordinance No.
18-32] for a 47.694-acre tract of land iden�fied as Lot 1, Block A, and Lot 1, Block B, Ladera
Rockwall Addi�on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District
85 (PD-85), situated within the 205 By-Pass Overlay (205 BY-OV) and the East SH-66 Overlay (E SH-
66 OV) District, located at the northeast corner of the intersec�on of SH-66 and John King
Boulevard, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

7. P2022-001 - Consider a request by Nick Hobbs of BGE Engineering on behalf of Randall Schwimmer
of Baker Schwimmer Ventures, LLP and Phase 17 Investments for the approval of a Conveyance
Plat for Lots 1, 2 & 3, Block A, Seefried Addi�on being a 23.489-acre tract of land iden�fied as
Tracts 25 & 25-1, of the R. B. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120 and Tract 1-2 of the J. H. B. Jones
Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI)
District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located on the southside of
the IH-30 Frontage Road east of the intersec�on of Corporate Crossing and IH-30, and take any
action necessary.

8. P2022-002 - Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consul�ng Group, Inc. on behalf of Cathy
Strother for the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, Roadside Addi�on being a 2.7624-acre
tract of land iden�fied as Tract 25-1, of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65 and Tract 17 of the J.
D. McFarland Survey, Abstract No. 145, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Commercial (C) District and Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205
OV) District, addressed as 2410 S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary.

9. P2022-004 - Consider a request by Gerald Monk of Monk Consul�ng Engineers on behalf of 5
Sharp Real Estate for the approval of a Replat for Lot 8, Block A, Sharp Addi�on being a 1.91-acre
parcel of land iden�fied as Lot 5, Block A, Sharp Addi�on, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Planned Development District 46 (PD-46) for Commercial (C) District land uses, addressed as
3301 Springer Road, and take any action necessary.

10. Consider approval of an ordinance amending the FY 2022 Budget to provide funding for
Leadership Rockwall project in Lofland Park, and take any action necessary.

2



11. Consider approval of a resolu�on authorizing the City Manager to apply for and accept grant
funding from the State Homeland Security Grant Program to secure tac�cal communica�on
headsets for the Rockwall Police Department’s SWAT Team, including authorizing the City
Manager to execute all necessary and associated documents, and take any action necessary.

12. Consider awarding a bid to Longhorn Harley-Davidson for a 2022-23 Police Pursuit Motorcycle in
the amount of $42,435.53 to be funded out of the Police Patrol Opera�ng Budget, authorizing the
City Manager to approve the Purchase Order, and take any action necessary.

13. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a proposal from Tubbesing Solu�ons, LLC for
informa�on technology services in the amount of $35,698 to be funded by the IT Department
Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.

14. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a professional engineering services contract
with Birkhoff, Hendricks, and Carter, L.L.P. to perform the engineering design and construc�on
plans for the W. Quail Run Sanitary Sewer Project in an amount not to exceed $57,310.00, and
take any action necessary.

15. Consider approval of a resolu�on calling a General Elec�on to be held on May 7, 2022 for the
purpose of elec�ng the following Rockwall City Council Member posi�ons: Place 2, Place 4, and
Place 6 (each for two-year terms), and take any action necessary

X. Ac2on Items

If your comments are regarding an agenda item below, you are asked to wait un�l that par�cular agenda item is up
for discussion, and the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem will call you forth to the podium to hear your comments (please limit
to 3 minutes or less). This allows for all public comments to be grouped with each specific agenda item for the Council
to consider, and they are then easily referenced in meeting recordings.

1. Z2021-052 - Discuss and consider a request by Mike Peoples for the approval of an ordinance for a
Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow Chickens on a 42.66-acre tract of land iden�fied as Tract 7 of the
D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG)
District, situated within the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, addressed as 1700 E. SH-66, and
take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

2. Discuss and consider a request from the Rockwall Economic Development Corpora�on (REDC)
related to closing Rochell Road and providing an alternate route during upcoming construc�on,
and take any action necessary.

3. Discuss and consider direc�ng the City Manager to enter into a 380 Economic Development
Agreement with Saro Partners, LLC to facilitate the swap of a 4.18-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 9 of
the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122) at the southwest corner of John King Boulevard and FM-
1141 for a 5.07-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102) at the
southeast corner of John King Boulevard and Airport Road, and take any action necessary.

4. Discuss and consider (re)appointments to the city's Main Street Advisory Board, and take any
action necessary.

XI. City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and related discussions pertaining to current city
ac2vi2es, upcoming mee2ngs, future legisla2ve ac2vi2es, and other related ma7ers.

1. Building Inspection Monthly Report - December 2021
2. Fire Department Monthly Report - December 2021
3. Parks & Rec Department Monthly Report - December 2021
4. Police Department Monthly Report - December 2021
5. Sales Tax Historical Comparison
6. Water Consumption Historical Statistics

XII. Execu2ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu2ve Session to discuss the following ma7er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

3



1. Discussion regarding appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and commi�ees -
specifically the Rockwall Economic Development Corpora�on (REDC) - pursuant to Sec�on 551.074
(Personnel Matters)

2. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incen�ves pursuant to
Section 551.087 (Economic Development).

3. Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property off of John King Blvd pursuant
to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).

4. Discussion regarding legal issues pertaining to an exis�ng 212 Development Agreement for
property within the Extraterritorial Jurisdic�on (ETJ) pursuant to Sec�on §551.071 (Consulta�on
with Attorney).

5. Discussion regarding terms of lease with cellular providers in the vicinity of Boydstun Avenue,
pursuant to Sec�ons 551.071 (Consulta�on with A�orney) and 551.072 (Delibera�on regarding
Real Property)

XIII. Reconvene Public Mee2ng & Take Any Ac2on as Result of Execu2ve Session

XIV. Adjournment

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommoda�ons or interpre�ve services
must be made 48 hours prior to this mee�ng. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for
further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into execu�ve session at any �me to discuss any of the ma�ers listed on
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consulta�on with A�orney) ¶ 551.072 (Delibera�ons about
Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic Development)

 I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby cer�fy that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place
readily accessible to the general public at all �mes, on the 4th day of Feb., 2022 at 4:00 PM and remained so posted for at least 72
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

    

 Kristy Teague, City Secretary
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

 Date Removed

4



 
 

 
 
jhereas, Black History Month began in 1926 as part of an initiative by writer and 

educator, Dr. Carter G. Woodson, who launched Negro History Week that year, proclaiming 
that it should always occur the second week of February between the birthdays of Frederick 
Douglass and Abraham Lincoln; and 
 

jhereas, this year’s Black History Month theme – “Black Health and Wellness” – 

acknowledges the legacy of black scholars and medical practitioners while also highlighting 
activities, rituals and initiatives that black communities have done to be well; and 
 

jhereas, the rise of fields such as Public and Community Health and Health 

Informatics have led to a rise in preventative care and a focus on body positivity, physical 
exercise, nutrition, exploring other dietary options such as vegetarianism, and gardening; and  

 

jhereas, black health and wellness not only includes one’s physical body, but also 

emotional and mental health, which are important aspects of wellness that, thankfully over the 
years, have become more normalized in every day discussions; and 
 

aow? gherefore, I, Kevin Fowler, Mayor of the City of Rockwall, do hereby 

proclaim February 2022, as: 
 

“BLACK HISTORY MONTH”  
 

in the City of Rockwall, and call upon all citizens to join me in acknowledging and celebrating this 
important month, including all of the individuals throughout history who have advocated for 
positive change, health and wellness on behalf of the black community. 
       

\n jitness jhereof, I hereunto set my hand and official seal on this 7th day of February, 2022. 

 
    

   
 

           Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

eÉv~ãtÄÄ? gxåtá 
Proclamation 

5



Page 1 of 18 
 

ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  
Tuesday, January 18, 2022 - 5:00 PM  

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087  
      
I.  

 
CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER    
 
Mayor Fowler called the meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
Pro Tem John Hohenshelt and Councilmembers Clarence Jorif, Dana Macalik, Trace Johannesen, 
Bennie Daniels and Anna Campbell. Also present were City Manager, Mary Smith; Assistant City 
Manager, Joey Boyd; and City Attorney, Frank Garza.  Mayor Fowler read the below listed 
discussion items into the record before recessing the public meeting to go into Executive Session 
at 5:01 p.m. 
 

II.  
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1.  Discussion regarding appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and committees - specifically 

the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) - pursuant to Section 551.074 (Personnel 
Matters)   

2.  Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property in the Harbor District pursuant to 
Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).   

3.  Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property off of John King Blvd pursuant to 
Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).   

4.  Discussion regarding legal terms and conditions for application to SAFER grant program, pursuant to 
Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 

III.  
 
ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Council adjourned from Ex. Session at 6:00 p.m. 

IV.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)  
 
Mayor Fowler reconvened the public meeting at 6:02 p.m. with all councilmembers being present.    

V.   INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE - COUNCILMEMBER DANIELS 
      

Councilmember Bennie Daniels delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

VI.  
 
PROCLAMATIONS / AWARDS / RECOGNITIONS  

 
1.  Rockwall Police Citizens on Patrol Appreciation Day 

 
Mayor Fowler called forth Police Chief, Max Geron, and read and presented the 
proclamation, recognizing the members and contributions of the Rockwall Police 
Department’s Citizens on Patrol organization. 

6



Page 2 of 18 
 

VII.  
 
OPEN FORUM    
 
Mayor Fowler explained how Open Forum is conducted, asking if anyone would like to come forth 
and speak at this time. 
 
Jim Turner 
1691 Old East Quail Run 
Rockwall, TX 75087 
 
Mr. Turner came forth to discuss construction-related trash and debris. He specifically shared 
photographs to display trash that he and a friend spent a lot of time picking up along the area in 
and around where they live. He believes the debris and trash is being generated from adjacent 
construction sites. He pointed out the city’s existing Code of Ordinances, which prohibits litter from 
being deposited on any construction site. He went on to share brief information on what other 
cities (i.e. Corpus Christi) do in order to help eliminate construction site debris and in fact fine 
contractors for non-compliance. He generally encouraged the City of Rockwall to essentially 
‘toughen up’ on enforcing the elimination of construction site-related debris. He suggested the 
debris be kept in containers on site that have lids and can therefore not blow away in heavy winds.  
 
Bob Wacker 
309 Featherstone 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Wacker encouraged the City to outlaw the ‘dumping of concrete,’ especially related to 
dumping it on residential home sites that are under construction. 
 
Ben Weible 
215 Trout Street 
Rockwall, TX 75032 
 
Mr. Weible came forth and initially indicated that he is generally not in favor of a city imposing 
additional regulations / restrictions.  He also pointed out that there needs to be a consideration 
for distinguishing between construction sites and “private residents” who may be in need of a ‘roll 
off dumpster’ at their home (i.e. perhaps they are renovating an existing home and have a need). 
He also pointed out that his ‘bulk trash’ has still not yet been picked up. 
 
There being no one else coming forth to speak, Mayor Fowler then closed Open Forum. 
 

VIII.  
 
TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
No action was taken as a result of Executive Session.    

IX.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA  

 
1.  Consider approval of the minutes from the January 3, 2022 regular City Council meeting, and take any 

action necessary.  
2.  P2021-063 - Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. on behalf of Robert John 

Crowell for the approval of a Final Plat for the Landon Subdivision being a 126.903-acre tract of land 
identified as Tract 13 of the S. McFadgin Survey, Abstract No. 142, Rockwall County, Texas, situated 

7



Page 3 of 18 
 

within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), generally located at the southwest corner 
of the intersection of S. Munson Street and Streetman Road, and take any action necessary.  

3.  P2021-064 - Consider a request by Trey Braswell of Kimley-Horn on behalf of Jarrod Yates PS LPT 
Properties Investors for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Lot 1, Block A, PS Rockwall County Addition 
being a 2.082-acre tract of land identified as Tract 25-03 of the J. Strickland Survey, Abstract No. 187, 
Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), 
addressed as 4000 N. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary.  

4.  P2021-067 - Consider a request by Ryan King, PE of Engineering Concepts and Design on behalf of Jose 
Campos of Saddle Star South Holdings, LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Saddle Star 
Estates North Subdivision consisting of 92 single-family residential lots on a 42.667-acre tract of land 
identified as Tract 3 of the T. R. Bailey Survey, Abstract No. 30, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 80 (PD-80) for Single-Family 8.4 (SF-8.4) District land uses, situated 
within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY-OV) District, generally located at the northwest corner of 
the intersection of FM-552 and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary.  

5.  Consider awarding a bid to Siddons-Martin/Pierce and authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
Purchase Order for a new Fire Apparatus Pumper and Equipment in the amount of $820,000, as 
approved in the FY2022 Budget, and take any action necessary.  

6.  Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a Standard Utility Agreement with the Texas 
Department of Transportation for the IH-30 utility relocates from State Highway 205 to the city limits, 
and take any action necessary. 

Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt moved to approve the entire Consent Agenda, as presented (#s 
1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6). Councilmember Jorif seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 
ayes to 0 nays. 

X.  
 
APPOINTMENT ITEMS  

 
1.  Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representative to discuss and answer any questions 

regarding planning-related cases on the agenda.  
 
Chairman of the P&Z Commission, Eric Chodun, came forth and briefed Council on 
recommendations of the Commission relative to cases on tonight’s meeting agenda. 
  

2.  Appointment with Leadership Rockwall Class of 2022 to discuss the proposed improvements to Lofland 
Park, and take any action necessary. 
 
Two representatives from Leadership Rockwall – Rob McAngus and Trevor Reed - came forth 
and presented their proposal for a ‘community service’ project that will aim to make 
improvements at Lofland Park, which is city-owned. One of the things they are proposing is 
to create “The Grove @ Lofland Park,” which will help more readily identify the existing park 
and be part of the improvements that are proposed to be made (i.e. twelve Little Gem 
magnolia trees (“The Grove”); sidewalks; lighted paths, some solar illumination within the 
park, a memorial brick area (which is the fundraising mechanism for this proposed, 
improvement project). The pointed out that the new park benches and some of the new 
additions will visually ‘match’ other benches and fixtures that exist elsewhere in the 
downtown area (which is right nearby).  Ongoing costs for the city will include things like 
watering, solar illumination, and the maintenance of the pavilions; however, rental of the 
pavilions could generate some money for the city and somewhat offset some of the ongoing 
costs. They would like to have this done by Arbor Day of 2022 (which falls on Friday, April 29) 
and have an “Arbor Day Reveal / Unveiling Event” to raise awareness of the park, promote it 

8



Page 4 of 18 
 

to the public, etc. They spoke about the proposed budget, which is about $73k, and they 
pointed out that they’ve already secured / raised about $48k of the overall, estimated 
expense.  The gentlemen formally requested the City’s approval of their project proposal and 
support for the associated efforts. 
Mayor Fowler asked some residents in the audience whose homes back up to this park if they 
are ‘in favor’ of what is being proposed related to these park improvements. Said residents 
generally indicated that they are in agreement with what’s being proposed. 
 
City Manager, Mary Smith asked Council to consider (informally) directing staff to bring back 
a budget-related amendment to fund some of what’s being proposed, if Council is generally 
in agreement with and in support of this proposed Leadership Rockwall project to improve 
Lofland Park.  Mayor Fowler asked Mrs. Smith to do so, and a future agenda item will be 
placed on a subsequent city council meeting for consideration. 
  

3.  Appointment with Chris Kosterman of the city's ART Commission to present the 'art in public places' 
butterfly designs, and take any action necessary. 
 
Mr. Kosterman came forth, indicating that he is the current Chairman of the city’s ART 
Commission. He very briefly indicated that the Council has been provided with proposed 
concepts and associated designs for the ‘already approved’ butterfly sculpture project, which 
is an “art in public places” effort. 
 
Following brief, clarifying comments, Councilmember Macalik moved to approve the 
proposed concepts and designs for the butterfly sculptures. Councilmember Johannesen 
seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

4.  Appointment with Parks Director, Travis Sales, to discuss and consider a Kidzone Celebration Day event 
on Feb. 5, 2022, and take any action necessary. 
 
Parks Director, Travis Sales, came forth and briefed the Council on this proposed “Kidzone 
Celebration Day,” to be held Feb. 5, 2022. Indication was given that the city will partner with 
Ebby Halliday and with the local “Breakfast Rotary Group” on this event (i.e. to serve hotdogs 
and beverages).  Council gave general indication that they are ‘ok’ with the event, and Mr. 
Sales shared that staff will move forward with the event and begin promoting it tomorrow. 
 
No formal action was taken by Council regarding this item. 
 

XI.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
1.  Z2021-050 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of an ordinance for a Text 

Amendment to Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-
02] for the purpose of amending the Conditional Land Use Standards for the Bed and Breakfast land use, 
and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided brief background information pertaining to this 
agenda item. The Planning & Zoning Commission did fail to approve a motion (it was a ‘tie 
vote’ on a motion to deny this request). As a result, by default the item is now coming before 
Council with a recommended “denial” from the Planning & Zoning Commission 

9



Page 5 of 18 
 

 
Hayden Frasier 
510 Williams St. 
Rockwall, TX 
 
He shared that he bought his house in “Old Town” in the year 2014, but he grew up in the 
neighborhood.  He would like Council to remove the “by right” verbiage and instead make 
“Bed and Breakfast” use only allowable via a Special Use Permit (SUP). 
 
Carol Crow 
504 Williams St. 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mrs. Crow shared that she has lived at this address since Sept. of 1995. She pointed out that 
“Old Town” is the oldest neighborhood in Rockwall, and Lofland Park is the oldest city park 
too. She is glad they are going to improve the park soon. Mrs. Crow went on to share some 
background about some guidelines that were previously put in place to help preserve “Old 
Town” and “historical structures” therein. She shared that “bed & breakfasts” were never 
included in previous discussions pertaining to the desire to preserve Old Town. She pointed 
out that Old Town is the only neighborhood where a ‘by right use’ for “bed & breakfasts” is 
allowed.  Everywhere else in the city, an SUP to do so is required. She believes the “by right 
use” was added to the city’s provisions pertaining to Old Town sometime around the year 
2004. She was unaware that this had occurred, and she feels as though many who live in the 
Old Town neighborhood have been unaware of this ‘by right’ use too. She went on to brief 
Council on the nature of some of the discussions that recently occurred at the city’s Planning 
& Zoning Commission meeting (she indicated she watched the P&Z meeting online but did 
not attend in person or speak at said meeting). She would like the City and its Historic 
Preservation Advisory Board to review all of the city’s current regulations pertaining to “Old 
Town” and more formally see – overall – if any said regulations are in need of reconsideration 
in any way. She respectfully asked the City to remove the ‘by right use’ language within the 
proposed regulation change and instead allow this use only via an approved “SUP” by City 
Council. She thanked Council for their time and service. 
 
Patricia May 
308 Williams Street 
Rockwall, TX  
 
Mrs. May shared that she moved to this address in the year 1995, and her home backs up to 
Lofland Park. Prior to purchasing her home, she visited with the Rockwall City Manager who 
was employed at that time (Julie Couch) to get information on this area, including future 
plans.  She moved here purposefully based on those discussions and her research at the time, 
and she has since spent about $50,000 renovating her house to accommodate her health-
related condition. She pointed out that her father and uncle lived in Rockwall, and her great 
uncle was a former County Judge. She purposefully chose “Old Town,” and thereafter the city 
instituted additional rules by forming and establishing the ‘historic district.’  She generally 
expressed that the rules and regulations associated with the “historic district” are pretty 
strict; however, everyone abides by them because they generally know the rules are in the 

10



Page 6 of 18 
 

best interest of “Old Town.” She went on to urge the City and the Council to take steps in 
order to preserve Old Town, including not letting property usages go into her neighborhood 
that Councilmembers would not want next door to them in their own neighborhoods.  
 
Debbie Wines 
Lives at the corner of Williams and Kernoodle 
(310 Williams St., per the Rockwall CAD) 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mrs. Wines shared that she owns a house that was built in the year 1934, and she deliberately 
bought it to live in “Old Town.” She likes the neighborhood and does not want any businesses 
next door.  She wants it to remain a ‘neighborhood.’ 
 
There being no one else wishing to come forth and speak, Mayor Fowler then closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Johannesen asked the Planning Director a series of questions pertaining to 
“bed and breakfasts” regulations and those that specifically pertain to the city’s Historic 
District.  Mr. Miller shared that “bed and breakfasts” are permitted elsewhere in the city in 
other districts, but only by Specific Use Permit (SUP). Currently, B&Bs are “allowed by right”   
in the downtown historic district. Mr. Miller indicated that – to the city’s knowledge – no 
B&Bs currently exist in Rockwall. Additional regulations, specific to this downtown historic 
district are in place (that don’t necessarily apply elsewhere in the city), but they mainly relate 
to design guidelines that were put in place at the recommendation of the city’s Historic 
Preservation Advisory Committee. They mainly pertain to the exterior (visual look) of the 
structures. 
 
Following the exchange between Mr. Miller and Councilmember Johannesen, Mayor Pro Tem 
Hohenshelt asked for clarification on (in general) where the city’s “Historic District” lies, 
geographically. Mr. Miller, Planning Director, briefly explained where its boundaries lie.  Mr. 
Miller shared that about 3-4 commercial properties are located within the city’s “Historic 
District”; however, most of the ‘downtown businesses’ are actually NOT located within the 
city’s “Historic District.” This will mainly apply to residential properties located east of the 
downtown (business) area. 
 
Councilmember Jorif provided brief comments, sharing that making this use only allowable 
via an approved SUP will allow Council more control over what goes in (“bed and breakfast” 
wise).  City Attorney Frank Garza shared that “if” there is a current, operating ‘bed and 
breakfast’ operating in the city already (that the city is not aware of), that business would 
continue to be allowed to operate. However, after the ordinance is finally adopted (if it is), 
then any new applications for B&Bs would have to go thru the SUP process before they could 
be approved. 
 
Councilmember Daniels moved to approve but strike from the ordinance the “by right” 
language. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read 
as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 

11



Page 7 of 18 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS 
HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY AMENDING SUBSECTION 02.03, 
CONDITIONAL LAND USE STANDARDS, OF ARTICLE 04, 
PERMISSIBLE USES, AS DEPCITED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

2.  Z2021-051 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Henok Fekadu for the approval 
of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 
0.189-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block B, Chandlers Landing, Phase 19 Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land 
uses, addressed as 5108 Yacht Club Drive, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information pertaining to this agenda 
item. The applicant is requesting the approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for the purpose 
of constructing a single-family home on the subject property (within the Chandler’s Landing 
subdivision). The city council is being asked to consider the size, location and architecture of 
the home that is currently being proposed at this location. Staff has provided to Council a 
housing analysis of existing homes in the area so that Council may compare those to that 
which is being proposed by this applicant. Staff meets all of the requirements of PD-8 with 
the exception of the garage orientation that’s being proposed. However, that which is being 
proposed relative to the garage orientation is not atypical within the Chandler’s Landing 
subdivision. Notices were sent out to adjacent residents and property owners located within 
500’ of the subject property. In addition, several HOAs were also notified, but no notices 
were received back by city staff, neither in favor nor in opposition. The city’s Planning & 
Zoning Commission did unanimously vote to recommend approval of this request. 
 
Fowler opened the public hearing; however, no one came forth to speak, so he closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt moved to approve Z2021-051. Councilmember Macalik seconded 
the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 8 (PD-8) AND 
THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS 
PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT 

12



Page 8 of 18 
 

(SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO 
ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 
0.189-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 4, BLOCK B, 
CHANDLER’S LANDING, PHASE 19, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND 
DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

3.  Z2021-052 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Mike Peoples for the approval of 
an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow Chickens on a 42.66-acre tract of land identified as 
Tract 7 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 
Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, addressed as 1700 E. SH-
66, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information pertaining to this agenda 
item. He generally described that this applicant had previously worked with the city to gain 
approval of some certain ‘uses’ and ‘structures’ that the applicant had already been built on 
his property. During that process, it was discovered that the applicant had also built a small 
structure to house chickens (which are not currently allowed within the city limits). The 
applicant is now seeking approval of the structure that houses the chickens and is also 
seeking approval to keep 10 chickens on his property. Neighboring property owners and 
residents were notified of this request, but no notices were received back, neither ‘for’ nor 
‘against.’  Also, the P&Z Commission did hear this case, and they have recommended 
approval of this item by a vote of 6-0 with one commissioner being absent. Indication was 
given that the applicant is not present in the audience this evening. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak 
at this time. 
 
Ben Weible 
215 Trout Street 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Weible came forth and shared that he personally had his property annexed into the city 
‘against his will’ several years ago, so he sympathizes with someone telling a person what he 
can and cannot do with his own property. He went on to share that many, surrounding cities, 
including the City of Dallas, have changed their regulations and are actually allowing people 
to keep chickens within the city limits. He pointed out that, especially, considering COVID 
and associated food shortages, he wonders why the City of Rockwall does not allow people 
to keep chickens within the city limits. He generally spoke in favor of Council approving this 
request. He believes that approval of this request will be heading in the right direction, as he 
believes the City should allow chickens throughout the City of Rockwall. 
 

13



Page 9 of 18 
 

There being no one else wishing to speak, Fowler then closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt moved to approve Z2021-052. Councilmember Campbell 
seconded the motion. 
 
Councilmember Daniels then sought clarification on some things from Mr. Miller (Planning 
Director). He went on to share that somehow property rights have to ‘balance’ with 
individual rights. He generally expressed that this property is zoned “Agricultural,” so 
perhaps in this particular instance, allowing chickens may make sense. However, he pointed 
out that this structure was built without the applicant obtaining an approved SUP, in 
advance. This is an instance of the applicant building something (while likely ‘knowing 
better’) without pre-approval (an SUP) and then asking for forgiveness afterwards. 
Councilman Daniels shared this is a personal issue and problem he has related to this 
particular case (doing something while ‘knowing better’ – then asking for approval / 
forgiveness thereafter). Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt pointed out that this particular case is 
actually the third time this particular applicant has built something first and then sought 
approval afterwards. 
 
The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-XXX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS 
TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW CHICKENS 
ON A 42.66-ACRE TRACT OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 7 OF 
THE D. HARR SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 102, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DEPICTED AND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion then passed by a vote of 5 ayes with 2 against (Johannesen and Daniels). 
  

4.  Z2021-053 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Javier Silva of JMS Custom Homes 
for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established 
Subdivision on a 0.23-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Block 9 of the F&M Addition, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 803 Austin Street, 
and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information pertaining to this agenda 
item.  This is located outside of the Old Town Historic District. The property is zoned “Single-
Family 7,” and the applicant is requesting to build a single-family, residential home in this 

14



Page 10 of 18 
 

subdivision, which has been in place since the year 1896. The Council is being asked to review 
this case based on the size, location and architecture of the home that is being proposed. A 
housing analysis that describes other, existing, nearby homes has been provided to Council 
for review. This request does meet all of the zoning and all other requirements for the City 
of Rockwall. Notices were sent out to adjacent property owners and residents as well as 
applicable homeowners association(s). However, no notices have been received back by 
staff, neither ‘for’ or ‘against.’ The P&Z Commission did unanimously vote to recommend 
approval of this case to City Council. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, but no one indicated a desire to speak. So, he 
closed the public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt moved to approve Z2021-054. Councilmember Jorif seconded the 
motion.  The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO 
ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 
0.23-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS PORTION OF 
BLOCK 9 OF THE F&M ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

5.  Z2021-054 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Robert Weinstein of WB 
Companies on behalf of Richard Chandler of HFS Management, Inc. for the approval of an ordinance for 
a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Congregate Care Facility that Exceeds 36-Feet in Height the Scenic 
Overlay (SOV) District on a 12.1148-acre tract of land identified as Tract 2 of the D. Atkins Survey, 
Abstract No. 1, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 4 (PD-4) 
for General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the Scenic Overlay (SOV) District, generally 
located in between Lakedale Drive and Becky Lane on the eastside of Ridge Road [FM-740], and take any 
action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
 
Mayor Fowler pointed out that this applicant has requested to withdraw this case. Mr. Miller 
went on to explain that the City Council will need to take action to either accept or deny the 
applicant’s request to withdraw. If the Council accepts the request to withdraw, the applicant 

15



Page 11 of 18 
 

could submit again (even the exact same application), with no timeframe stipulation (he 
could do so right away). If Council hears the request (holds the public hearing) and approves 
the request, obviously it will be approved.  If the Council hears the case and then “denies 
without prejudice,” the application could immediately resubmit an application. If Council 
“denies with prejudice” (or makes no indication of ‘prejudice,’ one way or the other), a 
subsequent request for the same application could not be resubmitted for a year.   
 
                                                    Additional discussion took place, with Mayor Fowler expressing 
that City Council can either accept the withdraw request or deny the withdraw request and 
then decide whether or not to hear the public hearing. 
 
Councilmember Jorif moved to deny the applicant’s request to withdraw and move forward 
with holding the public hearing. Councilmember Johannesen seconded the motion. 
 
Councilmember Daniels shared that, traditionally, in the past Council has granted an 
applicant’s request to withdraw a case. He did acknowledge that he knows that past actions 
taken by Council(s) do not necessarily stipulate actions Council should or should not take this 
evening; however, he did want to point this out. 
 
The vote to deny the applicant’s request to withdraw the case passed by a vote of 4 in favor 
with 3 against (Hohenshelt, Fowler and Daniels).  Therefore, based on the motion and vote, 
Mayor Fowler indicated that the Council will move forward this evening with hearing the 
case and holding the public hearing. 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller, then provided background information concerning the PD and 
this property, including describing previous proposals that were made and subsequently 
denied for this property. He went on to explain that the applicant, in this particular case 
(Z2021-054), is proposing to build a “congregate care facility,” which is allowed in this district 
thru approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP). The applicant has submitted a concept plan and 
conceptual building elevations for the proposed congregate care facility. The concept plan 
shows that the 12.1148-acre tract of land would be developed in a single phase consisting of 
300 dwelling units, a four (4) story parking garage, a rooftop restaurant, and various 
amenities.  An estimated 3.82-acres of the subject property will be reserved for future 
General Retail (GR) District land uses. This means that the proposed congregate care facility 
will have an estimated residential density of 36.17 dwelling units per acre (i.e. 300-
units/[12.1148-acres – 3.82-acres]). The proposed 300 dwelling units will be broken down 
into 180 Type ‘A’ or one (1) bedroom units and 120 Type ‘B’ or two (2) bedroom units. This 
equates to a 60%/40% one (1) bedroom to two (2) bedroom unit mix. In addition, the 
proposed development would incorporate 205 garage parking spaces and 116 surface 
parking spaces for a total of 321 parking spaces. The concept plan indicates that the proposed 
development would incorporate 20% open space and amenities that include a dog park, pool, 
and two (2) pickle ball courts. The applicant has indicated that the proposed rooftop 
restaurant -- which will serve all of the residents’ meals since the proposed dwelling units 
will not incorporate kitchen facilities -- will be closed to the general public. The conceptual 
building elevations show that the building will be four (4) stories adjacent to Ridge Road and 
extend back to five (5) stories at the rear of the subject property. This is to accommodate the 
slope of the property, which has a significant grade change from the western property line 

16



Page 12 of 18 
 

(adjacent to Ridge Road) to the eastern property line (adjacent to the railroad). The overall 
height of the building will be 60-feet along Ridge Road. Staff should note that while the 
conceptual building elevations are being incorporated into the Specific Use Permit (SUP) 
ordinance, they do not appear to meet the minimum standards of the city’s Unified 
Development Code (UDC). This incorporation does not grant any variances to the 
requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC), and the applicant will be required to 
amend the elevations to bring them into conformance with the code prior to any potential 
site plan approval. 
 
Mr. Miller pointed out that the following aspects of the applicant’s request deviate from the 
requirements of the Unified Development Code (UDC): density, parking and maximum 
building height. Based on the proposed density of 36.17 residential dwelling units per acre -- 
is more characteristic of the “High Density” Residential land use designation. He pointed out 
that the city’s only, other (existing) congregate care facility is designated as ‘high density.’  
Mr. Miller went on to speak regarding mailed notices – notices were mailed out to adjacent 
property owners and residents located within 500’ of the subject property.  Nine notices were 
received back by staff in opposition of this proposal.  In addition, two nearby Homeowners 
Associations were notified. Also, the city’s P&Z Commission has recommended denial of this 
request by a vote of 4 to 2. 
 
A representative of the applicant – Robert LaCroix – then came forth to address the council 
on Mr. Weinstein’s behalf. 
 
Robert LaCroix 
4517 Scenic Drive 
Rowlett, TX 
 
Mr. LaCroix came forth and addressed the Council, generally comparing the city’s only other 
“congregate care” facility – “Liberty Heights” – to that which is being proposed with this 
particular request.  He also compared that which the applicant had previously proposed 
(apartments with a public, rooftop restaurant) to that which the applicant is currently 
proposing (a congregate care facility). He went on to speak about the proposed building 
height and the city’s parking-related requirements. The applicant did ask to withdraw to have 
an opportunity to reduce the density that’s being requested in order to conform to the city’s 
parking requirements. He went on to share additional details related to this proposed, age-
restricted congregate care facility. He also touched on a ‘traffic impact analysis’ that was 
previously submitted to the City pertaining to the applicant’s (higher density) previous 
proposal, which was previously denied by Council. He shared a proposed site plan as well as 
building elevations that are being proposed currently, along with the number of units and 
proposed size of the one and two-bedroom units. He shared that this PD has been in place 
for future development as “retail and office space” uses for a very long time; however, it has 
not developed in over fifty years. He pointed out that for a single retailer to develop this 
particular piece of property, he believes it would be too expensive to do so (especially related 
to sewer). Although he knows the Council chose to not entertain the applicant’s request to 
withdraw, the applicant would have liked an opportunity to come back with an even newer 
proposal that would reflect a lower-density and lower intensity use. 
 

17



Page 13 of 18 
 

Mayor Fowler then opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and 
speak at this time. 
 
Bob Wacker 
309 Featherstone 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Wacker shared that this proposed use involves older residents who are likely not going 
to be driving a lot. It looks like the proposed amenities are great and will aesthetically look 
nice. However, the proposed density is not feasible or desirable.  He believes that 300+ units 
is too dense. Also, the parking will not be adequate, especially when people come to visit this 
facility on weekends. Mr. Wacker would like Mr. Weinstein to have an opportunity to bring 
this type of proposal back but with a lower, proposed density. 
 
Nathan Najmabadi 
1412 Ridge Road 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Najmabadi came forth and shared that he lives beside this property, and he and his family 
are greatly opposed to this proposed ‘high rise’ building. Sixty feet is a ‘skyscraper’ in 
Rockwall. He believes this is a great green space, and he would like to see it stay open – 
perhaps a park. He is ok with a one or two-story retail development; however, he is not in 
favor of these proposed “apartments in disguise.” He spoke in opposition of this proposal 
being approved. 
 
Dr. Jim Neufell 
101 Becky Lane 
Rockwall, TX  
 
Dr. Neufell came forth and shared that this type of development on that piece of property is 
not in the city’s ‘best interest.’  He briefly and generally spoke in opposition of its approval. 
 
Andrea Burke 
1406-A Ridge Road 
Rockwall, TX 
 
The speaker came forth and pointed out that this is the city’s ‘Scenic Overlay District.’ So she 
feels it should be ‘scenic’ and better blend in with the surrounding, existing development. 
She is opposed to the city granting any height-related variances, as what is being proposed is 
too tall. 
 
Harold Snyder 
1519 Murphy Drive 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Snyder came forth as both a resident and as a representative of the Waterstone Estates 
Homeowners Association. He and his HOA are both admittedly opposed to the proposed 

18



Page 14 of 18 
 

development as presented. He indicated that what is being proposed is far too high, height-
wise, and they prefer for it to be retail / office space.  He would hope that the city will reject 
this proposal. 
 
John McAnally 
1600 Ridge Road 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. McAnally indicated that he and his wife are opposed to this proposal, especially because 
of the proposed density and height as well as the additional traffic that it will produce. He 
asked the Council to put themselves in his shoes and consider how they would feel if this 
proposal were approved next door to their own home. He generally spoke against approval 
of this request. 
 
Dan Bobst 
1400 Ridge Road 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Bobst came forth and shared that he has seen previous cases be denied by the Rockwall 
City Council “with prejudice,” so he knows it has and can occur, contrary to what Councilman 
Daniels had previously indicated. He went on to say that he believes ‘residential’ should not 
be located along Ridge Road. He indicated that emergency sirens (i.e. from ambulances) run 
all the time. He lives on Ridge Road, and people utilizes his residential property all the time 
to make u-turns, and this will only get worse. He does not know what the answer is, and he 
feels sorry for Mr. Weinstein; however, he does not believe this proposal is desirable. He 
generally spoke in opposition of this request because he does not think it works correctly in 
this particular location. 
 
Ben Weible 
215 Trout 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Weible came forth and shared that he has passed by this particular patch of land for 45+ 
years. He does not own the land or the trees on the land or any part of it. However, the 
person who does own it and the person who wants to buy it should be able to make a 
transaction without the interference of local government. He would like to see the City let 
the private market work, and let the development take place without the city getting 
involved. 
 
There being no one else wishing to come forth and speak, Mayor Fowler closed the public 
hearing, and he recessed the public meeting for a break (at 8:18 p.m.). 
 
Mayor Fowler reconvened the meeting at 8:25 p.m. 
 
The applicant’s representative – Mr. Robert LaCroix – again came forth and shared that the 
applicant does understand the concerns that have been expressed regarding density and 
height. He pointed out that it is a land-use definition within the city’s Unified Development 

19



Page 15 of 18 
 

Code (UDC) that a person has to be 62 years of age to live in a ‘congregate care’ facility. Brief 
discussion ensued pertaining to how the City cannot truly enforce ‘age restrictions,’ and how 
it does not desire to be in the business of enforcing said restrictions.  Mr. LaCroix went on to 
share that it appears Council may deny this request tonight.  If it is denied, he asked Council 
to please consider denying it ‘without prejudice’ so the applicant may return and propose 
something ‘less dense’ and ‘less high.’ 
 
Councilmember Johannesen pointed out that his job is not to be a developer and/or solve 
developer-related issues. However, his job as a councilmember is to listen to the concerns of 
constituents. He shared that none of the citizens appear to want this development, as it is 
being proposed, and – also – the city’s P&Z Commission denied it too. 
 
Councilmember Johannesen went on to make a motion to deny Z2021-054. Councilmember 
Jorif seconded the motion. 
 
Brief discussion took place related to infrastructure (sewer), the potential traffic impact this 
proposal might have. Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt shared that the applicant is apparently 
‘deaf’ and does not listen to what the council has been consistently conveying to him, which 
is – nothing that even remotely resembles a ‘multi-family’ development on this piece of 
property is going to be approved by this Council because it is not going to be well received or 
supported by the citizens. He went on to share past examples of residents not wanting a 
certain development to be built and then something else, even less favorable, ends up being 
built ‘by right’ thereafter (example: Kroger up North). 
 
Following Hohenshelt’s comments, the motion to deny passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays.  
Brief clarification was given that – since ‘without prejudice’ was not specified within the 
motion – then, by default, it is considered to be denied “with prejudice.” 
  

6.  Z2021-055 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Patrick Filson of Kirkman 
Engineering on behalf of Marlyn Roberts for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) 
for a Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF with a Drive-Through or Drive-In for the purpose of constructing 
a restaurant/retail building on a 0.799-acre portion of a larger 2.02-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 
2, Block 1, Meadowcreek Business Center, Phase 1 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, generally located 
east of the intersection of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and Ralph Hall Parkway, and take any action 
necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information on this agenda item. The 
applicant has submitted a proposed concept plan that depicts a 5,130 SF restaurant/retail 
building that faces onto S. Goliad Street [SH-205]. The applicant has indicated that the drive 
through restaurant is less than 2,000 SF, which is the purpose for requesting the Specific Use 
Permit (SUP). The concept plan indicates that the drive through for the restaurant will wrap 
around the building, extending from the northeast side of the building to the northwest side 
of the building, and incorporate a maximum stacking capacity of seven (7) vehicles. The 
proposed concept plan also shows that a bail out lane, running parallel to the drive through, 
will be included. In addition, headlight screening will be provided adjacent to the northwest 
property line. Notices were sent out to adjacent property owners and residents, and the 

20



Page 16 of 18 
 

Meadowcreek HOA was also notified; however, no notices have been received back by staff 
to date. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, but no one wanted to speak. So, he then closed the 
public hearing. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt moved to approve Z2021-055. Councilmember Macalik seconded 
the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
A RESTAURANT LESS THAN 2,000 SF WITH DRIVE-THROUGH OR 
DRIVE-IN ON A 2.02-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS 
LOT 2, BLOCK 1, MEADOWCREEK BUSINESS CENTER PHASE 1 
ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; 
AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

7.  Z2021-056 - Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by John Delin of Integrity Group, LLC 
for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Amendment to Planned Development District 85 (PD-85) 
[Ordinance No. 18-32] for a 47.694-acre tract of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, and Lot 1, Block B, 
Ladera Rockwall Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 
85 (PD-85), situated within the 205 By-Pass Overlay (205 BY-OV) and the East SH-66 Overlay (E SH-66 OV) 
District, located at the northeast corner of the intersection of SH-66 and John King Boulevard, and take 
any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 
Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information pertaining to this agenda 
item. The subject property is located on both sides of John King Boulevard north of SH-66. 
The majority of the subject property was annexed into the City of Rockwall and zoned 
Agricultural (AG) District on March 16, 1998 by Case No. A1998-001 (Ordinance No. 98-10). 
The remainder of the property was annexed on March 2, 1960 by Case No. A1960-001 
(Ordinance No. 60-01). In 2007-2008, the City of Rockwall acquired a portion of the property 
for the future right-of-way for John King Boulevard. This divided the property into two (2) 
tracts of land, a 9.894-acre tract of land on the west side of John King Boulevard (i.e. Tract 1) 
and a 28.011-acre tract of land on the east side of John King Boulevard (i.e. Tract 2). On 
October 16, 2017, the City Council approved Planned Development District 85 (PD-85) 

21



Page 17 of 18 
 

[Ordinance No. 17-55] establishing limited General Retail (GR) District land uses on Tract 1, 
and Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District land uses on Tract 2. As part of this approval, Tract 2 was 
approved for an age restricted, senior living community that consisted of 84-89 single-family 
homes setup in a condominium regime (i.e. the single-family homes were individually owned 
but were situated on a single lot owned and maintained by the homeowner’s association). 
This plan also laid out 12.80-acres of open space, and provided for a ten (10) foot hike/bike 
trail along John King Boulevard and an intersection enhancement at the corner of John King 
Boulevard and SH-66 in accordance with the John King Boulevard Design Concept Plan. After 
receiving approval for the Planned Development District, the applicant -- John Delin of 
Integrity Group, LLC – contacted staff to notify them that the title company had missed 
locating a 30’ North Texas Municipal Water District (NTMWD) easement on the survey that 
runs parallel to SH-66. This inhibited the applicant’s ability to provide the required landscape 
and hardscape elements required by Ordinance No. 17-55. In response to this, the applicant 
filed an application requesting a variance to these requirements and proposing an alternative 
landscape plan. This was approved by the City Council on February 19, 2018. On June 15, 
2018, the applicant submitted an application proposing to amend Planned Development 
District 85 (PD-85) for the purpose of incorporating an additional 9.789-acre tract of land into 
Tract 2 and expanding the total single-family lot count to a maximum of 122 single-family 
homes. This was approved by the City Council on August 6, 2018 through the adoption of 
Ordinance No. 18-32. In November of 2021, staff contacted the applicant to inform him that 
a portion of the lots proposed for Phase 2 of the Ladera Subdivision were situated within the 
Runway Protection Zone of the Ralph Hall Municipal Airport. This was discovered by staff 
when working with Aviation Division of the Texas Department of Transportation (TXDOT) on 
a proposed project in the southern RPZ. To remedy this issue, staff and the applicant have 
been working with the TXDOT Aviation Division to revise the concept plan to conform to the 
Federal Aviation Administration’s (FAA’s) guidelines. He went on to describe additional 
details of this proposal, generally indicating that what is being proposed actually more closely 
conforms to the city’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Notices were went out to adjacent property owners and residents, as well as nearby HOAs. 
However, staff has received no notices in response. The city’s P&Z Commission has 
recommended approval of this by a vote of 6-0. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, but no one indicated a desire to speak. So, he then 
closed the public hearing.  Councilmember Jorif then moved to approve Z2021-056. 
Councilmember Johannesen seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as 
follows: 
 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 

XII.  
 
ACTION ITEMS  

 
1.  Discuss and consider (re)appointments to the city's Main Street Advisory Board, and take any action 

necessary. 
 
Johannesen moved to reappoint Eva Cannon, Jennifer Hoffman and Jeremy Standifer to the 
Main Street Advisory Board.  Mayor Pro Tem Hohenshelt seconded the motion, which passed 
by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

22



Page 18 of 18 
 

 
XIII.  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION.    
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS 
AUTHORIZED BY CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

  
1.  Discussion regarding appointments to city regulatory boards, commissions, and committees - 

specifically the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) - pursuant to Section 551.074 
(Personnel Matters)   

2.  Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property in the Harbor District pursuant to 
Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).   

3.  Discussion regarding possible sale/purchase/lease of real property off of John King Blvd pursuant to 
Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney).   

4.  Discussion regarding legal terms and conditions for application to SAFER grant program, pursuant to 
Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 

XIV.  
 
RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  
 
Council did not reconvene in Executive Session following the close of the public meeting. 

XV.  
 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
Mayor Fowler adjourned the meeting at 8:46 p.m.    

 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS ON THIS 7th 

DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 

 
 

KEVIN FOWLER, MAYOR 
ATTEST:  

 
 

KRISTY TEAGUE, CITY SECRETARY 

23



Z2021-050: Subsection 02.03; Article 04; UDC Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-03;  

 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-03 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 
20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY 
AMENDING SUBSECTION 02.03, CONDITIONAL LAND USE STANDARDS, 
OF ARTICLE 04, PERMISSIBLE USES, AS DEPCITED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF 
THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH 
OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment to the City of Rockwall’s Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] 
has been initiated by the Historic Preservation Advisory Board (HPAB) of the City of Rockwall to amend 
Subsection 02.03, Conditional Land Use Standards, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] for the purpose of changing the Conditional Land Use Standards 
for the Bed and Breakfast land use; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of the 
City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the City of Rockwall 
have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public hearings and afforded 
a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all persons interested in and situated in the 
city’s corporate boundaries, and the governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has 
concluded that the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That Subsection 02.03, Conditional Land Use Standards, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, 
of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, 
be and the same is hereby amended as specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance; 
 
SECTION 2.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not to 
exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and each and every day such 
offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 3.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of that 
section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the 
application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, corporation or situation, 
nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 04-38], and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions for this ordinance are 
declared to be severable; 
 
SECTION 4.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

24



Z2021-050: Subsection 02.03; Article 04; UDC Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-03;  

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THIS THE 
7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022.  

 
 
 

       
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

 
 

    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 
 

1st Reading:  January 18, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: February 7, 2022 

25



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Section 10, Fee Schedule, of 

Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the  
Unified Development Code (UDC) 

 

Z2021-050: Subsection 02.03; Article 04; UDC Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-03;  

Additions: Highlighted 
Deletions: Highlighted, Strikeout 
 
Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
Subsection 02.03, Conditional Land Use Standards 
 
(B)  Residential and Lodging Land Uses 
 
 (2)  Bed and Breakfast. 
 

(a) The Bed and Breakfast land use is permitted in the Old Town Rockwall (OTR) Historic District by-
right. 

(b)(a) A Bed and Breakfast may only be established on an owner-occupied, single-family lot. 
(c)(b) In addition to the single-family parking requirements, one (1) parking space per bedroom shall be 

provided. 
(d)(c) No signage and/or outside advertising shall be permitted for a Bed and Breakfast unless located in a 

nonresidential zoning district or as permitted by a Specific Use Permit (SUP). 
(e)(d) Bed and Breakfast shall be required to meet all applicable City Fire Codes, including providing a 

smoke alarm system. 
(f)(e) A Bed and Breakfast shall be subject to an annual inspection by the Fire Department. 
(g)(f) All applicable hotel/motel taxes shall be paid.  
(h)(g) The maximum length of a guests stay is shall be limited to 14 consecutive days in any 30-day period. 
(i)(h) A Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Bed and Breakfast shall be reviewed six (6) months after the 

adoption of the Specific Use Permit (SUP) and annually thereafter unless otherwise stipulated by the 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance. 

26



Z2021-051: SUP for 5108 Yacht Club Drive Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-04; SUP # S-267 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-04 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-267 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 8 (PD-8) AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) 
[ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS 
TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR RESIDENTIAL 
INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO ALLOW THE 
CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 0.189-ACRE 
PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 4, BLOCK B, CHANDLER’S 
LANDING, PHASE 19, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED 
IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO 
EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR 
EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Henok Fekadu for the approval of a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow the construction of 
a single-family home on a 0.189-acre parcel of land being described as Lot 4, Block B, Chandler’s 
Landing, Phase 19, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development 
District 8 (PD-8) for single-family residential land uses, addressed as 5108 Yacht Club Drive, and 
being more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of  this ordinance, which herein after 
shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] and Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) of the City of Rockwall should 
be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and Planned 
Development District 8 (PD-8) of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same 
is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an 
Established Subdivision to allow for the construction of a single-family home in an established 
subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible Uses, the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 
Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.07, Single-Family 

27



Z2021-051: SUP for 5108 Yacht Club Drive Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-04; SUP # S-267 

7 (SF-7) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and to the requirements set forth in Planned Development District 
8 (PD-8) -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following 
conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 
 
1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan 

as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to 
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 
3) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted 

by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by 
the property owner shall be required. 

  
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this 

ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings 
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

28



Z2021-051: SUP for 5108 Yacht Club Drive Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-04; SUP # S-267 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  January 18, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: February 7, 2022 
 
 

29



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Location Map and Survey 

Z2021-051: SUP for 5108 Yacht Club Drive Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-04; SUP # S-267 

Address: 5108 Yacht Club Drive 
Legal Description: Lot 4, Block B, Chandler’s Landing, Phase 19 
 

 
 
 
  

30



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Residential Plot Plan  

Z2021-051: SUP for 5108 Yacht Club Drive Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-04; SUP # S-267 

31



Exhibit ‘C’: 
Building Elevations   

Z2021-051: SUP for 5108 Yacht Club Drive Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-04; SUP # S-267 

  

32



Exhibit ‘C’: 
Building Elevations   

Z2021-051: SUP for 5108 Yacht Club Drive Page | 7 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-04; SUP # S-267 

 
 

33



Z2021-053: SUP for 803 Austin Street Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-06; SUP # S-269 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-06 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-269 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR 
RESIDENTIAL INFILL IN AN ESTABLISHED SUBDIVISION TO 
ALLOW THE CONSTRUCTION OF A SINGLE-FAMILY HOME ON A 
0.23-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS PORTION OF 
BLOCK 9 OF THE F&M ADDITION, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AND MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Javier Silva for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow the construction of a 
single-family home on a 0.23-acre parcel of land being described as portion of Block 9 of the F&M 
Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, 
addressed as 803 Austin Street, and being more specifically described and depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ 
of  this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated 
by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision to allow for the construction 
of a single-family home in an established subdivision in accordance with Article 04, Permissible 
Uses, the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 
Subsection 03.01, General Residential District Standards, and Subsection 03.09, Single-Family 
7 (SF-7) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and 
with the following conditions: 

34



Z2021-053: SUP for 803 Austin Street Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-06; SUP # S-269 

 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the construction of a single-family home on the Subject 
Property and conformance to these operational conditions are required: 
 
1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Residential Plot Plan 

as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The construction of a single-family home on the Subject Property shall generally conform to 
the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 
3) Once construction of the single-family home has been completed, inspected, and accepted 

by the City of Rockwall, this Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall expire, and no further action by 
the property owner shall be required. 

  
2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the contractor operating under the guidelines of this 

ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth herein and outlined in 
the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings 
to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 02.02(F), Revocation, 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
 

35



Z2021-053: SUP for 803 Austin Street Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-06; SUP # S-269 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  January 18, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: February 7, 2022 
 
 

36



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Location Map and Survey 

Z2021-053: SUP for 803 Austin Street Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-06; SUP # S-269 

Address: 803 Austin Street 
Legal Description: A Portion of Block 9 of the F&M Addition 
 
 

 
 
 
  

37



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Residential Plot Plan  

Z2021-053: SUP for 803 Austin Street Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-06; SUP # S-269 

38



Exhibit ‘C’: 
Building Elevations   

Z2021-053: SUP for 803 Austin Street Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-06; SUP # S-269 

 

  

39



Exhibit ‘C’: 
Building Elevations   

Z2021-053: SUP for 803 Austin Street Page | 7 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-06; SUP # S-269 

 

40



Z2021-055: SUP for Restaurant with Drive-Through Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-07; SUP # S-270 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-07 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-270 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS 
TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR A RESTAURANT 
LESS THAN 2,000 SF WITH DRIVE-THROUGH OR DRIVE-IN ON A 
2.02-ACRE PARCEL OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS LOT 2, BLOCK 1, 
MEADOWCREEK BUSINESS CENTER PHASE 1 ADDITION, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE 
SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF 
THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF 
TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Patrick Filson for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for a Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF with Drive-Through or Drive-In for the 
purpose of constructing a restaurant with drive-through on a 2.02-acre parcel of land described as 
Lot 2, Block 1, Meadowcreek Business Center Phase 1 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, 
generally located east of the intersection of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and Ralph Hall Parkway, and 
being more specifically depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ of  this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred 
to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. The Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, 
as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) for a Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF with Drive-Through or Drive-In in accordance 
with Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-
02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 
Subsection 04.05, Commercial (C) District, and Subsection 06.07, SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) 
District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with 
the following conditions: 

41



Z2021-055: SUP for Restaurant with Drive-Through Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-07; SUP # S-270 

 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the operation of a Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF with 
Drive-Through or Drive-In on the Subject Property and conformance to these conditions is required 
for continued operation: 
 
1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan as 

depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. 
 
2) Mature landscaping shall be planted along the entire length of the proposed drive-through 

lane adjacent to the northern property line and along S. Goliad Street [SH-205] to provide 
headlight screening from adjacent public rights-of-way and properties. 
 

2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy (CO), should the business owner operating under 

the guidelines of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth 
herein and outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) 
initiate proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 
02.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
 
 

42



Z2021-055: SUP for Restaurant with Drive-Through Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-07; SUP # S-270 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  January 18, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: February 7, 2022 
 
 

43



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Location Map 

Z2021-055: SUP for Restaurant with Drive-Through Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-07; SUP # S-270 

Location: East of the Intersection of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and Ralph Hall Parkway 
Legal Description: Lot 2, Block 1, Meadowcreek Business Center Phase 1 Addition 
 

 
  

44



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Concept Plan 

  

Z2021-055: SUP for Restaurant with Drive-Through Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-07; SUP # S-270 

 

45



Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-08 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 85 (PD-85) [ORDINANCE NO. 18-32] AND THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO 
INCORPORATE A 9.762-ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED 
AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT INTO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 85 (PD-85) CREATING A 47.694-ACRE PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT IDENTIFIED AS TRACTS 4-01 & 5 OF THE 
M. B. JONES SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 122, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED 
HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request by the John Delin of Integrity Group, LLC for the 
approval of a zoning change amending Planned Development District 85 (PD-85) [Ordinance No. 
18-32] for the purpose of changing the Concept Plan for the Subject Property being a 47.694-
acre tract of land identified as Tract 4-01 & 5 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, City of 
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which 
hereinafter shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that Planned 
Development District 85 (PD-85) [Ordinance No. 18-32] and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the approval of this ordinance shall superseded all requirements stipulated in 
Ordinance No. 18-32; and,    
 
SECTION 2. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
authorized by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by 
granting this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future; 
 
SECTION 3. That development of the Subject Property shall be in accordance with the Planned 
Development Concept Plans, contained in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘B’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 
approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;  
 

46



Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

SECTION 4. That development of the Subject Property shall be in accordance with the 
Development Standards, described in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 
approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; 
 
SECTION 5. That development of Tract 1 of the Subject Property -- as described in Exhibit ‘A’ 
and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance -- shall be in conformance with the schedule listed 
below (except as set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals). 

 
(a) The procedures set forth in the City’s subdivision regulations on the date this 

ordinance is approved by the City, as amended by this ordinance (including 
Subsections 5(b) through 5(f) below), shall be the exclusive procedures applicable to 
the subdivision and platting of Area 3 as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.  
 

(b) The following plans and plats shall be required in the order listed below (except as set 
forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals). The City Council 
shall act on an application for an Open Space Master Plan in accordance with the time 
period specified in Section 212.009 of the Texas Local Government Code. 

 
(1) Open Space Master Plan 
(2) Master Plat 
(3) Preliminary Plat 
(4) PD Site Plan 
(5) Final Plat 

 
(c) Open Space Master Plan.  An Open Space Master Plan for the Subject Property as 

depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, prepared in accordance with this ordinance, 
and shall be considered for approval by the City Council following recommendation of 
the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 

(d) Master Plat. A Master Plat for the Subject Property as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this 
ordinance shall be submitted and shall identify the proposed timing of each phase of 
the proposed development. A Master Plat application may be processed by the City 
concurrently with an Open Space Master Plan for the development. 

 
(e) Preliminary Plat. A Preliminary Plat covering all of the Subject Property as depicted in 

Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance shall be submitted and shall include a Treescape Plan. A 
Preliminary Plat Application may be processed by the City concurrently with a Master 
Plat and an Open Space Master Plan Application for the development. 
 

(f) PD Site Plan.  A PD Site Plan covering all of the Subject Property as depicted in 
Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance shall be submitted and shall identify all 
site/landscape/hardscape plan(s) for all open space, neighborhood parks, trail 
systems, street buffers and entry features.  A PD Site Plan application may be 
processed by the City concurrently with a Final Plat Application for the development. 
 

(g) Final Plat. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, a Final Plat, conforming to the 
Preliminary Plat, for all of the Subject Property as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this 
ordinance shall be submitted for approval. 

 
SECTION 6.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 

47



Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 
 
SECTION 7.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid 
portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions 
for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 
SECTION 8.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between this 
ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City Code, 
ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that is 
different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or 
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified 
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits 
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City Council 
of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 9.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage; 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 

 
 

      
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  January 18, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: February 7, 2022 

48



Exhibit ‘A’: 
Legal Description 

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

Legal Description for Tract 1: 
 
Tract 1 9.894 acres M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122 B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122 City of 
Rockwall Rockwall County, Texas 
 
BEING all that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, City 
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and being a portion of a called 41.921 acre tract of land described 
as Tract 3, in deed to John H. Cullins, recorded in Instrument No. 2008-00396743, Deed Records, Rockwall 
County, Texas, and being more particularly described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A CONSULTANTS”, being in the north line of U. 
G&A CONSULTANTS”, being in the north line of U. , being in the north line of U. S. Highway 66, from which 
a 1/2 inch rebar found at the southeast corner of said 41.921 acres bears N 88°18'19” E, a distance 724.55 
feet; E, a distance 724.55 feet; 
 
THENCE S 88°18'19” W, with the north line of U. S. Highway 66, a distance of 553.89 feet to a wooden W, 
with the north line of U. S. Highway 66, a distance of 553.89 feet to a wooden right-of-way monument found 
at the southwest corner of said 41.921 acre tract, and being in the east line of F. M. 1141; 
 
THENCE N 02°39'30” W, with the east line of F. M. 1141, a distance of 601.94 to a 1/2 inch rebar W, with 
the east line of F. M. 1141, a distance of 601.94 to a 1/2 inch rebar found; 
 
THENCE N 01°20'56” W, continuing with the east line of F. M. 1141, a distance of 314.19 feet to a 1/2 W, 
continuing with the east line of F. M. 1141, a distance of 314.19 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped 
“G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the southwest corner of a called 1.837 G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the 
southwest corner of a called 1.837 , being the southwest corner of a called 1.837 acre tract of land described 
as Tract 1 in deed to Betty Bogard, recorded in Instrument No. 2008-00396742, Deed Records, Denton 
County, Texas; 
 
THENCE N 89°26'01” E, with the south line of said 1.837 acre tract, a distance of 200.01 feet to a 1/2 E, 
with the south line of said 1.837 acre tract, a distance of 200.01 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped 
“G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the southeast corner thereof, and being at G&A CONSULTANTS”, being 
the southeast corner thereof, and being at , being the southeast corner thereof, and being at an inner ell 
corner of said 41.921 acre tract; 
 
THENCE N 01°20'56” W, with the east line of said 1.837 acre tract, a distance of 400.02 feet to a 1/2 W, 
with the east line of said 1.837 acre tract, a distance of 400.02 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped 
“G&A CONSULTANTS”, being in the south line of a 10.942 acre tract of G&A CONSULTANTS”, being in 
the south line of a 10.942 acre tract of , being in the south line of a 10.942 acre tract of land described in 
deed to City of Rockwall, recorded in Instrument No. 2007-00389123, Deed Records, Rockwall County, 
Texas; 
 
THENCE N 89°26'01” E, with the south line of said 10.942 acre tract, a distance of 65.39 feet to a 1/2 E, 
with the south line of said 10.942 acre tract, a distance of 65.39 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped 
“G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the most northwesterly corner of a called G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the 
most northwesterly corner of a called , being the most northwesterly corner of a called 3.989 acre tract of 
land being titled as “Highway 205 Bypass R.O.W.” in City of Rockwall vs. John Cullins 
 
Highway 205 Bypass R.O.W.” in City of Rockwall vs. John Cullins in City of Rockwall vs. John Cullins and 
Burks T. Payne, Jr., Cause No. 180-633, recorded in Instrument No. 2009-00410863, Deed Records, 
Rockwall County, Texas, also known as John King Boulevard; 
 
THENCE Southeasterly with the west line of said 3.989 acre tract and John King Boulevard, the following 
eight (8) calls: 

 
S 05°14'42” E, a distance of 119.42 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A E, a 

49



Exhibit ‘A’: 
Legal Description 

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

distance of 119.42 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
N 84°45'18” E, a distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A E, a 
distance of 20.00 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
S 05°14'42” E, a distance of 189.30 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A E, a 
distance of 189.30 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
Southeasterly with a curve to the left having a radius of 2060.00 feet, a central angle of 
23°19'48”, and , and an arc length of 838.80 feet, whose chord bears S 16°54'36” E, a distance 
of 833.02 feet to a 1/2 E, a distance of 833.02 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped 
“G&A CONSULTANTS”; G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
Southeasterly with a curve to the right having a radius of 586.00 feet, a central angle of 
07°34'10”, and an arc length of 77.42 feet, whose chord bears S 24°47'26” E, a distance of 
77.36 feet to a 1/2 E, a distance of 77.36 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
Southeasterly with a curve to the left having a radius of 314.00 feet, a central angle of 
09°39'36”, and , and an arc length of 52.94 feet, whose chord bears S 25°50'09” E, a distance 
of 52.88 feet to a 1/2 inch E, a distance of 52.88 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped 
“G&A CONSULTANTS”; G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
S 30°39'57” E, a distance of 32.25 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A E, a 
distance of 32.25 feet to a 1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
S 28°49'11” W, a distance of 32.25 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 
approximately 9.894 acres of land. 

  

50



Exhibit ‘A’: 
Legal Description 

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

Legal Description for Tract 2: 
 
BEING all that certain lot, tract or parcel of land situated in the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, City 
of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and being a portion of a called 41.921-acre tract of land described 
as Tract 3, in deed to John H. Cullins, recorded in Instrument No. 2008-00396743, Deed Records, Rockwall 
County, Texas, and being part of a called 73.2744-acre tract of land described in deed to Mike L. People, 
recorded in Volume 850, Page 15, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and being more particularly 
described as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at a ½-inch rebar found at the southeast corner of said 41.921-acre tract, and the southwest 
corner of said 73.2744-acre tract and being in the north line of U. S. Highway 66; 
 
THENCE S 88°18’19”W, with the north line of U. S. Highway 66, a distance of 490.46 feet to a 1/2 inch 
rebar set with cap stamped “G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the most southeasterly corner of a called 3.989 
acre tract of land being titled as “Highway 205 Bypass R.O.W.” in City of Rockwall vs. John Cullins and 
Burks T. Payne, Jr., Cause No. 180-633, recorded in Instrument No. 2009-00410863, Deed Records, 
Rockwall County, Texas, also known as John King Boulevard; 
 
THENCE Northwesterly with the east line of said 3.989-acre tract and John King Boulevard, the following 
seven (7) calls: 
 

N 30°39’57” W, a distance of 19.44-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
S 59°20’03” W, a distance of 21.30-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
N 30°39’57” W, a distance of 211.63 feet-to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
Northwesterly with a curve to the right having a radius of 1940.00 feet, a central angle of 
25°25’15”, and an arc length of 860.73-feet, whose chord bears N 17°57’20” W, a distance of 
853.69 feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
N 05°14’42” W, a distance of 158.73-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
N 84°45’18” E, a distance of 20.00-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
N 05°14’42” W, a distance of 136.88-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS” in the south line of a called 10.942-acre tract of land described in deed to 
City of Rockwall, recorded in Instrument No. 2007-00389123, Deed Records, Rockwall County, 
Texas; 

 
THENCE N 89°26’01” E, with the south line of said 10.942-acre tract, a distance of 15.52-feet to a ½-inch 
rebar set with cap stamped “G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the southeast corner thereof; 
 
THENCE N 00°10’47” W, with the east line of said 10.942-acre tract, a distance of 271.63-feet to a ½-inch 
rebar set with cap stamped “G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the southwest corner of a 16.000-acre tract of 
land described as Tract 2 in deed to Betty Bogard, recorded in Instrument No. 2008-00396742, Deed 
Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE N 89°54’11” E, with the south line of said 16.000-acres, a distance of 842.15 feet to a ½-inch 
rebar set with cap stamped “G&A CONSULTANTS”, being the southeast corner thereof and being in the 
west line of said 73.2744-acre tract; 

51



Exhibit ‘A’: 
Legal Description 

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 7 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

 
THENCE S 01°28’09” E, with the west line of said 73.2744 acre tract of land, a distance of 845.72 feet to a 
1/2 inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A CONSULTANTS”; 
 
THENCE over, across, and through said 73.2744-acre tract the following five (5) courses and distances: 
 

S 37°47’00” E, a distance of 135.09-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
N 88°31’51” E, a distance of 259.75-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
S 66°00’00” E, a distance of 266.78-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
S 30°00’00” R, a distance of 384.58-feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”; 
 
S 64°00’00” E, a distance of 352.92 feet to a ½-inch rebar set with cap stamped “G&A 
CONSULTANTS”, being in the south line of said 73.2744-acre tract and the north line of U.S. 
Highway 66; 

 
THENCE S 89°18’14” W, with the south line of said 73.2744-acre tract, and the north line of U.S. Highway 
66, a distance of 1077.53-feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing approximately 37.800-acres 
of land. 
 
 
 
 
 

52



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Concept Plan: Tract 1 

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 8 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

 

53



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Concept Plan: Tract 2 

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 9 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

 

54



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 10 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

PD Development Standards. 
 
Tract 1: 9.894-Acres of Non-Residential Property 
 

(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development ordinance, only those 
uses permitted within the General Retail (GR) District, as stipulated by the Permissible Use 
Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning 
change, and as maybe amended in the future are permitted on Tract 1 of the Subject Property; 
however, the following additions and conditions shall apply:  

 
The following land uses shall be expressly prohibited on the Subject Property: 

 

 Convent or Monastery 
 Hotel or Motel 
 Hotel, Residence 
 Cemetery/Mausoleum 
 Mortuary or Funeral Chapel 
 Social Service Provider 
 Billiard Parlor or Pool Hall 
 Carnival, Circus, or Amusement Ride 
 Commercial Amusement/Recreation (Outside) 
 Gun Club, Skeet or Target Range (Indoor) 
 Astrologer, Hypnotist, or Psychic Art and Science 
 Night Club, Discotheque, or Dance Hall 
 Secondhand Dealer 
 Car Wash, Self Service 
 Retail Store with Gasoline Product Sales (Any Amount of Dispensers) 
 Service Station 
 Mining and Extraction (Sand, Gravel, Oil & Other) 
 Helipad 
 Railroad Yard or Shop  
 Transit Passenger Facility 

 
The following additional use shall be permitted through a Specific Use Permit (SUP) on the 
Subject Property: 

 

 Garden Supply/Plant Nursery 
 

(2) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Any development on Tract 1 of the Subject Property 
shall be subject to the development standards required for properties in a General Retail (GR) 
District as stipulated by Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development 
Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning 
change, and as maybe amended in the future. 

 
(3) Landscape Buffers. All landscape buffers and plantings located within the buffers shall adhere to 

the following: 
 

(a) Landscape Buffer (SH-66). A minimum of a 15-foot landscape buffer shall be provided along 
the frontage of SH-66 (outside of and beyond any required right-of-way dedication), and shall 
incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm and/or shrubbery or a combination thereof along 
the entire length of the frontage.  Berms and/or shrubbery shall have a minimum height of 
30-inches and a maximum height of 48-inches.  In addition, two (2) canopy trees and four (4) 
accent trees shall be planted per 100-feet of linear frontage.  The developer shall also be 
responsible for the construction of a five (5) foot sidewalk situated within the 15-foot 
landscape buffer adjacent to SH-66.   

 

55



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 11 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

(b) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (John King Boulevard). A minimum of a 15-foot landscape 
buffer shall be provided along the frontage of John King Boulevard (outside of and beyond 
any required right-of-way dedication), and shall incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm 
and/or shrubbery or a combination thereof along the entire length of the frontage.  Berms 
and/or shrubbery shall have a minimum height of 30-inches and a maximum height of 48-
inches.  In addition, two (2) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees shall be planted per 100-
feet of linear frontage.  The developer shall also be responsible for the construction of a ten 
(10) foot sidewalk situated within the 15-foot landscape buffer adjacent to John King 
Boulevard.   

 
(c) Landscape Buffer (FM-1141). A minimum of a 15-foot landscape buffer shall be provided 

along the frontage of FM-1141 (outside of and beyond any required right-of-way dedication), 
and shall incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm and/or shrubbery or a combination 
thereof along the entire length of the frontage.  Berms and/or shrubbery shall have a minimum 
height of 30-inches and a maximum height of 48-inches.  In addition, two (2) canopy trees 
and four (4) accent trees shall be planted per 100-feet of linear frontage.  The developer shall 
also be responsible for the construction of a five (5) foot sidewalk situated within the 15-foot 
landscape buffer adjacent to FM-1141.   

 
(4) Intersection Enhancements. In accordance with the John King Boulevard Design Concept Plan 

the applicant shall be required to provide an intersection enhancement at the corner of the 
intersection of Williams Street (SH-66) and John King Boulevard that generally conforms to the 
following design: 
 

  

56



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 12 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

Tract 2: 28.011-Acres of Residential Property 
 

(1) Permitted Uses. Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development ordinance, only those 
uses permitted within the Single Family 7 (SF-7) District, as stipulated by the Permissible Use 
Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] as heretofore amended, as amended herein by granting this zoning 
change, and as maybe amended in the future are permitted on Tract 2 of the Subject Property; 
however, the following additional land uses shall be permitted by-right: 

 
 Activity Center 
 Community Pool 
 Gazebos/Pavilions 
 Sports Courts 

 
(2) Unit Composition and Layout. The unit composition and layout shall generally conform to the 

Concept Plan for Tract 2 depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ and stated as follows:  
 

Unit Type Unit Dimensions Minimum Unit Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units  
1 44.5’ x 80’ 1,600 SF 11 09.40% 
2 42’ x 77’ 1,600 SF 27 23.07% 
3 42’ x 72’ 1,600 SF 10 08.55% 
4 42’ x 70’ 1,600 SF 26 22.22% 
5 54’ x 60’ 1,600 SF 21 17.95% 
6 64’ x 50’ 2,100 SF 6 05.13% 
7 36’ x 59’ 1,325 SF 16 13.68% 
  Total Units: 117  

 
NOTES REGARDING LOT VARIATIONS TO THE UNIT COMPOSITION: 
Regardless of the above unit mix the following variations shall be permitted: 

 

(1) Lot 1 as depicted on the concept plan in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance may be developed with interchange 
Unit Types 2, 3 & 4. 

(2) Lot 2 as depicted on the concept plan in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance may be developed with interchange 
Unit Types 3 & 4. 

(3) Lot 3 as depicted on the concept plan in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance may be developed with interchange 
Unit Types 3 & 4. 

 
(3) Density and Dimensional Requirements.  The maximum permissible density for the Subject 

Property shall not exceed 3.1-units/acre; however, in no case should the proposed development 
exceed 117 single-family, residential units.  The Subject Property shall maintain conformance 
with the following requirements: 
 
(a) Condominium Requirement.  The property shall be established as a condominium 

development pursuant to the requirements of Chapter 82 of the Texas Property Code, and 
platted as a single lot. 
 

(b) Lot Dimensional Requirements. The proposed condominium lot shall adhere to the following 
setbacks: 

 
Minimum Lot Width 1,000’ 
Minimum Lot Depth 490’ 
Minimum Lot Area 37.80-Acres 
Minimum Setback Adjacent to John King Boulevard 95’ 
Minimum Setback Adjacent to SH-66 20’ 
Minimum Setback Adjacent to the Eastern & Northern Property Lines 10’ 
Minimum Setback Adjacent to the RPZ 0’ 
Minimum Lot Setback for the Eastern Property Adjacent to the RPZ 5’ 

57



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 13 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

 
(c) Internal Artificial Lot Requirements. The units constructed on the proposed condominium lot 

shall adhere to the following dimensional requirements for artificial lots: 
 

Minimum Setback from a Private Street (1), (2) & (3) 15’ 
Minimum Side Yard Distance Between Units 6’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback from a Private Street (1) & (2) 10’ 
Minimum Rear Yard Distance Between Units 20’ 
Maximum Height 35’ 

 

General Notes: 
1:  This setback shall be measured from the back of curb. 
2:  Variances of up to five (5) feet may be granted by the Director of Planning and Zoning on a case-

by-case basis for artificial lots on curve-linear streets.  
3:  The minimum length of a driveway shall be 20-feet as measured from the edge of the approach to 

the garage door. 
 

(4) Building Standards. All development shall adhere to the following building standards: 
 

(A) Masonry Requirement. The minimum masonry requirement for the exterior façades -- 
excluding doors and windows -- of all buildings shall be 80%. For the purposes of this 
ordinance the masonry requirement shall be limited to full width brick, natural stone, and 
cultured stone. Cementaceous fiberboard horizontal lap-siding (e.g. HardiBoard or Hardy 
Plank) and/or stucco (i.e. three [3] part stucco or a comparable -- to be determined by staff) 
shall be permitted to be used to meet up to 40% of the masonry requirement. 

 
(B) Roof Pitch. A minimum of an 8:12 roof pitch is required on the front elevation of all structures.  

Porches and rear elevations shall have a minimum of a 4:12 roof pitch.  
 
(C) Garage Orientation. Garages shall be oriented in a traditional swing (or j-swing) or in a front 

entry configuration. If a front entry garage configuration is utilized it shall face the street and 
shall be located even with the front building façade of the primary structure.  On traditional 
swing (or j-swing) garages a second single garage door facing the street is permitted if it is 
located behind the width of the double garage door. 

 
(D) Anti-Monotony Restrictions. The development shall adhere to the following Anti-Monotony 

requirements (for spacing requirements see the illustration on the following page):  
 

(1) Identical brick blends or paint colors may not occur on adjacent (side-by-side) 
properties along any block face without at least four (4) intervening homes of differing 
materials on the same side of the street beginning with the adjacent property and two 
(2) intervening homes of differing materials on the opposite side of the street. 

 
(2) Front building elevations shall not repeat along any block face without at least four (4) 

intervening homes of differing appearance on the same side of the street and two (2) 
intervening homes of differing appearance on the opposite side of the street. Homes 
are considered to have a differing appearance if any of the following two (2) items 
deviate: 

 
(a) Number of Stories 
(b) Brick Color 
(c) Roof Type and Layout 
(d) Articulation of the Front Façade  

  
(3) All roof shingles shall be an architectural or dimensional shingle, and have a 30-year 

rating. (3-Tab Roofing Shingles are prohibited).  
 

58



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 14 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(E) Fencing Standards. All residential privacy fencing shall be six (6) foot wrought iron/tubular 
steel fencing for transparent fencing and six (6) foot Simtek (or a similar product) fencing for 
non-transparent fencing.  Fencing located along the exterior of the condominium lot shall be 
a minimum of six (6) foot wrought iron/tubular steel fencing with masonry columns a 
maximum of 45-feet on center.  The masonry columns shall only be required adjacent to 
John King Boulevard and SH-66. 

 
(F) Landscape and Hardscape Standards.  

 
(1) Residential Landscape. All canopy trees planted within the condominium lot and not 

situated within a required landscape buffer shall be a minimum of three (3) inches in 
caliper and accent trees shall be a minimum of four (4) feet in height.  All tree plantings 
shall conform to the City’s tree planting guidelines and requirements stipulated in 
Appendix F, Landscaping Guidelines and Requirements, of the Unified Development 
Code.  

 
(2) Landscape Buffers. All landscape buffers and plantings located within the buffers shall 

be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA) and shall conform to the 
following: 

 
(a) Landscape Buffer (SH-66). A minimum of a 20-foot landscape buffer shall be 

provided along the frontage of SH-66 (outside of and beyond any required right-
of-way dedication), and shall incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm and 
shrubbery along the entire length of the frontage.  Berms and/or shrubbery shall 
have a minimum height of 30-inches and a maximum height of 48-inches.  The 
landscaping shall be generally as depicted below.  The developer shall also be 

Illustration 1: Properties line up on the opposite side of the street.  Where RED are the same. 

Illustration 2: Properties do not line up on opposite side of the street. Where RED are the same. 

59



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 15 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

responsible for the construction of a five (5) foot sidewalk situated within the 20-
foot landscape buffer adjacent to SH-66.   
 

 
 

(b) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (John King Boulevard). A minimum of a 50-foot 
landscape buffer shall be provided along the frontage of John King Boulevard 
(outside of and beyond any required right-of-way dedication), and shall incorporate 
ground cover, a built-up berm and/or shrubbery or a combination thereof along the 
entire length of the frontage.  Berms and/or shrubbery shall have a minimum height 
of 30-inches.  In addition, three (3) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees shall be 
planted per 100-feet of linear frontage.  The developer shall also be responsible 
for the construction of a ten (10) foot sidewalk situated within the 50-foot landscape 
buffer adjacent to John King Boulevard.  The required wrought iron fence along 
John King Boulevard may be situated within 40-feet of the right-of-way line.  In 
addition, the design of the buffer shall generally conform to the following cross 
section: 

 
 

 
 
 
 

60



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 16 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

(3) Irrigation Requirements. Irrigation shall be installed for all required landscaping located 
within common areas, landscape buffers and/or open space. Irrigation installed in 
these areas shall be designed by a Texas licensed irrigator or landscape architect and 
shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

 
(4) Hardscape. Hardscape plans indicating the location of all sidewalks and trails shall be 

reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan. 
 

(G) Trail Enhancements. In accordance with the John King Boulevard Design Concept Plan the 
applicant shall be required to provide a trail enhancement element that generally conforms 
to the following design: 

 
 
 

(H) Lighting. Light poles shall not exceed 20-feet in total height (i.e. base and lighting standard). 
All fixtures shall be directed downward and be positioned to concentrate light within the 
development area. 

 
 
 
 
 

Continued on next page …  
 
 
 

61



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 17 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

(I) Private Streets. With the exception of the 21-foot, one-way street situated adjacent to John 
King Boulevard the street cross sections for this development should conform to the 
following cross section: 

 
 
(J) Open Space. The development shall consist of a minimum of 38.00% open space as 

calculated from the gross land area, and generally conform to the Concept Plan contained 
in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance. The Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall maintain all 
common open space areas.  For the purposes of this Planned Development District open 
space shall include all front yards, rear yards, common areas, buffers and floodplain 
installed by the developer, but does not include any landscaping, trees, patios and other 
improvements installed by the homeowner.  Floodplain shall be calculated at a rate of 50% 
(e.g. ½-acre for every acre provided).  

 
(K) Neighborhood Signage. Permanent subdivision identification signage shall be permitted at 

all major entry points for the proposed subdivision. Final design and location of any entry 
features shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan. 

 
(L) Condominium Owner’s Association (COA). A Condominium Owner’s Association shall be 

created to enforce the restrictions established in accordance with the requirements of 
Chapter 82, Uniform Condominium Act, of the Texas Property Code. The COA shall also 
maintain all neighborhood parks, trails, open space and common areas, irrigation, 
landscaping, amenity centers, and screening fences associated with this development, but 
it is not required to maintain additional landscaping or improvements added by the 
homeowner. 

 
(M) Buried Utilities. New distribution power-lines required to serve the Subject Property shall be 

placed underground, whether such lines are located internally or along the perimeter of the 
Subject Property, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council. New transmission power-
lines, or distribution lines of a size not typically or cost effectively placed underground (3-
phase lines), or additional lines that are added to existing poles, may be above ground, if 
located along the perimeter of the Subject Property. The Developer shall not be required to 
re-locate existing overhead power-lines along the perimeter of the Subject Property. 
Temporary power-lines constructed across undeveloped portions of the Subject Property to 
facilitate development phasing and looping may be allowed above ground, but shall not be 
considered existing lines at the time the area is developed, and if they are to become 
permanent facilities, such lines shall be placed underground pursuant to this paragraph. 
Franchise utilities shall be placed within a ten (10) foot public utility easement behind the 
sidewalk, between the home and the property line. 

 

62



Exhibit ‘C’: 
PD Development Standards  

Z2021-056: Ladera of Rockwall Page 18 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-08; PD-85 

(N) Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval that are set forth in the 
Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] shall apply to any application for 
variances to this ordinance. 

 

63



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: P2022-001; FINAL PLAT FOR LOTS 1, 2 & 3, BLOCK A, SEEFRIED
ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Applications
Location Map
Conveyance Plat
Closure Report

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Nick Hobbs of BGE Engineering on behalf of Randall Schwimmer of
Baker Schwimmer Ventures, LLP and Phase 17 Investments for the approval of a Conveyance
Plat for Lots 1, 2 & 3, Block A, Seefried Addition being a 23.489-acre tract of land identified as
Tracts 25 & 25-1, of the R. B. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120 and Tract 1-2 of the J. H. B.
Jones Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light
Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located on
the southside of the IH-30 Frontage Road east of the intersection of Corporate Crossing and
IH-30, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
proposed Final Plat.

64



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

DATE: February 7, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Nick Hobbs, BGE Engineering 
 

CASE NUMBER: P2022-001; Final Plat for Lots 1, 2 & 3, Block A, Seefried Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by Nick Hobbs of BGE Engineering on behalf of Randall Schwimmer of Baker Schwimmer Ventures, LLP 
and Phase 17 Investments for the approval of a Conveyance Plat for Lots 1, 2 & 3, Block A, Seefried Addition being a 23.489-
acre tract of land identified as Tracts 25 & 25-1, of the R. B. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120 and Tract 1-2 of the J. H. B. Jones 
Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-
30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located on the southside of the IH-30 Frontage Road east of the intersection of 
Corporate Crossing and IH-30, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Final Plat for a 23.489-acre parcel of land (i.e. Tracts 25 & 25-1, R. B. Irvine 

Survey, Abstract No. 120) for the purpose of dedicating the necessary right-of-way for Data Drive and incorporating a 
remainder tract (i.e. Tract 1-2 of the J. H. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 125) into the subject property. Prior to the applicant’s 
submittal for this Conveyance Plat, a site plan for two (2) Warehouse/Distribution Facilities [Case No. SP2021-027] was 
approved by the Planning and Zoning Commission on November 9, 2021. As part of this development the applicant is 
required to dedicate their portion of the 65-feet of right-of-way necessary to extend Data Drive, and construct a portion of 
this roadway. 
 

 The subject property was annexed by the City Council on July 21, 1997 by Ordinance No. 97-14. On July 5, 2005 the City 
Council approved a zoning change [Case No. Z2005-021] for the subject property, rezoning it from an Agricultural (AG) 
District to a Light Industrial (LI) District. On November 9, 2021, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a site plan 
[Case No. SP2021-027] to allow the construction of two (2) ~157,720 SF Warehouse/Distribution Facilities. Since the time 
of annexation, the subject property has remained vacant. 

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Final Plat -- conforming to 

the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is 
recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this Final Plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If the City Council chooses to approve the Final Plat for Lots 1, 2, & 3, Block A, Seefried Addition, staff would propose the 
following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to submittal 

of civil engineering plans;  

65



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Final Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On January 25, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the conveyance plat 
by a vote of 7-0. 

66



67



68



69



I
N

T

E

R

S

T

A

T

E

 
H

I
G

H

W

A

Y

 
3

0

CARRINGTON DRIVE

P.O.B.

Robert Boyd  Irvine Survey

Abstract No. 120

PROPOSED RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION

2.580 ACRES (112,402 SQ. FT.)

CAPITAL BOULEVARD

DATA DRIVE

TOTAL GROSS AREA

26.070 ACRES

(1,135,600 SQ. FT.)

TOTAL NET AREA

23.489 ACRES

(1,023,198 SQ. FT.)

LOT 1, BLOCK 1

12.144 ACRES

(528,976 SQ. FT.)

LOT 2, BLOCK 1

10.361 ACRES

(451,334 SQ. FT.)

DATA DRIVE

LOT X,

BLOCK 1

G
:
\
T

X
N

\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
S

e
e

f
r
i
e

d
_

I
n

d
u

s
t
r
i
a

l
_

P
r
o

p
s
\
9

0
2

8
-
0

0
-
S

e
e

f
r
i
e

d
_

R
o

c
k
w

a
l
l
\
S

V
\
0

4
_

C
A

D
\
9

0
2

8
-
0

0
_

C
P

L
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
2

0
2

2
-
0

1
-
1

1
-
1

1
:
0

0
 
 
j
l
o

n
d

o
n

200100
500

SCALE: 1" = 100'

2595 Dallas Parkway, Suite 101, Frisco, TX 75034
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. 10193953
Tel: 972-464-4800  •  www.bgeinc.com

Copyright 2022

CONVEYANCE PLAT

SEEFRIED ADDITION

LOTS 1, 2, AND X, BLOCK 1

3 LOTS - 23.489 ACRES

BEING SITUATED IN THE

ROBERT BOYD IRVINE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 120

CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

JANUARY 2022

SHEET 1 OF 2

SEEFRIED INDUSTRIAL

PROPERTIES, INC.

3030 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1650
Dallas, TX 75234

DEVELOPER SURVEYOR

Contact: Mark Peace, R.P.L.S.
Telephone: 972-464-4884  •  Email: mpeace@bgeinc.com

VICINITY MAP

(NOT TO SCALE)

LEGEND

CAB. CABINET

(C.M.) CONTROLLING MONUMENT

NO. NUMBER

PG. PAGE

P.O.B. POINT OF BEGINNING

VOL. VOLUME

D.R.R.C.T. DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL 

COUNTY, TEXAS

P.R.R.C.T. PLAT RECORDS, ROCKWALL

COUNTY, TEXAS

O.P.R.R.C.T. OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS,

ROCKWALL COUNTY,TEXAS

PROPERTY LINE

EASEMENT LINE

GENERAL NOTES:

1. Bearing system for this survey is based on the Texas State Plane Coordinate System - NAD 83, North Central Zone

4202, based on observations made on July 14, 2021 with an applied combined scale factor of 1.000146135.

2. Coordinates shown are Texas State Plane Coordinate System, North Central Zone, North American Datum of 1983 on

grid coordinate values, no scale and no projection. Project tied to City of Rockwall Geodetic Control Monument No. 9.

3. The floodplain boundaries shown hereon are approximate and are not depicted as a result of an on-the-ground survey.

The subject tract lies with Zone X as delineated on Flood Insurance Rate Map for Rockwall County, Texas and

Incorporated Areas, Map Number 48397C0045L with Map Revised September 28, 2008.

Zone X - Areas determined to be outside the 0.2% annual chance floodplain

4. The square footage value shown hereon is a mathematical value calculated from the boundary data shown hereon.  This

value in no way represents the precision of closure of this survey or the accuracy of corner monuments found or placed.

5. It shall be the policy of the City of Rockwall to withhold issuing building permits until all streets, water, sewer and storm

drainage systems have been accepted by the City. The approval of a plat by the City does not constitute any

representation, assurance or guarantee that any building within such plat shall be approved, authorized or permit

therefore issued, nor shall such approval constitute any representation, assurance or guarantee by the City of the

adequacy and availability for water for personal use and fire protection within such plat, as required under Ordinance

83-54.

6. Property owner shall be responsible for maintaining, repairing, and replacing all systems within the drainage and

detention easements.

Case No. P2021-049
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8-INCH IRON ROD FOUND W/ CAP STAMPED "RPLS 5693"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND (C.M)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD W/ ILLEGIBLE CAP FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4-INCH IRON ROD FOUND (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
(VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-WAY)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCKWALL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (INST. NO. 20130000497020) O.P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSTY WALLIS FAMILY PARTNERSHIP NUMBER 2 (VOL. 4153, PG. 271) D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
RUSTY WALLIS FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP #2 (VOL. 4014, PG. 173) D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRUCTURED REA - ROCKWALL LAND, LLC (INST. NO. 20210000001622) O.P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-IRON ROD W/ "RSCI 5034" CAP FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRINGTON FARMS ADDITION PHASE ONE (CAB. D, PG. 141) P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK A

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRINGTON FARMS ADDITION PHASE TWO (CAB. D, PG. 203) P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK A

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (TYP.) (VOL. D, PG. 203) O.P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' DRAINAGE EASEMENT (TYP.) (VOL. D, PG. 141) O.P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
(60' WIDE PUBLIC ROAD) (CAB. D, PG. 203) P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND W/CAP STAMPED "WIER AND ASSOCIATES"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND LEANING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND BENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND W/CAP STAMPED "RPLS 5693"

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT (BY OTHERS)

AutoCAD SHX Text
ADAM MITCHELL (VOL. 5283, PG. 290) D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PHASE 17 INVESTMENTS, LP (VOL. 6388, PG. 218) D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAKER SCHWIMMER VENTURES, LP (INST. NO. 20180000018084) O.P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CITY LIMIT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY LIMIT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF FATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ROCKWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF ROCKWALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CITY OF FATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
APPROXIMATE CITY LIMIT LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GIRDLEY VENTURES - ROCKWALL, LLC (INST. NO. 20190000016748) O.P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLOCK C

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND W/CAP STAMPED "WIER AND ASSOCIATES"

AutoCAD SHX Text
ZONING: LIGHT INDUSTRIAL NO BUILDINGS OBSERVED

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ADDRESS LISTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID# 60700

AutoCAD SHX Text
NO ADDRESS LISTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCEL ID# 12111

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMAINDER OF ROCKWALL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (VOL. 3495, PG. 314) D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/4-INCH IRON ROD FOUND LEANING

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD FOUND (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD W/ "R.S.C.I. RPLS 5034" CAP FOUND (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
N: 7022766.52 E: 2610524.17

AutoCAD SHX Text
N: 7024732.87 E: 2610591.68

AutoCAD SHX Text
30'x30' CORNER CLIP

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' WATER EASEMENT (VOL. 6388, PG. 214) D.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8-INCH IRON ROD w/ "BGE" CAP SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8-INCH IRON ROD w/ "BGE" CAP SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8-INCH IRON ROD w/ "BGE" CAP SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8-INCH IRON ROD w/ "BGE" CAP SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8-INCH IRON ROD w/ "BGE" CAP SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
5/8-INCH IRON ROD w/ "BGE" CAP SET

AutoCAD SHX Text
POINT FOR CORNER 5/8-INCH IRON ROD FOUND LEANING S 48°06' W, 0.40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2-INCH IRON ROD w/ "R.S.C.I. RPLS 5034" CAP FOUND (C.M.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
I-30

AutoCAD SHX Text
N. STODGHILL RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRINGER LN.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HWY 276

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCHELLE RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
CARRINGTON DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATA DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION



G
:
\
T

X
N

\
P

r
o

j
e

c
t
s
\
S

e
e

f
r
i
e

d
_

I
n

d
u

s
t
r
i
a

l
_

P
r
o

p
s
\
9

0
2

8
-
0

0
-
S

e
e

f
r
i
e

d
_

R
o

c
k
w

a
l
l
\
S

V
\
0

4
_

C
A

D
\
9

0
2

8
-
0

0
_

C
P

L
T

.
d

w
g

 
 
 
2

0
2

2
-
0

1
-
1

1
-
1

1
:
0

0
 
 
j
l
o

n
d

o
n

2595 Dallas Parkway, Suite 101, Frisco, TX 75034
BGE, Inc.

TBPELS Registration No. 10193953
Tel: 972-464-4800  •  www.bgeinc.com

Copyright 2022

SEEFRIED INDUSTRIAL

PROPERTIES, INC.

3030 LBJ Freeway, Suite 1650
Dallas, TX 75234

DEVELOPER SURVEYOR

Contact: Mark Peace, R.P.L.S.
Telephone: 972-464-4884  •  Email: mpeace@bgeinc.com

OWNER'S CERTIFICATION

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

DESCRIPTION, of a 26.070-acre (1,135,600-square-foot) tract of land situated in the Robert Boyd Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall,

Rockwall County, Texas; said tract being part of the remainder of that certain tract of land described in Special Warranty Deed to Rockwall Economic

Development Corporation as recorded in Volume 3495, Page 314 of the Deed Records of Rockwall County, Texas, part of that certain tract of land

described in Special Warranty Deed to Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership #2 as recorded in Volume 4014, Page 173 of said Deed Records, part

of that certain tract of land described in Special Warranty Deed to Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership Number 2 as recorded in Volume 4153,

Page 271 of said Deed Records, all of that certain tract of land described in Warranty Deed to Phase 17 Investments, LP as recorded in Volume 6388,

Page 218 of said Deed Records, all of that certain tract of land described in Special Warranty Deed to Rockwall Economic Development Corporation as

recorded in Instrument No. 20130000497020 of the Official Public Records of Rockwall County, Texas, all of that certain tract of land described in

General Warranty Deed to Baker Schwimmer Ventures, LP as recorded in Instrument No. 20180000018084 of said Official Public Records, and part of

that certain tract of land described in Special Warranty Deed to Structured REA - Rockwall Land, LLC tract as recorded in Instrument No.

20210000001622 of said Official Public Records; said 26.070-acre tract being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING, at a 1/2-inch iron rod found for corner in the southeast right-of-way line of Interstate Highway 30 (a variable-width public right-of-way);

said point being the northeast corner of said Phase 17 Investments tract and the northwest corner of that certain tract of land described in General

Warranty Deed to Adam Mitchell as recorded in Volume 5283, Page 290 of said Deed Records;

THENCE, South 02 degrees 42 minutes 43 seconds East, departing the said southeast right-of-way line of Interstate Highway 30 and with an east line

of said Phase 17 Investments tract and the west line of said Mitchell tract, at a distance of 573.12 feet passing a 1/2-inch iron rod with "RSCI 5034" cap

found for the northeast corner of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Instrument No. 20130000497020 tract, continuing for a total

distance of 589.53 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod found for corner; said point being the northernmost southeast corner of said Rockwall Economic

Development Corporation, Instrument No. 20130000497020 tract and in the north line of Carrington Farms Addition Phase Two, an addition to the City

of Fate according to the plat recorded in Cabinet C, Page 203 of the Plat Records of Rockwall County, Texas;

THENCE, South 89 degrees 23 minutes 19 seconds West, with a south line of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Instrument No.

20130000497020 tract and the said north line of Carrington Farms Phase Two, a distance of 94.92 feet to a leaning 3/4-inch iron rod found for corner;

said point being an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Instrument No. 20130000497020 tract and the northwest

corner of said Carrington Farms Phase Two;

THENCE, South 01 degrees 01 minutes 48 seconds East, with the east line of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Instrument No.

20130000497020 tract and the west line of said Carrington Farms Phase Two, a distance of 1,377.34 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped

"BGE" set for corner;

THENCE, North 89 degrees 31 minutes 26 seconds West, departing the said east line of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation,

Instrument No. 20130000497020 tract and the said west line of said Carrington Farms Phase Two, at a distance of 25.22 feet passing at a 1/2-inch iron

rod found for an interior ell corner of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Instrument No. 20130000497020 tract and the southeast

corner of said Phase 17 Investments tract, continuing with the south line of said Phase 17 Investments tract, the south line of said Baker Schwimmer

Ventures tract, and the southernmost north line of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Instrument No. 20130000497020 tract a total

distance of 509.47 feet to a 3/4-inch iron rod found for corner; said point being the southwest corner of said Baker Schwimmer Ventures tract and the

northernmost southeast corner of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Volume 3495, Page 314 tract;

THENCE, North 89 degrees 49 minutes 29 seconds West, with a south line of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Volume 3495, Page

314 tract and the said southernmost north line of Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Instrument No. 20130000497020 tract, a distance of

119.95 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with "BGE" cap set for corner in the east right-of-way line of Data Drive (a 65-foot public right-of-way according to the

plat recorded in Instrument No. 20140000003305 of said Official Public Records);

THENCE, North 01 degrees 41 minutes 18 seconds West, with the said east right-of-way line of Data Drive and into and across said Rockwall

Economic Development Corporation, Volume 3495, Page 314 tract, a distance of 99.16 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with "BGE" cap set for corner in the

north line of said Rockwall Economic Development Corporation, Volume 3495, Page 314 tract and in the south line of said Structured REA - Rockwall

Land, LLC tract; said point being the northeast corner of said Data Drive, and the northeast corner of Capital Boulevard (a 35.5-foot public right-of-way

according to the plat recorded in Instrument No. 20140000003305 of said Official Public Records);

THENCE, South 89 degrees 43 minutes 35 seconds West, with the north right-of-way line of said Capital Boulevard and the said south line of

Structured REA - Rockwall Land tract, a distance of 95.02 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner;

THENCE, in a northerly direction, departing the said north right-of-way line of Capital Boulevard and the said south line of Structured REA - Rockwall

Land tract, into and across said Structured REA - Rockwall Land, LLC tract, said Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership #2 tract, and said Rusty

Wallis Family Limited Partnership Number 2 tract, the following eight (8) calls:

North 01 degrees 41 minutes 11 seconds West, a distance of 30.01 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner;

North 44 degrees 01 minutes 09 seconds East, a distance of 41.90 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner;

North 01 degrees 41 minutes 18 seconds West, a distance of 17.31 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner at the

beginning of a tangent curve to the right;

In a northerly direction with said curve to the right, having a central angle of 23 degrees 13 minutes 20 seconds, a radius of 732.50 feet, a chord

bearing of North 09 degrees 55 minutes 22 seconds East, a chord distance of 294.86 feet, and an arc length of 296.88 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod

with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner at the end of said curve;

North 21 degrees 32 minutes 02 seconds East, a distance of 154.82 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner at the

beginning of a tangent curve to the left;

In a northerly direction with said curve to the left, having a central angle of 22 degrees 47 minutes 56 seconds, a radius of 467.50 feet, a chord

bearing of North 10 degrees 08 minutes 04 seconds East, a chord distance of 184.80 feet, and an arc length of 186.02 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod

with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner at the end of said curve;

North 01 degrees 15 minutes 53 seconds West, a distance of 540.60 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner in a north

line of said Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership #2 tract and the south line of said Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership Number 2 tract;

North 01 degrees 12 minutes 05 seconds West, a distance of 436.32 feet to a 5/8-inch iron rod with cap stamped "BGE" set for corner in the said

southeast right-of-way line of Interstate Highway 30; said point being in the north line of said Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership Number 2

tract; from said point a 1/2-inch iron rod found bears South 72 degrees 46 minutes West, a distance of 120.5 feet for the northwest corner of said

Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership Number 2 tract and the northernmost northeast corner of said Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership #2

tract;

THENCE, North 72 degrees 45 minutes 46 seconds East, with the said southeast right-of-way line of Interstate Highway 30, the said north line of Rusty

Wallis Family Limited Partnership Number 2 tract, the north line of said Baker Schwimmer Ventures tract, and the north line of said Phase 17

Investments tract, at a distance of 33.82 feet passing the northeast corner of said Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership Number 2 tract and the

northwest corner of said Baker Schwimmer Ventures tract, from said point a leaning 5/8-inch iron rod found bears South 48 degrees 06 minutes West,

a distance of 0.4 feet, continuing for a total distance of 652.10 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING;

CONTAINING: 26.070 acres or 1,135,600 square feet of land, more or less.

OWNER'S DEDICATION

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

I (we) the undersigned owner(s) of the land shown on this plat, and designated herein as the SEEFRIED ADDITION, LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 1 subdivision to the City of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto, hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets, alleys, parks, water courses,

drains, easements and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration therein expressed. I (we) further certify that all other parties who have a mortgage or lien interest in the SEEFRIED ADDITION, LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 1 subdivision have been notified and signed this plat. I (we) understand

and do hereby reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the purposes stated and for the mutual use and accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or using same. I (we) also understand the following;

1. No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the utility easements as described herein.

2. Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any buildings, fences, trees, shrubs, or other growths or improvements which in any way endanger or interfere with construction, maintenance or efficiency of their respective system on any of these easement strips; and any

public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or egress to, from and upon the said easement strips for purpose of construction, reconstruction, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining, and either adding to or removing all or part of their respective system without the necessity of, at any time, procuring

the permission of anyone.

3. The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting from or occasioned by the establishment of grade of streets in the subdivision.

4. The developer and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain improvements.

5. The developer shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage patterns and drainage controls such that properties within the drainage area are not adversely affected by storm drainage from the development.

6. No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this addition by the owner or any other person until the developer and/or owner has complied with all requirements of the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Rockwall regarding improvements with respect to the entire block

on the street or streets on which property abuts, including the actual installation of streets with the required base and paving, curb and gutter, water and sewer, drainage structures, storm structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to the specifications of the City of Rockwall; or

Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by the city's engineer and/or city administrator, computed on a private commercial rate basis, has been made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement signed by the developer and/or owner, authorizing the

city to make such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates, or have the same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the escrow deposit, should the developer and/or owner fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time stated in such written agreement, but in no case

shall the City be obligated to make such improvements itself. Such deposit may be used by the owner and/or developer as progress payments as the work progresses in making such improvements by making certified requisitions to the city secretary, supported by evidence of work done; or

Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond with the city secretary in a sum equal to the cost of such improvements for the designated area, guaranteeing the installation thereof within the time stated in the bond, which time shall be fixed by the city council of the City of Rockwall.

I (we) further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction's made herein are proportional to the impact of the Subdivision upon the public services required in order that the development will comport with the present and future growth needs of the City; I (we), my (our) successors and assigns hereby waive

any claim, damage, or cause of action that I (we) may have as a result of the dedication of exactions made herein.

Witness, my hand this the _____ day of ____________________, 2022.

RECOMMENDED FOR FINAL APPROVAL

___________________________________ ___________________

Planning and Zoning Commission Date

APPROVED

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of SEEFRIED ADDITION, LOTS 1 AND 2, BLOCK 1, an addition to the City of Rockwall, Texas, was approved by the City

Council of the City of Rockwall on the day of ____________________, 2022.

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such addition is recorded in the office of the county clerk, within 180 days from said date of final approval by the

city engineer. Said addition shall be subject to all the requirements of these subdivision regulations.

WITNESS OUR HANDS, this day of ____________________, 2022.

_________________________ _________________________ _________________________

Mayor, City of Rockwall City Secretary, City of Rockwall City Engineer, City of Rockwall

SURVEYOR'S CERTIFICATE

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

THAT, I Gregory Mark Peace, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey of the land, and that the corner monuments

shown thereon were properly placed under my personal supervision.

___________________________________

Gregory Mark Peace, RPLS No. 6608

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared Gregory Mark Peace, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed

to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this day of ____________________, 2022.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

___________________________________

My Commission Expires:

CONVEYANCE PLAT

SEEFRIED ADDITION

LOTS 1, 2, AND X, BLOCK 1

3 LOTS - 23.489 ACRES

BEING SITUATED IN THE

ROBERT BOYD IRVINE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 120

CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

JANUARY 2022

SHEET 2 OF 2

Case No. P2021-049

By: Baker Schwimmer Ventures, LP

__________________________________________

Name

Title

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared ____________________, known to me to be the person whose name is

subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this day of ____________________, 2022.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

___________________________________

My Commission Expires:

By: Phase 17 Investments, LP

__________________________________________

Name

Title

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared ____________________, known to me to be the person whose name is

subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this day of ____________________, 2022.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

___________________________________

My Commission Expires:

By: Rockwall Economic Development Corporation

__________________________________________

Name

Title

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared ____________________, known to me to be the person whose name is

subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this day of ____________________, 2022.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

___________________________________

My Commission Expires:

By: Rusty Wallis Family Limited Partnership #2

__________________________________________

Name

Title

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared ____________________, known to me to be the person whose name is

subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this day of ____________________, 2022.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

___________________________________

My Commission Expires:

By: Structured REA - Rockwall Land, LLC

__________________________________________

Name

Title

STATE OF TEXAS §

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL §

Before me, the undersigned authority, on this day personally appeared ____________________, known to me to be the person whose name is

subscribed to the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged to me that he executed the same for the purpose and consideration therein stated.

Given upon my hand and seal of office this day of ____________________, 2022.

___________________________________

Notary Public in and for the State of Texas

___________________________________

My Commission Expires:

71



9028-00 Seefried Rockwall 

Conveyance Plat - Lot 1 

Closure Report                                                Mon Jan 10 16:33:56 
2022 

                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                  

Northing     Easting      Angle           Distance  Direction        Delta   Radius     Chord Angle    Chord Length   
Arc Length  

7025759.64   2610973.14   S 02°42'43" E     589.53                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025170.77   2611001.04   S 89°23'19" W      94.92                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025169.76   2610906.12   S 01°01'48" E     497.87                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024671.97   2610915.07   S 88°47'55" W     480.34                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024661.90   2610434.84   N 01°15'53" W     469.79                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025131.57   2610424.47   N 01°12'05" W     424.97                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025556.45   2610415.55   N 35°46'50" E      47.93                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025595.33   2610443.58   N 72°45'46" E     554.47                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

Closure Error Distance> 0.0000  

Total Distance> 3159.82  

Polyline Area: 528976 sq ft, 12.144 acres 

 

 

72



9028-00 Seefried Rockwall 

Conveyance Plat - Lot 2 

Closure Report                                                Mon Jan 10 16:36:08 
2022 

                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                  

Northing     Easting      Angle           Distance  Direction        Delta   Radius     Chord Angle    Chord Length   
Arc Length  

7023792.64   2610930.88   N 89°31'26" W     509.47                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023796.87   2610421.43   N 89°49'29" W     119.95                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023797.24   2610301.48   N 01°41'18" W      99.16                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023896.35   2610298.55   N 89°43'35" E     120.66                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023896.93   2610419.22   N 01°15'53" W     510.48                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024407.28   2610407.95                                  Left    20°07'16"   532.50   N 08°47'45" E          186.04       
187.00  

                                                                                                                                  

7024591.14   2610436.40   N 01°15'53" W      70.78                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024661.90   2610434.84   N 88°47'55" E     480.34                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024671.97   2610915.07   S 01°01'48" E     879.47                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

Closure Error Distance> 0.0000  

Total Distance> 2977.32  

Polyline Area: 451334 sq ft, 10.361 acres  

73



9028-00 Seefried Rockwall 

Conveyance Plat - ROW Dedication 

Closure Report                                                Mon Jan 10 16:38:04 
2022 

                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                  

Northing     Easting      Angle           Distance  Direction        Delta   Radius     Chord Angle    Chord Length   
Arc Length  

7025566.40   2610350.33   N 72°45'46" E      97.63                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025595.33   2610443.58   S 35°46'50" W      47.93                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025556.45   2610415.55   S 01°12'05" E     424.97                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025131.57   2610424.47   S 01°15'53" E     540.57                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024591.14   2610436.40                                 Right    22°47'56"   532.50   S 10°08'04" W          210.49       
211.89  

                                                                                                                                  

7024383.93   2610399.36   S 21°32'02" W     154.82                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024239.91   2610342.53                                  Left    23°13'20"   667.50   S 09°55'22" W          268.69       
270.54  

                                                                                                                                  

7023975.24   2610296.23   S 01°41'18" E      78.92                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023896.35   2610298.55   S 89°43'35" W      95.02                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023895.90   2610203.54   N 01°41'11" W      30.01                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

74



7023925.90   2610202.65   N 44°01'09" E      41.90                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023956.03   2610231.77   N 01°41'18" W      17.31                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023973.33   2610231.26                                 Right    23°13'20"   732.50   N 09°55'22" E          294.86       
296.88  

                                                                                                                                  

7024263.77   2610282.07   N 21°32'02" E     154.82                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024407.79   2610338.90                                  Left    22°47'56"   467.50   N 10°08'04" E          184.80       
186.02  

                                                                                                                                  

7024589.70   2610371.41   N 01°15'53" W     540.60                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025130.18   2610359.48   N 01°12'05" W     436.32                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

Closure Error Distance> 0.0000  

Total Distance> 3626.16  

Polyline Area: 112402 sq ft, 2.580 acres 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

75



9028-00 Seefried Rockwall 

Conveyance Plat 

Closure Report                                                Mon Jan 10 16:29:58 
2022 

                                                                                 

                                                                                                                                  

Northing     Easting      Angle           Distance  Direction        Delta   Radius     Chord Angle    Chord Length   
Arc Length  

7025759.64   2610973.14   S 02°42'43" E     589.53                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025170.77   2611001.04   S 89°23'19" W      94.92                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025169.76   2610906.12   S 01°01'48" E    1377.34                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023792.64   2610930.88   N 89°31'26" W     509.47                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023796.87   2610421.43   N 89°49'29" W     119.95                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023797.24   2610301.48   N 01°41'18" W      99.16                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023896.35   2610298.55   S 89°43'35" W      95.02                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023895.90   2610203.54   N 01°41'11" W      30.01                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023925.90   2610202.65   N 44°01'09" E      41.90                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023956.03   2610231.77   N 01°41'18" W      17.31                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7023973.33   2610231.26                                 Right    23°13'20"   732.50   N 09°55'22" E          294.86       
296.88  

76



                                                                                                                                  

7024263.77   2610282.07   N 21°32'02" E     154.82                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7024407.79   2610338.90                                  Left    22°47'56"   467.50   N 10°08'04" E          184.80       
186.02  

                                                                                                                                  

7024589.70   2610371.41   N 01°15'53" W     540.60                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025130.18   2610359.48   N 01°12'05" W     436.32                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

7025566.40   2610350.33   N 72°45'46" E     652.10                                                                                

                                                                                                                                  

Closure Error Distance> 0.0000  

Total Distance> 5241.37  

Polyline Area: 1135600 sq ft, 26.070 acres 

77



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: P2022-002; FINAL PLAT FOR LOT 1, BLOCK A, ROADSIDE ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Final Plat

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. on behalf of Cathy Strother
for the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, Roadside Addition being a 2.7624-acre tract
of land identified as Tract 25-1, of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65 and Tract 17 of the J.
D. McFarland Survey, Abstract No. 145, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned
Commercial (C) District and Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-
205 OV) District, addressed as 2410 S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the
proposed Final Plat.

78



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

DATE: February 7, 2022 

APPLICANT: Bart Carroll, Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. 

CASE NUMBER: P2022-002; Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, Roadside Addition 

SUMMARY 

Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. on behalf of Cathy Strother for the approval of a Final Plat 
for Lot 1, Block A, Roadside Addition being a 2.7624-acre tract of land identified as Tract 25-1, of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract 
No. 65 and Tract 17 of the J. D. McFarland Survey, Abstract No. 145, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned 
Commercial (C) District and Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, addressed as 
2410 S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and take any action necessary. 

PLAT INFORMATION 

 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Final Plat for a 2.7624-acre parcel of land (i.e. Tract 25-1, of the J. Cadle
Survey, Abstract No. 65 and Tract 17 of the J. D. McFarland Survey, Abstract No. 145) for the purpose of combining two
(2) lots into one (1) lot (i.e. Lot 1, Block A, Roadside Addition).

 The subject property was annexed by the City Council on May 19, 1986 by Ordinance No. 86-37. According to the Rockwall
Central Appraisal District (RCAD), currently situated on the subject property are a ~3,520 SF bar/tavern, a 6,800 SF storage
warehouse, and a 6,600 SF industrial building. All of these structures were constructed in 1975. The City’s historic zoning
map indicates the subject property was zoned Commercial (C) District and Agricultural (AG) District as of December 7,
1993.

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Final Plat -- conforming to
the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is
recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements.

 Conditional approval of this Final Plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the
Conditions of Approval section below.

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

If the City Council chooses to approve the Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, Roadside Addition, staff would propose the following 
conditions of approval: 

(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to submittal
of civil engineering plans;

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Final Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state
and federal government.

79



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On January 25, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the final plat by a 
vote of 7-0. 

80



DEVELOPMENT APPLICATION 

City of Rockwall 

STAFF USE ONLY --------------,
PLANNING & ZONING CASE NO. 

Planning and Zoning Department 
385 S. Goliad Street 
Rockwall, Texas 75087 

NOTE: THE APPL/CATION IS NOT CONSIDERED ACCEPTED BY THE 
CITY UNTIL THE PLANNING DIRECTOR AND CITY ENGINEER HAVE 
SIGNED BELOW. 

DIRECTOR OF PLANNING: 

CITY ENGINEER: 

PLEASE CHECK THE APPROPRIATE BOX BELOW TO INDICATE THE TYPE OF DEVELOPMENT REQUEST [SELECT ONLY ONE BOX]: 

PLATTING APPL/CAT/ON FEES: 

0 MASTER PLAT ($100.00 + $15.00 ACRE)
0 PRELIMINARY PLAT ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1 
0 FINAL PLAT ($300.00 + $20.00 ACRE) 1 

0 REPLAT ($300.00 + $20.00 ACRE) 1 
�MENDING OR MINOR PLAT ($150.00)

0 PLAT REINSTATEMENT REQUEST (S100.00)

SITE PLAN APPL/CATION FEES: 

0 SITE PLAN ($250.00 + $20.00 ACRE) 1 

0 AMENDED SITE PLAN/ELEVATIONS/LANDSCAPING PLAN ($100.00)

PROPERTY INFORMATION [PLEASE PRINT)

ADDRESS 241 0 S. Goliad Street

SUBDIVISION

GENERAL LOCATION SW side S. Goliad Street

ZONING APPL/CATION FEES: 

0 ZONING CHANGE ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1
0 SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (S200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1
0 PD DEVELOPMENT PLANS ($200.00 + $15.00 ACRE) 1

OTHER APPL/CATION FEES: 

0 TREE REMOVAL ($75.00)
0 VARIANCE REQUEST (S100.00)
NOTES: 

': IN DETERMINING THE FEE. PLEASE USE THE EXACT ACREAGE WHEN
MULTIPLYING BY THE PER ACRE AMOUNT. FOR REQUESTS ON LESS THAN ONE
ACRE, ROUND UP TO ONE (1) ACRE. 

LOT BLOCK

ZONING, SITE PLAN AND PLATTING INFORMATION [PLEASE PRINT)

CURRENT ZONING Commercial & AG

PROPOSED ZONING

ACREAGE 2. 7624 ac LOTS [CURRENT]

CURRENT USE

PROPOSED USE

LOTS [PROPOSED] 1

□ SITE PLANS AND PLATS: BY CHECKING THIS BOX YOU ACKNOWLEDGE THAT DUE TO THE PASSAGE OF HB3167 THE CITY NO LONGER HAS FLEXIBILITY WITH 
REGARD TO ITS APPROVAL PROCESS, AND FAILURE TO ADDRESS ANY OF STAFF'S COMMENTS BY THE DATE PROVIDED ON THE DEVELOPMENT CALENDAR WILL 
RESULT IN THE DENIAL OF YOUR CASE. 

OWNER/APPLICANT/AGENT INFORMATION [PLEASE PRINT/CHECK THE PRIMARY CONTACT/ORIGINAL SIGNATURES ARE REQUIRED]
o OWNER Cathy Strother o APPLICANT Carroll Consulting Group, Inc.

CONTACT PERSON CONTACT PERSON Bart Carroll

ADDRESS 8935 County Road 589 ADDRESS PO Box 11

CITY, STATE & ZIP Nevada, Texas 75173

PHONE

E-MAIL

NOTARY VERIFICATION (REQUIRED]

CITY, STATE & ZIP Lavon, TX 75166

PHONE 972-7 42-4411

E-MAIL 
 

BEFORE ME. THE UNDERSIGNED AUTHORITY, ON THIS DAY PERSONALLY APPEARED ____________ [OWNER] THE UNDERSIGNED, WHO
STATED THE INFORMATION ON THIS APPLICATION TO BE TRUE AND CERTIFIED THE FOLLOWING: 

·/ HEREBY CERTIFY THAT I AM THE OWNER FOR THE PURPOSE OF THIS APPLICATION: ALL INFORMATION SUBMITTED HEREIN IS TRUE AND CORRECT: AND THE APPL/CATION FEE OF 
$ __________ TO COVER THE COST OF THIS APPL/CATION, HAS BEEN PAID TO THE CITY OF ROCKWALL ON THIS THE _______ DAY OF 
----,-,-------,---· 20_. BY SIGNING THIS APPLICATION. I AGREE THAT THE CITY OF ROCKWALL {IE "CITY') IS AUTHORIZED AND PERMITTED TO PROVIDE 
INFORMATION CONTAINED WITHIN THIS APPLICATION TO THE PUBLIC. THE CITY IS ALSO AUTHORIZED AND PERMITTED TO REPRODUCE ANY COPYRIGHTED INFORMATION 
SUBMITTED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THIS APPL/CATION, IF SUCH REPRODUCTION IS ASSOC/A TED OR IN RESPONSE TO A REQUEST FOR PUBLIC INFORMATION.·· 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE ON THIS THE 

OWNER'S SIGNATURE 

NOTARY PUBLIC IN AND FOR THE STATE OF TEXAS 

DEVELOPMENT APPL/CATION 

DAY OF ______ , 20_. 

------

r---------------------------------

1 I 

I --------------------------------' 

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 

81



82



83



”

”

” “ ”

”
” “ ”

”
”

“ ”

”
”

”

”
”

”
”

“ ”

”

84



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: P2022-004; REPLAT FOR LOT 8, BLOCK A, SHARP ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Development Application
Location Map
Replat

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by Gerald Monk of Monk Consulting Engineers on behalf of 5 Sharp Real
Estate for the approval of a Replat for Lot 8, Block A, Sharp Addition being a 1.91-acre parcel
of land identified as Lot 5, Block A, Sharp Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas,
zoned Planned Development District 46 (PD-46) for Commercial (C) District land uses,
addressed as 3301 Springer Road, and take any action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with condition, or deny the
proposed Replat.

85



PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

TO: Mayor and City Council 

DATE: February 7, 2022 

APPLICANT: Gerald Monk, Monk Consulting Engineers 

CASE NUMBER: P2022-004; Replat for Lot 8, Block A, Sharp Addition 

SUMMARY 

Consider a request by Gerald Monk of Monk Consulting Engineers on behalf of 5 Sharp Real Estate for the approval of a Replat 
for Lot 8, Block A, Sharp Addition being a 1.91-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5, Block A, Sharp Addition, City of Rockwall, 
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 46 (PD-46) for Commercial (C) District land uses, addressed as 
3301 Springer Road, and take any action necessary. 

PLAT INFORMATION 

 The applicant is requesting the approval of a Replat for a 1.91-acre parcel of land (i.e. Lot 5, Block A, Sharp Addition) for
the purpose of establishing a 30-foot utility easement and detention easement to facilitate the development of the subject
property. Prior to the applicant’s submittal for this Replat, the subject property was approved for a ~12,000 SF
Office/Warehouse/Distribution Facility [Case No. SP2021-015] by the Planning and Zoning Commission.

 The subject property was annexed -- along with the rest of the land area that makes up Planned Development District 46
(PD-46) -- by the City Council on July 21, 1997 by Ordinance No. 97-14. On March 1, 1999, the City Council approved a
zoning change from an Agricultural (AG) District to Planning Development District 46 (PD-46) [Ordinance No. 99-05]. This
zoning change assigned an underlying zoning of Commercial (C) District for the area, establishing a legally non-conforming
land use for all properties within this Planned Development District (PD-46). On August 2, 2021, the City Council approved
an amendment to Planned Development District 46 (PD-46) [Ordinance No. 21-32] allowing for the Warehouse/Distribution
Center land on the subject property. On August 10, 2021 the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a site plan [Case
No. SP2021-015] to allow the construction of a ~12,000 SF Office/Warehouse/Distribution Facility. Currently, the subject
property is a vacant parcel of land.

 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Replat -- conforming to the
requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is recommended
for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements.

 Conditional approval of this Replat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the
Conditions of Approval section below.

 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial
compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances.

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 

If the City Council chooses to approve the Replat for Lot 8, Block A, Sharp Addition, staff would propose the following conditions 
of approval: 

(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to submittal
of civil engineering plans;

86



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Replat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 
Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On January 25, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the replat by a vote 
of 7-0. 

87



88



LI

PD-46

SFE-1.5

SPRINGER RD

")276

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

City of Rockwall The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user. I

0 90 180 270 36045
Feet

Case Location Map =

Lot 8, Block A, Sharp Addition
P2022-004

89



N 88°31'18" E    4
27.19'

S
 
0
1
°
3
5
'
3
0
"
 
E

 
 
 
 
1
9
3
.
8
5
'

S 88°15'48" W
    

428.46'

LOT 4, BLOCK A

SHARP ADDITION

CAB. I, SLIDE 125-126

P.R.R.C.T.

30' UTILITY & DRAINAGE

EASEMENT

INST. NO. 2012-00460818

O.P.R.R.C.T;

VOL. 6662, PG. 125

D.R.R.C.T.

30' PUBLIC ACCESS &

DRAINAGE EASEMENT

INST. NO.

20150000000701

O.P.R.R.C.T.

24' FIRE LANE &

PUBLIC ACCESS

EASEMENT

INST. NO.

20150000000701

O.P.R.R.C.T.

<CM>

1/2" IRF

LOT 1, BLOCK A

YETTS ADDITION

CAB. H, SLIDE 254

P.R.R.C.T.

1/2" IRF

"TXHS"

(CALLED 80' RIGHT-OF-WAY)

1/2" IRF

"TXHS"

LOT 6, BLOCK A

SHARP ADDITION

INST.NO. 20150000000701

O.P.R.R.C.T.

LATTIMORE

MATERIALS

COMPANY, L.P.

VOL. 1986, PG. 20

D.R.R.C.T.

<CM>

5/8" IRF

NAIL IN

CONCRETE

<CM>

5/8" IRF

L1

L
2

L3

L
4

L5

L
6

L9

L

1

2

L13

L14

L

1

5

30' UTILITY

EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

9,143 SQ. FT.

N
 
0
1
°
1
3
'
2
2
"
 
W

 
 
 
 
1
9
5
.
7
9
'

L18

L
1
9

L20

L
2
1

L
2
3

L24

L25 L

2

6

L
2
7

L

2

8

L

2

9

L

3

0

L31

DETENTION POND

EASEMENT

(BY THIS PLAT)

32,280 SQ. FT.

LOT 7, BLOCK A

5 SHARP PROPERTIES

83,348 SQ. FT.

1.91 ACRES

SPRINGER  ROAD
CENTERLINE

4
0
.
0
'

4
0
.
0
'

8
0
.
0
'

4
0
.
0
'

4
0
.
0
'

<CM>

5/8" IRF

DEED= 888.76'

MEAS.= 889.77'

P
L
A

T
=

 
4
2
0
.
6
8
'

M
E

A
S

.
=

 
4
2
0
.
8
1
'

24' FIRELANE LANE &

PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT

INST.NO. 20150000000701

O.P.R.R.C.T.

LOT 2, BLOCK B

ROCKWALL TECHNOLOGY

PARK, PHASE III

CAB. H, SLIDE 273

P.R.R.C.T.

24' FIRELANE LANE &

PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENT

INST.NO. 20150000000701

O.P.R.R.C.T.

5
6
1
.
2
4
'

P
L
A

T
 
&

M
E

A
S

.
=

 
6
7
.
0
7
'

15' WATER EASEMENT

INST.NO. 20150000000701

O.P.R.R.C.T.

15' BUILDING LINE

(BY ZONING)

DRAINAGE & DETENTION

EASEMENT

CAB. H, SLIDE 273

P.R.R.C.T.

25' PEDESTRIAN, LANDSCAPE

UTILITY EASEMENT

CAB. H, SLIDE 273

P.R.R.C.T.

POINT OF

BEGINNING

L16

L
1
7

L22

STATE PLANE

COORDINATES

N: 7,019,603.50

E: 2,609,408.92

STATE PLANE

COORDINATES

N: 7,019,797.28

E: 2,609,403.54

8
0
.
0
'

L

3

2

L33

L

3

4

L

3

5

L
3
6

L
3
7

L
3
8

L39

L40

L41

L

4

2

L
4
3

L

4

4

L45

L

4

6

L47

L

4

8

L
4
9

L
5
0

L

5

1

L

5

2

L

5

3

L54

L

5

5

L
5
6

L11

L
1
0

L
8

L7

L

5

7

SCALE 1"=50'

0 502550 25

EASEMENT LINE TABLE

LINE #

L1

L2

L3

L4

L5

L6

L7

L8

L9

L10

L11

L12

L13

L14

L15

L16

L17

L18

L19

L20

LENGTH

30.00'

30.21'

5.38'

12.24'

20.00'

12.24'

246.90'

31.42'

20.00'

31.51'

48.13'

45.07'

24.91'

3.46'

68.61'

332.87'

19.86'

10.00'

19.65'

5.82'

DIRECTION

N88°31'18"E

S1°13'22"E

N88°46'38"E

N1°13'22"W

N88°46'38"E

S1°13'22"E

N88°46'38"E

N1°13'22"W

N88°31'18"E

S1°13'22"E

N88°46'38"E

N43°46'38"E

N88°31'18"E

S1°35'30"E

S43°46'38"W

S88°46'38"W

S1°13'22"E

N90°00'00"W

N1°13'22"W

S88°46'38"W

EASEMENT LINE TABLE

LINE #

L21

L22

L23

L24

L25

L26

L27

L28

L29

L30

L31

L32

L33

L34

L35

L36

L37

L38

L39

L40

LENGTH

20.00'

81.37'

12.55'

76.78'

53.03'

9.34'

47.53'

10.24'

31.42'

22.58'

39.15'

21.25'

19.47'

22.07'

9.05'

82.42'

15.51'

56.91'

15.42'

11.48'

DIRECTION

N1°13'22"W

N88°31'18"E

N1°28'42"W

N87°42'17"E

N89°49'36"E

N58°08'07"E

N84°41'36"E

S74°44'02"E

N74°18'40"E

S42°23'22"E

N89°54'10"E

S69°49'52"E

N89°21'03"E

S12°50'35"E

S57°24'49"E

S1°34'54"E

S85°11'27"E

S1°35'30"E

S88°15'48"W

N1°34'54"W

EASEMENT LINE TABLE

LINE #

L41

L42

L43

L44

L45

L46

L47

L48

L49

L50

L51

L52

L53

L54

L55

L56

L57

LENGTH

58.07'

17.60'

90.94'

5.91'

15.07'

18.48'

122.56'

13.59'

67.87'

37.50'

59.24'

32.55'

64.37'

14.43'

24.36'

16.89'

36.15'

DIRECTION

S87°36'31"W

N59°16'36"W

N1°45'33"W

N11°16'43"W

S89°10'44"W

N55°26'14"W

S87°05'32"W

S53°05'14"W

N85°29'31"W

S1°32'05"E

S20°23'21"W

N48°33'22"W

N19°41'53"W

N88°09'43"E

N51°19'07"E

N7°59'25"W

N12°37'29"E

OWNER'S CERTIFICATE:

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

WHEREAS, 5 Sharp Real Estate, L.L.C., is the sole owner of a tract of land situated in the J.A. Ramsey

Survey, Abstract No. 186 in the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, and being known as Lot 5, Block

A, Sharp Addition, an addition to the City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, according to the Plat thereof

recorded in Instrument Number 20150000000701, Official Public Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and

being the same tract of land described in General Warranty Deed to 5 Sharp Real Estate, L.L.C., recorded in

Instrument No. 20210000010533, Official Public Records, Rockwall County, Texas, being more particularly

described by metes and bounds as follows:

BEGINNING at a found 1/2 inch iron rod with plastic yellow cap stamped "TXHS", said point being the

northeast corner of Lot 4, Block A, of said Sharp Addition, also being the northwest corner of said Lot 5, Block

A, lying on the south right-of-way of Springer Road (called 80' right-of-way);

THENCE North 88 degrees 31 minutes 18 seconds East, along the south right-of-way line of said Springer

Road, a distance of 427.19 feet to a found 5/8 inch iron rod, said point being the northeast corner of said Lot

5, Block A, also being the northwest corner of that certain tract of land described in Special Warranty Deed to

Lattimore Materials Company, L.P. recorded in Volume 1986, Page 20, Deed Records, Rockwall County,

Texas;

THENCE South 01 degrees 35 minutes 30 seconds East, departing the south right-of-way line of said

Springer Road, along the west line of said Lattimore tract, a distance of 193.85 feet to a nail in concrete

found, said point being the southeast corner of said Lot 5, Block A, also being the northeast corner of Lot 6,

Block A of said Sharp Addition;

THENCE South 88 degrees 15 minutes 48 seconds West, departing the west line of said Lattimore tract,

along the north line of said Lot 6, Block A, a distance of 428.46 feet to a found 1/2 inch iron rod with plastic

yellow cap stamped "TXHS", said point being the northwest corner of said Lot 6, Block A, also being the

southwest corner of said Lot 5, Block A, lying on the east line of said Lot 4, Block A;

THENCE North 01 degrees 13 minutes 22 seconds West, along the east line of said Lot 4, Block A, a

distance of 195.79 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING and containing 83,348 square feet or 1.91 acre of land.

FINAL PLAT

5 SHARP PROPERTIES

LOT 7, BLOCK A

83,348 SQUARE FEET / 1.91 ACRES

BEING A REPLAT OF LOT 5, BLOCK A

SHARP ADDITION

IN THE J.A. RAMSEY SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 186

CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

DATE: 09/23/2021 / JOB # 2100165-2 / SCALE= 1" = 50' / DRAWN: JAM

SURVEYORS CERTIFICATE:

I, Gary E. Johnson, do hereby certify that I prepared this plat from an actual and accurate survey of the

land, and that the corner monuments shown thereon were properly placed under my personal supervision.

____________________________________

Gary E. Johnson, R.P.L.S. No. 5390

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the said County and State, on this day

personally appeared Gary E. Johnson, known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to the

foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same for the purposes and

considerations therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated and as the act and deed therein stated.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this _________ day of _______________, 2021.

_____________________________________

Notary Signature

OWNER'S DEDICATION:

NOW THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

I the undersigned owner of the land shown on this plat, and designated herein as the 5 SHARP

PROPERTIES subdivision to the City of Rockwall, Texas, and whose name is subscribed hereto,

hereby dedicate to the use of the public forever all streets, alleys, parks, water courses, drains,

easements and public places thereon shown on the purpose and consideration therein expressed. I

further certify that all other parties who have a mortgage or lien interest in the 5 SHARP

PROPERTIES subdivision have been notified and signed this plat. I understand and do hereby

reserve the easement strips shown on this plat for the purposes stated and for the mutual use and

accommodation of all utilities desiring to use or using same. I also understand the following;

1. No buildings shall be constructed or placed upon, over, or across the utility easement as

described herein.

2. Any public utility shall have the right to remove and keep removed all or part of any buildings,

fences, trees, shrubs, or other growths or improvements which in any way endanger or interfere with

construction, maintenance or efficiency of their respective system on any of these easement strips;

and any public utility shall at all times have the right of ingress or egress to, from and upon the said

easement strips for purposes of construction, reconstruction, inspecting, patrolling, maintaining, and

either adding to or removing all or part of their respective system without the necessity of, at any

time, procuring the permission of anyone.

3. The City of Rockwall will not be responsible for any claims of any nature resulting from or

occasioned by the establishment of grade of streets in the subdivision.

4. The developer and subdivision engineer shall bear total responsibility for storm drain

improvements.

5. The developer shall be responsible for the necessary facilities to provide drainage patterns and

drainage controls such that properties within the drainage area are not adversely affected by storm

drainage from the development.

6.  No house dwelling unit, or other structure shall be constructed on any lot in this addition by the

owner or any other person until the developer and/or owner has complied with all requirements of

the Subdivision Regulations of the City of Rockwall regarding improvements with respect to the

entire block on the street or streets on which property abuts, including the actual installation of

streets with the required base and paving, curb and gutter, water and sewer, drainage structures,

storm structures, storm sewers, and alleys, all according to the specifications of the City of Rockwall;

or

Until an escrow deposit, sufficient to pay for the cost of such improvements, as determined by the

city's engineer and/or city administrator, computed on a private commercial rate basis, has been

made with the city secretary, accompanied by an agreement signed by the developer and/or owner,

authorizing the city to make such improvements at prevailing private commercial rates, or have the

same made by a contractor and pay for the same out of the escrow deposit, should the developer

and/or owner fail or refuse to install the required improvements within the time stated in such written

agreement, but in no case shall the City be obligated to make such improvements by making

certified requisitions to the city secretary, supported by evidence of work done; or

Until the developer and/or owner files a corporate surety bond with the city secretary in a sum equal

to the cost of such improvements for the designated area, guaranteeing the installation thereof

within the time stated in the bond, which time shall be fixed by the city council of the City of

Rockwall.

I further acknowledge that the dedications and/or exaction's made herein are proportional to the

impact of the Subdivision upon the public services required in order that the development will

comport with the present and future growth needs of the City; I, my successors and assigns hereby

waive any claim, damage or cause of action that I may have as a result of the dedication of

exactions made herein.

WITNESS MY HAND THIS ______ DAY OF ______________________, 2021.

5 Sharp Real Estate, LLC

_____________________________________

Kris Sharp - Managing Member

STATE OF TEXAS

COUNTY OF ROCKWALL

BEFORE ME, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for the said County and State, on

this day personally appeared Kris Sharp known to me to be the person whose name is subscribed to

the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she executed the same for the purposes

and considerations therein expressed and in the capacity therein stated and as the act and deed

therein stated.

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND AND SEAL OF OFFICE, this _________ day of _______________,

2021.

_____________________________________

Notary Signature

VICINITY MAP - NOT TO SCALE

GENERAL NOTES:

1) Bearings and elevations are based on NAD83,

North American Datum of 1983.

2) The purpose of this replat is to add a 30 foot

utility easement and a detention pond easement.

3) This property is in Zone(s) X of the Flood

Insurance Rate Map, Community Panel No.

48397C0045 L, which bears an effective date of

September 26, 2008 and IS NOT in a Special Flood

Hazard Area.

4) City of Rockwall Geodetic Control Monuments

**Station No. COR-8 (Benchmark)

N: 7018063.113   E: 2609533.682 Elev.= 600.48'

**Station No. COR-9 (Benchmark)

N: 7020550.132   E: 2607463.893   Elev.= 595.63'

5) Property owner is responsible for all

maintenance, repair and replacement of all

drainage and detention systems.

SURVEYOR

10610 Metric Drive, Suite 124,  Dallas, TX  75243
Office 214-340-9700   Fax 214-340-9710

txheritage.com

OWNER

5 SHARP REAL ESTATE, LLC

3021 RIDGE ROAD

SUITE NO. 160

ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75032

LEGEND:

CM    CONTROLLING MONUMENT

IRF    IRON ROD FOUND

IRS    IRON ROD SET WITH YELLOW CAP 

   STAMPED "TXHS"

VOL., PG.    VOLUME, PAGE

O.P.R.R.C.T.  OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

D.R.R.C.T.    DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

P.R.R.C.T.    PLAT RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS

INST. NO.    INSTRUMENT NUMBER

                        30 FOOT UTILITY EASEMENT

                        DETENTION POND EASEMENT

______________________________

City Secretary

APPROVED:

I hereby certify that the above and foregoing plat of an addition to the

City of Rockwall, Texas, was approved by the City Council of the City

of Rockwall on the ______ day of ___________________, 2021.

This approval shall be invalid unless the approved plat for such

addition is recorded in the office of the County Clerk of Rockwall

County, Texas, within one hundred eighty (180) days from said date of

final approval.

WITNESS OUR HANDS, this ______ day of ____________________,

2021.

______________________________

Mayor, City of Rockwall

__________________________________       ______________

Planning & Zoning Commission, Chairman        Date

______________________________

City Engineer

SITE

PRELIMINARY, THIS DOCUMENT SHALL NOT BE RECORDED

FOR ANY PURPOSES AND SHALL NOT BE USED OR VIEWED

OR RELIED UPON AS A FINAL SURVEY DOCUMENT. (12/17/2021)

90

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 5, BLOCK A SHARP ADDITION INST. NO. 20150000000701 O.P.R.R.C.T.

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.A. RAMSEY SURVEY, A-186

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
SPRINGER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCHELLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
Creek

AutoCAD SHX Text
Branch

AutoCAD SHX Text
Creek

AutoCAD SHX Text
Creek

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
549

AutoCAD SHX Text
276

AutoCAD SHX Text
276

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
 BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATA DR

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAPITAL BLVD

AutoCAD SHX Text
DISCOVERY



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO: Mayor and City Council 
 
FROM: Mary Smith, City Manager 
 
DATE: February 2, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Amending the Fiscal Year 2022 Budget 
  
 
The final General fund budget summary sheets for the fiscal year 2022 to appropriate funds 
from the Tree Mitigation Fund to be used toward the Leadership Rockwall project in Lofland 
Park.  This will increase the Parks Agricultural supplies line item by $17,500.   
 
The Council is asked to consider adoption of the Ordinance amending the FY2022 budget.   
 
 

91



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-09 

   
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL FOR THE FISCAL YEAR OCTOBER 1, 2021 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2022; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 

 
Section 1. That the budget of the City of Rockwall for the fiscal year October 

1, 2021, through September 30, 2022, be and the same is hereby amended as such 
amendment will increase the Parks Operations Agricultural Supplies line item by 
$17,500. 

 
Section 2.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage, and it is so ordained. 
 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, THIS 7th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 

 
 
 

    
ATTEST:  Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 
  
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
  
Frank Garza, City Attorney 

92



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Kristy Teague, City Secretary/Asst. to the City Mgr.

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: POLICE DEPARTMENT'S GRANT APPLICATION

Attachments
Grant Summary
Grant Application
Resolution

Summary/Background Information
The enclosed information talks at length about this grant application. It is important to note that
no local 'matching funds' will be required.

Action Needed
Council is asked to consider approving the resolution and authorizing the City Manager to apply
for and accept the grant funding on behalf of the City / the Police Department, including
executing all required documents.

93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: BID AWARD FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 2022-23 POLICE PURSUIT
MOTORCYCLE

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
Approved is $42,680 in the Police Patrol operating budget to replace a 2013 model Traffic
Division Motorcycle. 

The 2022-23 model Harley-Davidson motorcycle for police pursuit has been competitively bid
and available for purchase from Longhorn Harley-Davidson through the Texas Association of
School Boards Buy Board Cooperative Purchasing Program contract 601-19.  The City, as a
member and participant in this cooperative program, has met all formal bidding requirements
pertaining to this purchase.  Cost of the bike and emergency equipment totals 42,435.53.

Action Needed
For Council consideration is the bid award to Longhorn Harley-Davidson for the 2022/23 Harley-
Davidson FLTHP Police Pursuit Motorcycle for $42,435.53 and authorize the City Manager to
execute a purchase order for the new bike.

113



114



115



116



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Amy Williams, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: W. QUAIL RUN ROAD SANITARY SEWER IMPROVEMENT PROJECT

Attachments
Contract

Summary/Background Information
Staff requested a proposal from Birkhoff, Hendricks and Carter, L.L.P. to provide the
engineering design, construction plans and specifications for this sanitary sewer project. The
contract proposal for this project is $57,310.00.  

Action Needed
Staff requests that the City Council consider approving the professional engineering services
contract for Birkhoff, Hendricks and Carter, L.L.P., to perform the engineering design services
and specifications in an amount not to exceed $57,310.00 and authorize the City Manager to
execute the contract.

117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Kristy Teague, City Secretary / Asst. to the City Manager

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: RESOLUTION CALLING THE MAY 7, 2022 GENERAL ELECTION

Attachments
Resolution (Order Calling Election)

Summary/Background Information
This resolution serves to call a General Election to be held on May 7, 2022 for the purpose of
electing three City Council Members - one each for Places 2, 4 and 6. Terms for all elected
Rockwall City Council Members are for a period of two years. Two of the three incumbents -
Trace Johannesen, Place 4; and Anna Campbell, Place 6 - are eligible to run for re-election,
and both have filed an Application for a Place on the Ballot to do so. Councilmember John
Hohenshelt, who currently serves in Place 2, will be ‘terming out,’ having served the maximum
allowable length of time according to the city charter. So far, applicant Mark Moeller has filed to
run in that seat (Place 2). The deadline to file an application to run for city council is Friday,
February 18 at 5:00 p.m. If it turns out that all three seats end up being 'uncontested,' an order
cancelling the election will be brought before Council for consideration at a future date. It should
be noted that a joint election agreement between the City, RISD and Rockwall County will also
be brought forth at a later date, as the City of Rockwall will again appreciate the opportunity to
have the Rockwall County Elections Office administer the city's election on its behalf.

Action Needed
Council is asked to consider approving the resolution calling the May 7, 2022 City of Rockwall
General Election.

135



Resolution #22-01     Calling May 7, 2022  General Election 
Page 1 

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
RESOLUTION NO. 22-01 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, CALLING A GENERAL ELECTION TO 
BE HELD JOINTLY WITH THE ROCKWALL INDEPENDENT 
SCHOOL DISTRICT AND ADMINISTERED BY THE 
ROCKWALL COUNTY ELECTIONS ADMINISTRATOR ON 
SATURDAY, MAY 7, 2022 FOR THE PURPOSE OF ELECTING 
THREE (3) COUNCIL MEMBERS - ONE (1) FOR PLACE 2, ONE 
(1) FOR PLACE 4, AND ONE (1) FOR PLACE 6 - EACH FOR 
TWO  (2) YEAR TERMS; DESIGNATING THE ENTIRE CITY AS 
ONE ELECTION PRECINCT; DESIGNATING THE POLLING 
PLACES; DESIGNATING FILING DEADLINES: ORDERING 
NOTICES OF ELECTION TO BE POSTED AND PUBLISHED AS 
PRESCRIBED BY LAW IN CONNECTION WITH SAID 
ELECTION; PROVIDNG A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
WHEREAS, Section 41.001(a) of the Texas Election Code, as amended (the “Code”) 

specifies that each general or special election in this state shall be held on the first Saturday in 
May in an even-numbered year and that a general election of a city may be held on such day; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas (hereinafter referred to as 
the “City”), in accordance with its City Charter, Section 5.01, has determined that the City shall 
conduct general municipal elections on the first Saturday in May 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, Section 271.002(a) of the Texas Election Code authorizes two or more 
political subdivisions to enter into an agreement to hold elections jointly in the election precincts 
that can be served by common polling places; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockwall and Rockwall Independent School District desire that a 
joint election be held in order to provide a convenient, simple, and cost-saving election to the 
voters in their respective jurisdictions; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Rockwall and Rockwall County Elections Administrator will enter 
into an agreement setting out their respective duties and responsibilities for the May 7, 2022 
election; and 
 
 WHEREAS, by this Resolution, it is the intention of the City Council to:  (i) call for said 
election to be held on said date, (ii) designate the entire City as one election precinct, (iii) 
designate the Rockwall County Library as the polling place for the election and (iv) establish and 
set forth procedures for conducting said election. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 

 

136



Resolution #22-01     Calling May 7, 2022  General Election 
Page 2 

Section 1.  Incorporation of Premises.  That all of the above premises are found to be 
true and correct and are incorporated into the body of this Resolution as if copied in their 
entirety.   
 

Section 2.  Election Date, Purpose of Election, Officers and Terms of Office.  That a 
General Election is hereby ordered to be held in and throughout the City of Rockwall on 
Saturday, May 7, 2022, for the purpose of electing three (3) Council Members - one (1) for 
Place 2, one (1) for Place 4, and one (1) for Place 6 - each for two (2) year terms. 
 

Section 3.  Eligibility for Candidacy.  That in accordance with Section 22.032 of the 
Texas Local Government Code and Section 5.02 of the City Charter of the City of Rockwall, no 
person shall be eligible for the office of Council Member, unless he/she is a registered voter who 
shall have resided within the corporate limits of the City, or recently annexed territory, for at 
least twelve (12) months prior to the filing deadline, shall be twenty-one years old and not be in 
arrears in payment of taxes or other liabilities due the City. In accordance with Section 5.04 of 
the City Charter, a plurality vote is required to be elected and declared the winner. 
 

Section 4.  Application for a Place on the Ballot.  That in accordance with Section 
143.007 of the Code, any eligible and qualified person may have his/her name printed upon the 
official ballot as a candidate for the offices herein before set forth by filing his/her sworn 
application with the City Secretary not earlier than 8:00 a.m., January 19, 2022 and not later 
than 5:00 p.m., February 18, 2022.  Each such application shall be on a form as prescribed by 
Section 141.031 of the Code.  The order in which the names of the candidates are to be printed 
on the ballot shall be determined by a drawing by the City Secretary as provided by Section 
52.094 of the Code.  Notice of the time and place for such drawing shall be given in accordance 
with the Code. 
 

Section 5.  Election Precinct, Polling Place, and Election Hours.  That the entire City 
of Rockwall, Texas shall constitute one (1) election precinct for the election, and the election 
day polling place is hereby designated to be located at the Rockwall County Library – 1215 E. 
Yellow Jacket Lane, Rockwall, TX 75087.  In accordance with and pursuant to the requirements 
of the Code, said polling place shall be open from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. on the date of the 
election (Saturday, May 7). 
 

Section 6.  Early Voting.  That the main location for early voting by personal 
appearance shall be the Rockwall County Library - 1215 E. Yellow Jacket Lane  Rockwall, TX 
75087 - and that early voting shall be conducted there on the following dates and times: 

 
Monday, April 25 through Friday, April 29 from 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m.; 
Saturday, April 30 from 10:00 a.m. until 3:00 p.m.; 
Sunday, May 1 (CLOSED) 
Monday, May 2 and Tuesday, May 3 from 7:00 a.m. until 7:00 p.m. 
 
 Qualified voters of the City of Rockwall may also vote early at any of the additional, 

countywide (branch) early voting locations open under contract with the Rockwall County 
Elections Administration. Said locations, once determined, will be advertised on the City of 
Rockwall website at: www.rockwall.com/citysec.asp under the “City Elections” heading. 

 
 Applications for ballot by mail (ABBM) and Federal Postcard Applications (FPCA) shall 
be requested from and mailed to: 
 

137

http://www.rockwall.com/citysec.asp


Resolution #22-01     Calling May 7, 2022  General Election 
Page 3 

 
Rockwall County Election Administrator 
915 Whitmore Drive, Suite D 
Rockwall, TX 75087. 
 
Applications may be obtained by contacting the County Elections Office by phone at (972) 204-
6200 or by e-mail at elections@rockwallcountytexas.com.  The Early Voting Clerk’s website is: 
www.rockwallvotes.com. The last day to receive an application by mail for a ballot to be voted 
by mail is no later than the close of business on April 26, 2022. 
 

Section 7.  Method of Voting.  That ES&S’ ExpressVote System shall be used for early 
voting by personal appearance and for Election Day voting.  Optical scan ballots shall be used 
for early voting by mail.  The City Secretary, acting as chief elections officer, shall ensure at 
least one (1) ES&S ExpressVote “ADA” approved voting machine is provided at the polling 
place as required by Section 61.012, of the Texas Election Code. 
 

Section 8.  Governing Law and Qualified Voters.  That the election shall be held in 
accordance with the Constitution of the State of Texas and the Code, and all resident, qualified 
electors of the city, shall be eligible to vote at the election.   
 

Section 9.  Publication and Posting of the Notice.  That notice of the election in 
English and Spanish shall be given by posting a notice of election on the City Hall bulletin board 
used for posting notices of the meetings of the City Council not less than twenty-one (21) days 
prior to the date upon which the election is to be held, and by publication of said notice at least 
once in a newspaper of general circulation in accordance with Section 2051.44 of the Texas 
Government Code, the date of said publication to be not less than ten (10) days and not more 
than thirty (30) days prior to the date set for the election. 
 

Section 10.  That the Rockwall County Elections Administrator shall serve as the 
Administrator of the election to be held on May 7, 2022.  The Elections Administrator shall 
appoint a sufficient number of judges and clerks in accordance with Chapter 32 Texas Elections 
Code to assist in the proper conduct of the election. 

 
Section 11.  Delivery of Returns: Preservation of Election Records.  That in 

accordance with the City’s contract with the Rockwall County Elections Administrator, the 
returns of said election shall be made in accordance with the Code. All election records and 
supplies shall be preserved by the County, on behalf of the City, in accordance with the Code. 
 
 Section 12.  Representatives. That the following slate of officials and other designated 
persons are hereby authorized but not required to be present to observe the election counting 
process: 

 
• the Mayor and members of the City Council of the City of Rockwall; 
• candidates for the City Council of the City of Rockwall; and 
• the Rockwall City Secretary or her designated representative. 

 
 Section 13. Canvassing of Returns.  That the City Council of the City shall convene 
between May 10, 2020 and May 18, 2022 to canvass the returns of the election in accordance 
with the Texas Election Code. 
 

138

mailto:elections@rockwallcountytexas.com
http://www.rockwallvotes.com/


Resolution #22-01     Calling May 7, 2022  General Election 
Page 4 

Section 14.  Necessary Action.  That the Mayor and the City Secretary of the City, in 
consultation with the City Attorney, are hereby authorized and directed to take any and all 
actions necessary to comply with the provisions of the Code in carrying out and conducting the 
election, whether or not expressly authorized herein. 

Section 15. Recitals. The recitals contained in the preamble hereof are hereby found to 
be true, and such recitals are hereby made a part of this Resolution for all purposes and are 
adopted as a part of the judgment and findings of the City Council. 

Section 16.  Severability. That should any part, section, subsection, paragraph, 
sentence, clause or phrase contained in this resolution be held to be unconstitutional or of no 
force and effect, such holding shall not affect the validity of the remaining portion of this 
resolution, but in all respects said remaining portion shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

Section 17.  Effective Date.  That this resolution shall be in force and effect from and 
after its passage, and it is accordingly so resolved. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, THIS 7th DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 

ATTEST: Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

139



Z2021-052: SUP for Chickens at 1700 E. SH-66 Page | 1 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-05; SUP # S-268 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-05 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-268 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS 
TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW CHICKENS 
ON A 42.66-ACRE TRACT OF LAND, IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 7 OF 
THE D. HARR SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 102, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DEPICTED AND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A 
PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND 
DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Mike Peoples for the approval of a Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) to allow Chickens on a 42.66-acre tract of land described as Tract 7 of the D. Harr 
Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) 
District, situated within the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, addressed as 1700 E. SH-66, and 
being more specifically depicted and described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance, which herein after 
shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing 
body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of 
Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific 
Use Permit (SUP) allowing Chickens as stipulated by Subsection 03.01, Farm Animals and 
Horses, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 
20-02] on the Subject Property; and, 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth 
in Subsection 03.01, Farm Animals and Horses, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and Chapter 6, Animals, of the Municipal Code 
of Ordinances -- as heretofore amended and as may be amended in the future --, and with the 
following conditions: 
 
2.1. OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 

140



Z2021-052: SUP for Chickens at 1700 E. SH-66 Page | 2 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-05; SUP # S-268 

The following conditions pertain to having Chickens on the Subject Property and 
conformance to these conditions are required for continued operations: 

 
(1) Chickens shall be allowed on the subject property as an ancillary use to the existing 

single-family home.  Should the subject property be conveyed, sold, or subdivided the 
City Council reserves the right to review this Specific Use Permit (SUP); however, in no 
case shall the subject property be subdivided in a way that would separate the Chicken 
Coop from the existing single-family home or where the Chicken Coop would exist on 
a property that is less than ten (10) acres in size. 
 

(2) The Chicken Coop shall generally conform to the Site Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this 
ordinance.   
 

(3) The Chickens shall be kept in an enclosed area within a Chicken Coop that provides 
for the free movement of Chickens, and are not permitted to be free range.  The Chicken 
Coop shall conform to the Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 
(4) If the applicant moves the Chicken Coop it shall be moved to a location that is behind 

the front façade of the primary structure and that is a minimum of 20-feet from all 
property lines as depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance.  In addition, the Chicken Coop 
shall be screened from view of adjoining properties. 
 

(5) The number of chickens permitted on the subject property shall be limited to no more 
than ten (10), and no ducks, geese, pigeons, turkeys, roosters, or any other poultry or 
fowl are permitted on the subject property. 

 
(6) The Chickens shall be kept for personal use only and the applicant shall be prohibited 

from selling or operating a commercial animal establishment on the subject property 
(i.e. the offering of animal byproducts -- e.g. eggs, chicken manure, etc. -- or chickens 
for sale on the subject property shall be prohibited). 

 
(7) The Chickens shall be sheltered or confined in such a fashion as to prevent them from 

coming into contact with wild fowl or their excrement. 
 

(8) Ground accumulations of manure shall be collected and properly disposed of so as not 
to create offensive odors, fly breeding, or in any way pose a health hazard or nuisance 
to humans or animals. 

 
2.2. COMPLIANCE 
 

Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP), 
of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development 
Code (UDC) will require compliance to the following: 
 
(1) Upon obtaining a Building Permit, should the homeowner fail to meet the minimum 

operational requirements set forth herein and outline in the Unified Development Code 
(UDC), the City Council may (after proper notice) initiate proceedings to revoke the 
Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Section 2.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, 
Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC). 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 

141



Z2021-052: SUP for Chickens at 1700 E. SH-66 Page | 3 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-05; SUP # S-268 

described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine 
not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each 
and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the 
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or 
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this 
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 7TH DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2022. 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  January 18, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: February 7, 2022 
 
 

142



Exhibit ‘A’ 
Zoning Exhibit 

Z2021-052: SUP for Chickens at 1700 E. SH-66 Page | 4 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-05; SUP # S-268 

Address: 1700 E. SH-66 
Legal Description: Tract 7 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102 

 

 

143



Exhibit ‘B’: 
Site Plan   

Z2021-052: SUP for Chickens at 1700 E. SH-66 Page | 5 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-05; SUP # S-268 

 

 

144



Exhibit ‘C’: 
Building Elevations   

Z2021-052: SUP for Chickens at 1700 E. SH-66 Page | 6 City of Rockwall, Texas 
Ordinance No. 22-05; SUP # S-268 

 
 

 
 

145



Memo 
To: Rockwall City Council 

From: Phil Wagner, REDC President 

Date: February 2, 2022 

Re: Rockwall Technology Park Phase III – Traffic Modification Plan 

For over the past two years, the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) has been working 
to develop and receive approval on infrastructure plans for an expansion to the Rockwall Technology 
Park (RTP).  This project, referred to as the Phase III infrastructure project, consists of the planned 
development of 215 acres of raw REDC-owned land east of Data Drive, west of Rochell Road, and north 
of State Highway-276.  A map of the RTP is attached, depicting the Phase III expansion.  The project 
includes new or improved roads, water, sewer, stormwater drainage, regional detention, and franchise 
utilities, among other improvements.  Upon completion, the project will result in “shovel-ready” light 
industrial sites ranging from 20-67 acres, to be marketed to end users with the goal of attracting 
companies that will diversify the tax base and create high quality jobs in Rockwall. 

After various reviews of plans by City staff, the Phase III project was put out to bid in October.  After 
receiving three competitive proposals, both REDC staff and REDC engineers at Freese & Nichols (FNI) 
made a recommendation to move forward with Mario Sinacola & Sons Excavating, Inc. (MSSEI), the low 
bidder.  In January, the REDC Board of Directors authorized staff to take the necessary steps to finalize 
a contract with MSSEI. 

To date, this contract has yet to be executed as there remains a component – that has cost and schedule 
impact – requiring a decision from the Rockwall City Council.   This decision relates to the reconstruction 
of Rochell Road.  Early in the design stages, City staff emphasized that it was important to find a way to 
keep a southern access point available for City of Fate residents living in the Carrington Farms 
neighborhood, in order to more efficiently access Rockwall Independent School District (RISD) locations 
to the south, as well as I-30 west at the Corporate Crossing / I-30 intersection.  Because of this direction, 
the REDC asked bidders to propose a solution as a bid alternative to the longer, costlier approach of 
keeping two lanes of Rochell opened at all times. 

As a response to the bid, MSSEI proposed an alternative alignment, reflected in blue in the attached 
map.  This route would result in the placement of a temporary asphalt road just south of Carrington Farms, 
which would extend between Rochell Road and Data Drive.  Upon reaching Data Drive, a Carrington 
Farms resident would then have the option to use Capital Boulevard, Discovery Boulevard, or Springer 
Lane to head west to access Corporate Crossing – the north/south road that will take motorists to I-30 to 
the north or SH-276 to the south.  MSSEI has indicated that this route is most efficient from a cost and 
schedule standpoint, as it allows the contractor to do all the necessary roadwork in the project (Rochell 
Road, Springer Lane, and the new extension of Discovery Boulevard) in one phase.  

146



2 

While REDC staff is supportive of the “blue route,” City staff suggested that there may be a preference 
to keep the intersection between Rochell and SH-276 open.  This potential path, shown in red on the 
attached map, would still use the temporary asphalt road south of Carrington Farms, but upon reaching 
Data Drive and heading south, motorists would have the option of heading east on Springer Lane, and 
then south on a temporary road adjacent to Rochell Road, extended until the temporary road met SH 
276. This “red route” would require the roads for the Phase III project be built in two steps; first Discovery
and Rochell, followed then by the reconstruction of Springer.  Due to the creation of a second temporary
roadway, the multiple steps for construction and the remobilization efforts, MSSEI has said that this “red
route” will cost an extra $300,000 and add 68 more working days to the contract.

The REDC has requested the approval of the “blue route” due to these cost and time savings, which will 
essentially allow for the complete closure of the Springer and Rochell portions in the RTP throughout the 
construction project.  REDC staff has been in contact with Terry Penn, the Director of Transportation at 
the RISD, and he has stated that the RISD would prefer the “blue route” as the best alternative for student 
busing.  Additionally, contact has been made with Scott Monaghan, City of Fate Public Works Director, 
to discuss outreach on the optimal way the REDC can inform Carrington Farms residents about the 
upcoming roadway and traffic modification plans. 

Upon a decision on this issue by the City Council, the REDC will work to finalize the contract with MSSEI. 
A pre-construction meeting has been scheduled at City Hall on February 17 to discuss the project, with 
an anticipated notice to proceed date to follow.  MSSEI will first clear and grub utility easements on 
Rochell and Springer to allow the franchise utilities to relocate their lines underground. Upon completion 
of the undergrounding, MSSEI will begin on the public utilities, dirt work, and road closures. A ceremonial 
groundbreaking event will likely occur in March or April.  The timeline for the overall project will range 
between 14 and 17 months depending upon the preferred traffic alignment. 

147



148



149



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT FOR THE BOYS AND
GIRLS CLUB OF AMERICA

Attachments
Memorandum
Airport Exhibit
380 Economic Development Agreement

Summary/Background Information
Discuss and consider directing the City Manager to enter into a 380 Economic Development
Agreement with Saro Partners, LLC to facilitate the swap of a 4.18-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract
9 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122) at the southwest corner of John King Boulevard
and FM-1141 for a 5.07-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No.
102) at the southeast corner of John King Boulevard and Airport Road, and take any action
necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to consider directing the City Manager to enter into the 380
Economic Development Agreement to facilitate a property swap.

150



 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL MEMORANDUM 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 
385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 
 

TO: Mayor and City Council 
 

CC: Mary Smith, Interim City Manager 
 Joey Boyd, Assistant City Manager 
 Frank Garza, City Attorney 
 

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning 
 

DATE: February 7, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: 380 Economic Development Agreement for the Boys and Girls Club of America 
 
 

On August 19, 2021, Maxwell Fisher of Masterplan submitted a development application on behalf of Saro Partners, LLC 
requesting to rezone a 5.07-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102) [known as the 
“Developers Property”] from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Light Industrial (LI) District.  Provided with the application was a 
concept plan showing a proposed ~17,000 SF facility for a Social Service Provider (i.e. Boys and Girls Club of America).  After 
reviewing the application and concept plan, staff was made aware that the parking areas and a portion of the proposed facility 
would be situated within the Runway Protection Zone (RPZ) and Clear Zone Easement [Instrument No. 19690000870386] of 
the Ralph Hall Municipal Airport (see attached RPZ layout with notes from the City’s Airport Consultant].   
 
In response to these findings, staff contacted the applicant to discuss possible options to protect the airport’s RPZ while still 
finding a way to facilitate the proposed development.  The option that appeared to be the most beneficial to all parties involved 
was an option that involved trading the 5.07-acre subject property for a 4.18-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 9 of the M. B. Jones 
Survey, Abstract No. 122) [known as the “City’s Property”] owned by the City of Rockwall and situated at the southwest corner 
of John King Boulevard and FM-1141.  This property was acquired by the City as part of the right-of-way acquisition for John 
King Boulevard and is currently vacant.  To facilitate the swap of land, staff and the City Attorney have prepared a 380 
Economic Development Agreement.  This agreement creates the following conditions concerning the proposed swap of land: 
 
(1) The City will initiate zoning procedures to rezone the City’s Property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Commercial (C) 

District.  This zoning change would be in accordance with the City’s Future Land Use Map contained in the 
OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, and would allow the requested land uses (i.e. a Daycare with Seven 
[7] or More Children/Office) needed to establish the Boys and Girls Club of America facility.  The City will also be 
responsible for platting the property as shown in the agreement into a 4.18-acre parcel of land to facilitate the swap. 

 
(2) Upon the zoning and platting being approved for the City’s Property, the City and Saro Partners, LLC will legally 

document the exchange of the two (2) properties.  This exchange of property will secure a portion of the Airport Runway 
Protection Zone (RPZ) of the Ralph Hall Municipal Airport under the City’s ownership. 

 
(3) Once Saro Partners, LLC is in possession and has acquired ownership of the City’s Property, the Boys and Girls Club of 

America will have 36-months from the date of the exchange of property to begin developing the City’s Property with the 
proposed facility.  Once the facility has commenced construction, Saro Partners, LLC will have 24-months to complete the 
project or the land could revert back to the City’s ownership. 

 
Based on this agreement the City would benefit by securing ownership of a portion of the southern RPZ for the Ralph Hall 
Municipal Airport.  This would ensure that nothing would be built on this land or create a conflict with federal guidelines.  For 
the Boys and Girls Club of America this would provide a property outside of the flight path of the airport that would be safer in 
the future.  Sean Valk of Saro Partners, LLC and his legal representation have reviewed the proposed 380 Economic 
Development Agreement, and have stated that they are ready to move forward.  Should the City Council approve the 
agreement and direct the City Manager to enter into the agreement, staff will get the agreement executed and move forward 
with the proposed rezoning of the City’s Property.  Should the City Council have any questions, staff and the City Attorney will 
be available at the February 7, 2022 City Council meeting. 

151



City of
Rockwall µ 0 100 200 300Feet

Date: 9/8/2021 City of Rockwall GIS
Z2021-034  - BOYS AND GIRLS CLUB
RUNWAY PROTECTION ZONE (RPZ)

¹º»¼

PROPOSED
SITE

RPZ (Displaced Threshold)

RUNW AY 35
DISPLACED
THRESHOLD

200'

RPZ (Non -Lan din g
Portion  of Run way)

Clear Zon e
Easem en t

S JOHN KING BLVD

JUSTIN RD

AIRPORT RD

Legend
Run way Protection  Zon e (RPZ)
Obstacle Free Zon e (OFZ)
Obstacle Free Area (OFA)
Clear Zon e Easem en t
Airport FAA Prim ary Surface
Parcels

The data represen ted on  this m ap was obtain ed with the best m ethods
available. Data is supplied from  various sources an d accuracy m ay be out
of the City of Rockwall’s con trol. The verification  of accuracy an d / or
con ten t lies en tirely with the en d user. The City of Rockwall does n ot
g uaran tee the accuracy of con tain ed in form ation . All In form ation  is provided
‘As Is’ with n o warran ty bein g  m ade, either expressed or im plied.

152

NEGabrielson
Architect

NEGabrielson
Callout
Portions of the proposed development would encroach on the Runway Object Free Area (ROFA) and Obstacle Free Zone (OFZ). These areas must be kept clear from development not required to support the operations of the runway, per FAA Advisory Circular 150/5300-13A.

NEGabrielson
Callout
Portions of the proposed development would encroach on the Runway Protection Zones (RPZ). FAA Interim Guidance Letter on Land Uses Within a Runway Protection Zone severely limits land uses within an RPZ.

NEGabrielson
Text Box
Other FAA Design Standards With Potential Impacts(not depicted in this exhibit)-Threshold Siting Surface (TSS): Trapezoidal surface extending out from the runway threshold at a 20:1 slope to a distance of 10,000 feet.-Approach Surface: Trapezoidal surface extending out from edge of Primary Surface at a 20:1 slope to a distance of 5,000 feet-Transitional Surface: Extends outward and upward from the sides of the Primary and Approach surfaces at a 7:1 slope.-Departure Surface: Trapezoidal surface extending out from the runway end at a 40:1 slope to a distance of 12,152 feetFor additional guidance on these items see FAA Engineering Brief No. 99A and 14 CFR Part 77.19 (federal law). 



CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | PAGE 1 

CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 

This CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (hereinafter referred to as the Agreement) is entered 
into by and between the CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, a Texas home-rule municipality (hereinafter referred to as the City) and 
SARO PARTNERS, LLC [a Texas limited liability company], (hereinafter referred to as the Developer). The City and Developer 
are collectively referred to in this Agreement as the Parties. 

WHEREAS, the City owns approximately 4.18-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 9 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 
122) -- depicted in Exhibit ‘A’ attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes (the City’s Property), which is part of a
larger portion of a 5.702-acre tract of land in the City of Rockwall located at the southwest corner of John King Boulevard and
FM-1141; and

WHEREAS, the Developer owns approximately 5.07-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract 
No. 102) -- depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes (the Developer’s Property), which is 
in the City of Rockwall at the southeast corner of Airport Road and John King Boulevard; and  

WHEREAS, the Developer’s Property is located in the Airport Runway Protection Zone of the Ralph Hall Municipal 
Airport, which limits the type of development that can be developed on the Developer’s Property, including the development of 
an assembly type land use (i.e. the Boys and Girls Club); and  

WHEREAS, the Developer has offered to exchange the Developer’s Property for the City’s Property in order to allow 
for the development of a Boys and Girls Club facility (the Project) based on the agreed to terms of an executed CHAPTER 380 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT between the City and the Developer; and  

WHEREAS, the City has determined that the development of the Project will be a benefit to the City and will promote 
economic development in the area; and  

WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 52-a, Programs and Loans or Grants of Public Money for Economic 
Development, of Article 3, Legislative Department, of the Texas Constitution and Section 380.001 of the Texas Local 
Government Code, the City has established a program to provide for the administration of programs to promote state or local 
economic development and to stimulate business and commercial activity in the City; and  

WHEREAS, to ensure that the benefits the City provides under this Agreement are utilized in a manner consistent with 
Section 52-a, Programs and Loans or Grants of Public Money for Economic Development, of Article 3, Legislative Department, 
of the Texas Constitution and Chapter 380, Miscellaneous Provisions Relating to Municipal Planning and Development, of the 
Texas Local Government Code, the Developer has agreed, to receive such benefits, to cooperate with the City in the design 
and construction of certain public improvements; and 

WHEREAS, the City acknowledges that the provisions of this Agreement substantially advance a legitimate interest of 
the City by providing public infrastructure, expanding the tax base of the City and promoting economic development. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the above recitals and the terms and conditions set forth below, and 
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the City and the 
Developer hereby agree as follows:  

(1) PROJECT.

(A) Jurisdiction.  The design, specifications and ordinances for the Project applicable in the City of Rockwall shall apply to
the Project, except where the City of Rockwall City Council concurs in writing the application of differing requirements
and specifications.

(B) Property for the Project. The City Property for the Project consists of a 4.18-acre acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 9 of the
M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122) -- depicted in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein for all purposes,

153



CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | PAGE 2 

which is part of a larger portion of a 5.702-acre tract of land in the City of Rockwall located at the southwest corner of 
John King Boulevard and FM-1141.  
 

(C) Conditions Precedent. This Agreement and the Developer’s obligation to execute the Project are subject to the following 
conditions: 

 
(I) The City will initiate zoning procedures to rezone the City’s Property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a 

Commercial (C) District.  This zoning change would be in accordance with the City’s Future Land Use Map 
contained in the OURHometown Vision 2040 Comprehensive Plan, and would allow the requested land uses (i.e. 
a Daycare with Seven [7] or More Children/Office) needed for the Project. 
 

(II) Upon the zoning being approved on the City’s Property, the City and Developer will legally document the 
exchange of the City’s Property for the Developer’s Property.  This exchange of property will secure a portion of 
the Airport Runway Protection Zone of the Ralph Hall Municipal Airport. 
 

(III) Once the Developer is in possession and has acquired ownership of the City’s Property, the Boys and Girls Club 
will have 36-months from the date of the exchange of property to begin developing the City’s Property with the 
Project.  Once the Project has commenced, Developer shall have 24-months to complete the Project. 

  
(D) Return of City Property. Should the Project fail to commence within 36-months from the date the exchange of the 

property or if the Parties do not extend the term to commence the Project, the Developer will reconvey the City’s 
Property back to the City of Rockwall at no cost to the City and the City will reconvey the Developer’s Property back to 
the City at no cost to the Developer. If the City returns the Property to Developer, Developer must comply with the 
regulations of the Airport Runway Protection Zone on any future development of the returned Developer’s Property. 
 

(E) Plans and Approvals. The Developer shall be responsible for pursuing and obtaining the necessary plats, site plan 
approvals and all other approvals and permits required from the City which are necessary for construction of the 
improvements for the development for the Project as well as all occupancy and use permits required to allow the 
development and occupancy of the Project.  
 

(F) Construction. If sufficient funds are raised to proceed with the Project, the Developer shall require its construction 
contractor(s) to construct the Project in a good and workmanlike manner and in substantial accordance with the 
approved plans and specifications and shall diligently pursue the construction of the Project until it is completed. The 
City shall have the right to inspect the Project to confirm compliance with the approved plans and specifications and 
applicable City codes.  

 
(2) DEFAULT. 
 

(A) Notice and Opportunity to Cure. Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no party shall be deemed to be in 
default hereunder until the passage of 30-days after receipt by such party of notice of default from the other party. 
Upon the passage of 30-days without cure of the default, such party shall be deemed to have defaulted for purposes 
of this Agreement, unless such party has commenced to cure such default and is prosecuting the same with reasonable 
diligence. Notwithstanding the foregoing, commencement of cure, with reasonable diligence, shall only prevent a party 
from being in default for 60-days after notice was received and a cure had not been achieved unless the non-defaulting 
party agrees to allow the defaulting party additional time to cure the default. 
 

(B) Remedies. In the event of a default not cured within the time period set forth herein, the non-defaulting party may, as 
its sole and exclusive remedy, terminate this Agreement or seek injunctive relief of other equitable relief, including, 
without limitation, specific performance, to enforce the terms of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if 
injunctive or other equitable relief is barred by governmental immunity, then the Developer may pursue all other legal 
and equitable remedies that are not barred by governmental immunity; however, in no event shall a non-defaulting 
party be entitled to an award of damages or any other monetary relief.  The foregoing remedies shall not be applicable 
to the facts set forth in Section (1)(D) above and the remedy set forth in such Section shall be the exclusive remedy of 
the City and the Developer for the facts set forth in that Section. 

154



CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | PAGE 3 

 
(C) Attorney’s Fees. In the event that the Developer and the City fail to resolve a dispute and become involved in litigation 

with regard to breach of or dispute arising out of this Agreement, the prevailing Party shall be entitled to be paid its 
reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs.  

 
(3) DISPUTE RESOLUTION. 
 

(A) If a dispute arises out of or relates to this Agreement or the breach thereof, the Parties shall first in good faith seek to 
resolve the dispute through negotiation between the upper management of each respective Party.  If such dispute 
cannot be settled through negotiation, the Parties agree to try in good faith to settle the dispute by mediation under the 
Commercial Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration Association, Dallas, Texas, before resorting to litigation, or 
some other dispute resolution procedure; provided that a Party may not invoke mediation unless it has provided the 
other Party with written notice of the dispute and has attempted in good faith to resolve such dispute through 
negotiation.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, any Party may seek immediate equitable relief, without attempting to settle 
a dispute through mediation, in any case where such Party is entitled to equitable relief by law, the terms of the 
Agreement, or otherwise.  All costs of negotiation, mediation, and arbitration collectively known as Alternate Dispute 
Resolution (ADR) shall be assessed equally between the City and Developer with each party bearing their own costs 
for attorneys’ fees, experts, and other costs of ADR and any ensuing litigation. 

 
(4) GENERAL PROVISIONS. 
 

(A) INDEMNIFICATION. THE DEVELOPER AGREES TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD THE CITY AND ITS 
ELECTED OFFICIALS, OFFICERS, AGENTS AND EMPLOYEES (COLLECTIVELY THE CITY) HARMLESS FROM 
AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL REASONABLE LIABILITIES, DAMAGES, CLAIMS, DEMANDS, LAWSUITS, 
JUDGMENTS, ATTORNEY FEES, COSTS, EXPENSES AND ANY CAUSE OF ACTION OF ANY KIND AND 
NATURE, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO, PERSONAL OR BODILY INJURY, DEATH AND PROPERTY 
DAMAGE, MADE UPON THE CITY DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY ARISING OUT OF, RESULTING FROM OR 
RELATED TO DEVELOPER’S ACTIVITIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING ANY ACTS OR OMISSIONS 
OF DEVELOPER’S AGENT, OFFICER, DIRECTOR, REPRESENTATIVE, EMPLOYEE, CONSULTANT OR 
CONTRACTOR OF THE DEVELOPER, AND THEIR RESPECTIVE OFFICERS, AGENTS EMPLOYEES, 
DIRECTORS AND REPRESENTATIVES WHILE IN THE EXERCISE OF PERFORMANCE OF THE RIGHTS OR 
DUTIES UNDER THIS AGREEMENT. THE INDEMNITY PROVIDED FOR IN THIS PARAGRAPH SHALL NOT APPLY 
TO ANY LIABILITY RESULTING FROM THE NEGLIGENCE OF THE CITY, ITS OFFICERS OR EMPLOYEES, IN 
INSTANCES WHERE SUCH NEGLIGENCE IS THE SOLE CAUSE OF PERSONAL INJURY, DEATH, OR 
PROPERTY DAMAGE. 
 

(B) THE PROVISIONS OF THE ABOVE SECTIONS ARE SOLELY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE PARTIES HERETO AND 
NOT INTENDED TO CREATE OR GRANT ANY RIGHTS, CONTRACTUAL OR OTHERWISE, TO ANY OTHER 
PERSON OR ENTITY.  IT BEING THE INTENTION OF THE PARTIES THAT THE DEVELOPER SHALL BE 
RESPONSIBLE FOR THE REPAYMENT OF ANY AMOUNTS PAID TO THE DEVELOPER HEREIN THAT INCLUDES 
CITY SALES TAX RECEIPTS THAT THE STATE OF TEXAS HAS DETERMINED WAS ERRONEOUSLY PAID, 
DISTRIBUTED OR ALLOCATED TO THE CITY. 
 

(C) Mutual Assistance.  The City and the Developer will do all things and execute all documents reasonably necessary or 
appropriate to carry out the terms and provisions of this Agreement and to aid and assist each other in carrying out 
such terms and provisions. 
 

(D) Inconsistencies. Where any inconsistency exists between this Agreement and other provisions of subsequent collateral 
contractual agreements that are made a part hereof by reference or otherwise, the provisions of this Agreement shall 
control.  
 

(E) Rule of Construction. The Parties hereto acknowledge that each party and its legal counsel have reviewed and revised 
this Agreement, and the Parties hereby agree that the normal rule of construction to the effect that any ambiguities are 
to be resolved against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement or any 
amendments hereto.  

155



CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | PAGE 4 

 
(F) Independent Contractors and Immunity. 

 
(I) It is expressly understood and agreed by all Parties hereto that in performing their services hereunder, the 

Developer at no time will be acting as an agent of the City and that all consultants or contractors engaged by the 
Developer respectively will be independent contractors of the Developer; and nothing contained in this Agreement 
is intended by the Parties to create a partnership or joint venture between the Parties and any implication to the 
contrary is hereby expressly disavowed The Parties hereto understand and agree that the City will not be liable 
for any claims that may be asserted by any third party occurring in connection with services performed by the 
Developer respectively under this Agreement, unless any such claims are due to the fault of the City. 

 
(II) By entering into this Agreement, the Parties do not waive, and shall not be deemed to have waived, any rights, 

immunities, or defenses either may have, including the defense of parties, and nothing contained herein shall 
ever be construed as a waiver of sovereign or official immunity by the City with such rights being expressly 
reserved to the fullest extent authorized by law and to the same extent which existed prior to the execution hereof. 

 
(III) No employee of the City, or any councilmember or agent of the City, shall be personally responsible for any 

liability arising under or growing out of this Agreement. 
 

(G) Invalidity. If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid, illegal or unenforceable by a court or other tribunal of 
competent jurisdiction, the validity, legality, and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be 
affected or impaired. The Parties shall use their best efforts to replace the respective provision or provisions of this 
Agreement with legal terms and conditions approximating the original intent of the Parties.  
 

(H) Written Notice. All notices from one party to the other must be in writing and are effective upon receipt when mailed to 
or hand delivered as follows:  

  
CITY: City of Rockwall  
 Attention: Mary Smith, City Manager  
 385 S Goliad Street 
 Rockwall, Texas 75087 
 
 

CITY CC: Davidson Troilo Ream & Garza 
 Attention: Frank Garza, City Attorney 
 601 NW Loop 410 Suite 100 
 San Antonio, Texas 78216 
 
 

DEVELOPER:  Saro Partners, LLC 
 Attention: Shawn Valk 
 1450 T. L. Townsend Drive, Suite 100 
 Rockwall, Texas 75087 
 
 

DEVELOPER CC: Holmes Firm PC 
 Attention: Ronald L. Holmes 
 14241 Dallas Parkway, Suite 800 
 Dallas, Texas 75254 

 
NOTE: Either party may change its business address by providing at least 30 calendar days written notice to the other 
party of such change.  

 
(I) Entire Agreement. It is understood that this Agreement and the Exhibits contain the entire agreement between the 

Parties and supersedes any and all prior agreements, arrangements, statements, promises, inducements, or 
understandings, whether oral or written, between the Parties relating to the subject matter. This Agreement cannot be 

156



CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | PAGE 5 

changed or terminated orally. No verbal agreement or conversation with any officer, agent or employee of the City, 
either before or after the execution of this Agreement, shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations hereunder. 
 

(J) Amendment. No amendment to this Agreement shall be effective and binding unless and until it is reduced to writing, 
approved by the City Council, and signed by duly authorized representatives of both Parties.  
 

(K) Choice of Law and Forum Selection. This Agreement shall be governed, enforced and construed in accordance with 
laws of the State of Texas. Any and all contested matters arising out of this Agreement in any way shall be brought in 
the courts of Rockwall County, Texas, United States of America.  
 

(L) Authority. The Developer hereby certifies, represents, and warrants that the execution of this Agreement is duly 
authorized and adopted in conformity with its governing documents. The City hereby certifies, represents, and warrants 
that the execution of this Agreement is duly authorized and adopted in conformity with the City charter and ordinances. 
The City’s execution of this Agreement is authorized by Chapter 380, Miscellaneous Provisions Relating to Municipal 
Planning and Development, of the Texas Local Government Code and constitutes a valid and binding obligation of the 
City. The City acknowledges that the Developer is acting in reliance upon the City’s performance of its obligations 
under this Agreement in making the decision to commit substantial resources and money to the construction of the 
Project. 
 

(M) Assignment. The Developer’s rights and obligations under this Agreement may be assigned by the Developer provided 
such assignment receives prior written approval of the City Council of the City of Rockwall, not to be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned, delayed, or denied. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Developer may, without the City’s 
approval, assign any credits accruing to the Developer under this Agreement. 
 

(N) Waiver. Failure of either party, at any time, to enforce a provision of this Agreement shall in no way constitute a waiver 
of that provision nor in any way affect the validity of this Agreement, any part hereof, or the right of the City or the 
Developer thereafter to enforce each and every provision hereof. No term of this Agreement shall be deemed waived 
unless the waiver is in writing and signed by the party claimed to have waived such term. Furthermore, any consent to 
or waiver of a breach will not constitute consent to, waiver of, or excuse of any other different or subsequent breach.  
 

(O) Force Majeure. If performance of this Agreement or any obligation under this Agreement is prevented, restricted, or 
interfered with by causes beyond either party's reasonable control (Force Majeure), then the obligations of the party 
invoking this provision will be suspended to the extent necessary by such event. Events constituting Force Majeure 
include without limitation: acts of God, fire, explosion, vandalism, storm, casualty, illness, injury, general unavailability 
of materials or similar occurrence, orders or acts of military or civil authority, national emergencies, insurrections, riots, 
wars, strikes, lock-outs, or work stoppages. The excused party shall use reasonable efforts under the circumstances 
to avoid or remove such causes of non-performance and shall proceed to perform with reasonable dispatch whenever 
such causes are removed or ceased. An act or omission shall be deemed within the reasonable control of a party if 
committed, omitted, or caused by such party, or its employees, officers, agents or affiliates.  
 

(P) Agreement Acknowledged. The Parties acknowledge that they have read, understand and intend to be bound by the 
terms and conditions of this Agreement.  
 

(Q) Multiple Originals. This Agreement may be executed in multiple originals.  
 

(R) Construction. This Agreement shall be construed without the aid of any canon or rule of law requiring interpretation 
against the party drafting or causing the drafting of this Agreement or the portions of this Agreement in question.  
 

(S) Incorporation of Recitals. Any recitals in this Agreement are represented by the Parties to be accurate and constitute 
a part of the Agreement.  
 

(T) Effective Date. The effective date of this Agreement is the last signature date below (the Effective Date). 
 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES TO FOLLOW] 

157



CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | PAGE 6 

EXECUTED as of the dates indicated below in multiple originals: 

CITY: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
a Texas home-rule municipality 

By: 
Name: Mary Smith 
Title: City Manager 

Date: 

ATTEST: 

By: 
Name: Kristy Teague 
Title: City Secretary 

Date: 

DEVELOPER: 

SARO PARTNERS, LLC, 
a Texas limited liability company 

By: 
Name: Shawn Valk, Manager 

Date: 

158



EXHIBIT ‘A’: 
MAP OF THE CITY’S PROPERTY 

CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | PAGE 7 

 

159



EXHIBIT ‘B’: 
MAP OF THE DEVELOPER’S PROPERTY 

CHAPTER 380 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT | PAGE 8 
160



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Kristy Teague, City Secretary/Asst. to the City Mgr.

DATE: February 7, 2022

SUBJECT: MAIN ST. ADVISORY BOARD MEMBERS

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
Three Main St. Advisory Board members - Stacy Fuqua, Geoffrey Lyons, and Gary Cannavo
- have TWO (2) year terms that expired last month. They are all eligible for reappointment and
have all indicated a desire to continue serving. In addition, Craig Stoddart has submitted his
resignation from the board, so his seat is now vacant and needs to be filled.

Action Needed
Council is asked to consider reappointing the three board members and filling the one vacancy.

161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

December 2021 Monthly  
Report  

 

175



 

COVID-19 Tests Number Administered
Rapid Covid-19 59

All Calls By NFIRS Call Type Incident Count
111 Building fire 1
131 Passenger vehicle fire (cars, pickups, SUV's) 1
142 Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 1
151 Outside rubbish, trash or waste fire 2
160 Special outside fire, other 1
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 188
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 20
323 Motor vehicle/pedestrian accident (MV Ped) 2
324 Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 17
342 Search for person in water 1
353 Removal of victim(s) from stalled elevator 1
400 Hazardous condition, other 1
412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 11
422 Chemical spill or leak 1
423 Refrigeration leak 1
441 Heat from short circuit (wiring), defective/worn 2
444 Power line down 2
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 2
471 Explosive, bomb removal (for bomb scare, use 721) 2
511 Lock-out 1
512 Ring or jewelry removal 1
520 Water problem, other 1
522 Water or steam leak 2
550 Public service assistance, other 2
550 Smoke Detector Battery Change/Install 7
553 Public service 3
555 Defective elevator, no occupants 1
561 Unauthorized burning 3
600 Good intent call, other 3
611 Dispatched & canceled en route 15
621 Wrong location 1
622 No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 13
631 Authorized controlled burning 1
650 Steam, other gas mistaken for smoke, other 1
651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 2
671 HazMat release investigation w/no HazMat 2
700 False alarm or false call, other 1
731 Sprinkler activation due to malfunction 1
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 6
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 13
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 4
740 Unintentional transmission of alarm, other 1
741 Sprinkler activation, no fire - unintentional 1
742 Extinguishing system activation 1
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 3
744 Detector activation, no fire - unintentional 5
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 10
746 Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 1
900 Special type of incident, other 1
Grand Total 364

176



December 2021 Dispatch to Arrival Analysis 

 
District

Total Number of 
Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of Calls 
in 5.5 mins or 

Less

Average FD 
Response Time 

Minutes

% in 5.5 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 91 32% 75 0:04:13 82% 90%
District 2 87 31% 68 0:04:32 78% 90%
District 3 29 10% 25 0:04:12 86% 90%
District 4 47 17% 38 0:05:25 81% 90%
District 5 7 2% 2 0:07:36 29% 90%
District 6 4 1% 0 0:07:20 0% 90%
District 7 12 4% 4 0:08:24 33% 90%
District 8 5 2% 0 0:07:27 0% 90%
District 9 1 0% 0 0:09:51 0% 90%

Department 283 100% 212 0:04:54 75% 90%

177



December 2021 Travel Time by District 

 

District
Total 

Number of 
Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of 
Calls in 4 or 

Less

Average Travel 
Time Minutes

% in 4 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 91 32% 72 0:03:10 79% 90%
District 2 87 31% 65 0:03:37 75% 90%
District 3 29 10% 23 0:03:19 79% 90%
District 4 47 17% 30 0:04:30 64% 90%
District 5 7 2% 1 0:06:32 14% 90%
District 6 4 1% 0 0:06:21 0% 90%
District 7 12 4% 2 0:07:22 17% 90%
District 8 5 2% 0 0:06:20 0% 90%
District 9 1 0% 0 0:09:14 0% 90%

Department 283 100% 193 0:03:55 68% 90%

178



Current Month Last Month Same Month Last Year Year To Date Last Year To Date
Total Property Loss: $0.00 $100,500.00 $12,000.00 $343,850.00 $2,396,957.50

Total Content Loss: $0.00 $150,000.00 $1,000.00 $246,600.00 $1,249,259.00

Total Property Pre-Incident Value: $0.00 $2,000,000.00 $225,430.00 $29,709,429.00 $90,370,443.00

Total Contents Pre-Incident Value $0.00 $500,000.00 $10,000.00 $11,657,699.60 $12,521,661.00

Total Losses: $.00 $250,500.00 $13,000.00 $590,450.00 $.00

Total Value: $.00 $2,500,000.00 $235,430.00 $41,367,128.60 $102,892,104.00

Page: 1 of 1

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Total Dollar Losses
December 2021

01/10/2022 13:36
rck\ihatcher

Rockwall Fire Department
ORI Number: TX504    

AllAreas:
AllIncident Type:AllLayer:

Station: All

179



Plan Reviews Completed

Total for the Month 83 Total for the Month  50

Permits Issued Fire Investigations  

Total for the Month 6 Active Investigations 0

Closed Investigations 0

Public Education Events Total for the Month 0

Total for the Month 0

Inspections Conducted  

Fire Marshal Division  

December 2021 Report 

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

160

Inspections

Plan Reviews

Permits

Investigations

Pub. Ed Events

180



47%

Monthly Report

Christmas Tree Lighting
1000 Attendees

201 Participants

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000

Program Revenue 

HMCC/Pavilions 

The Center 

Upcoming:

OCT:
NOV:
DEC:

 

December 2021

Breakfast with Santa

% of Resident Accounts 
as of December 2021

 Trout Fishing Derby
Spring RBSL Registration
SNAP Valentines Dance

Spring Break Rock Camp

REVENUE   NUMBERS

181



PARKS   PROJECT   UPDATE - DECEMBER 2021

New Epoxy Floors at Park
Restroom Facilities

Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex
Infield Reservations

OTHER   PROJECT   UPDATES:
Facility/ equipment winterization Water Leak Fixed at Leon Tuttle

Athletic Complex

Butterfly Art Fabrication New neon lighting at Leon
Tuttle Concession Stand

182



Rockwall Police Department
Monthly Activity Report

ACTIVITY CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH YTD YTD YTD %
DECEMBER NOVEMBER 2021 2020 CHANGE

Homicide / Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0.00%
Sexual Assault 1 1 18 7 157.14%

Robbery 0 0 4 17 -76.47%
Aggravated Assault 5 3 33 26 26.92%

Burglary 1 5 34 62 -45.16%
Larceny 40 57 586 736 -20.38%

Motor Vehicle Theft 2 6 51 78 -34.62%
TOTAL PART I 49 72 726 926 -21.60%
TOTAL PART II 109 77 1428 1494 -4.42%

TOTAL OFFENSES 158 149 2154 2420 -10.99%

FAMILY VIOLENCE 11 7 115 140 -17.86%
D.W.I. 10 14 194 153 26.80%

FELONY 21 18 259 340 -23.82%
MISDEMEANOR 39 36 551 623 -11.56%

WARRANT ARREST 11 5 98 102 -3.92%
JUVENILE 2 9 42 49 -14.29%

TOTAL ARRESTS 73 68 950 1114 -14.72%

CALLS FOR SERVICE 2166 1926 24760 17238 43.64%

INJURY 5 4 55 109 -49.54%
NON-INJURY 90 67 876 607 44.32%

FATALITY 0 0 1 3 -66.67%
TOTAL 95 71 932 719 29.62%

RESIDENT ALARMS 42 38 513 513 0.00%
BUSINESS ALARMS 155 138 1646 1571 4.77%

TOTAL FALSE ALARMS 197 176 2159 2084 3.60%
Estimated Lost Hours 130.02 116.16 1424.94 1375.44 3.60%

Estimated Cost $3,092.90 $2,763.20 $33,896.30 $32,718.80 3.60%

Number of Cases
Arrests

Arrest Warrants
Search Warrants

Cocaine
Dangerous Drugs

Marijuana
THC Oil

0

993g

ACCIDENTS

FALSE ALARMS

ROCKWALL NARCOTICS UNIT

5

3
Seized

140g

45oz

2

3000 pills

December-2021

PART 1 OFFENSES

ARRESTS

DISPATCH

ADDITIONAL STATISTICS

183



Rockwall Police Department
Dispatch and Response Times

Average Response Time

Priority 1 Number of Calls 177

Call to Dispatch 0:00:36

Call to Arrival 0:05:17

 % over 7 minutes 25%

Average Response Time

Priority 2 Number of Calls 775

Call to Dispatch 0:03:18

Call to Arrival 0:10:39

 % over 7 minutes 21%

Average Response Time

Priority 3 Number of Calls 63

Call to Dispatch 0:04:00

Call to Arrival 0:11:32

 % over 7 minutes 51%

Average dispatch response time goals are as follows:

Priority 1: 1 Minute

Priority 2: 1 Minute, 30 Seconds

Priority 3: 3 Minutes

December 2021

Police Department

184



General Fund TIF
Sales Tax Sales Tax

Jan-19 1,457,584      39,247 
Feb-19 2,080,043      22,109 
Mar-19 1,459,018      21,606 
Apr-19 1,293,524      20,077 

May-19 1,679,076      24,582 
Jun-19 1,420,483      31,523 
Jul-19 1,467,376      28,951 

Aug-19 1,810,970      29,022 
Sep-19 1,478,622      31,577 
Oct-19 1,565,868      24,818 
Nov-19 1,730,541      21,787 
Dec-19 1,547,746      23,781 
Jan-20 1,365,040      26,330 
Feb-20 2,273,520      27,472 
Mar-20 1,458,193      19,955 
Apr-20 1,292,639      15,829 

May-20 1,605,986      17,538 
Jun-20 1,345,598      5,881            
Jul-20 1,376,026      13,529 

Aug-20 1,979,539      17,706 
Sep-20 1,573,352      12,179 
Oct-20 1,558,570      14,888 
Nov-20 1,989,955      15,299 
Dec-20 1,634,280      14,994 
Jan-21 1,718,364      13,341 
Feb-21 2,244,778      14,935 
Mar-21 1,521,031      12,738 
Apr-21 1,952,165      10,954 

May-21 2,651,412      18,252 
Jun-21 2,080,645      27,773 
Jul-21 1,877,982      22,940 

Aug-21 1,930,521      24,860 
Sep-21 1,882,276      27,803 
Oct-21 1,855,251      19,744         
Nov-21 2,317,861      21,385         
Dec-21 1,968,345      23,464         

Notes:

75% of TIF sales tax (city share) is pledged to the TIF

75% of total sales tax collected is deposited to the General Fund each month

Comptroller tracks sales tax generated in the TIF and reports it monthly 

Sales Tax Collections - Rolling 36 Months

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

General Fund Sales Tax

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

 5,000

 15,000

 25,000

 35,000

 45,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

TIF Sales Tax

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

185



Total Gallons Daily Average Maximum Day
Oct-19 377,192,895            12,167,513            17,708,812 
Nov-19 237,328,307            7,910,944              9,218,867               
Dec-19 229,083,044            7,389,776              8,396,266               
Jan-20 215,978,847            6,967,060              8,691,306               
Feb-20 196,611,134            6,779,695              7,579,604               
Mar-20 197,281,791            6,363,929              8,569,168               
Apr-20 226,508,245            7,550,275              10,263,848 

May-20 317,650,425            10,246,788            13,193,218 
Jun-20 455,022,410            15,167,411            20,100,668 
Jul-20 511,667,880            16,505,415            20,073,454 

Aug-20 590,693,550            19,054,630            22,031,522 
Sep-20 363,112,688            12,103,756            14,870,959 
Oct-20 397,801,934            12,832,320            15,751,199 
Nov-20 295,091,494            9,836,383              11,452,738 
Dec-20 179,571,968            7,371,629              8,653,526               
Jan-21 157,800,928            6,718,182              7,179,987               
Feb-21 199,821,312            8,288,901              17,044,360 
Mar-21 230,130,315            7,423,560              9,739,996               
Apr-21 289,545,756            9,651,525              12,683,656 

May-21 247,421,005            7,981,324              10,400,411 
Jun-21 342,904,230            11,430,141            16,988,604 
Jul-21 446,687,809            14,409,284            17,918,524 

Aug-21 486,443,590            15,691,730            18,928,160 
Sep-21 377,898,464            17,173,544            19,016,086 
Oct-21 293,280,384            11,880,576            15,338,545 
Nov-21 280,398,508            9,346,618              12,584,820 
Dec-21 262,730,021            8,475,163              10,313,293 

Source: SCADA Monthly Reports generated at the Water Pump Stations

Monthly Water Consumption - Rolling 27 Months

 100,000,000
 200,000,000
 300,000,000
 400,000,000
 500,000,000
 600,000,000

O
ct

-1
9

De
c-

19

Fe
b-

20

Ap
r-

20

Ju
n-

20

Au
g-

20

O
ct

-2
0

De
c-

20

Fe
b-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
n-

21

Au
g-

21

O
ct

-2
1

De
c-

21

Total Gallons per Month

Total Gallons

 2,000,000
 7,000,000

 12,000,000
 17,000,000
 22,000,000
 27,000,000

O
ct

-1
9

De
c-

19

Fe
b-

20

Ap
r-

20

Ju
n-

20

Au
g-

20

O
ct

-2
0

De
c-

20

Fe
b-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
n-

21

Au
g-

21

O
ct

-2
1

De
c-

21

Average and Max Day

Daily Average Maximum Day

186


	02/07/22 CC Mtg
	 Black History Month
	 Proclamation

	 Consider approval of the minutes from the January 18, 2022 regular City Council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	 01.18.22 Minutes

	 Z2021-050 - Consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] for the purpose of amending the Conditional Land Use Standards for the Bed and Breakfast land use, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord_2nd Reading

	 Z2021-051 - Consider a request by Henok Fekadu for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.189-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 4, Block B, Chandlers Landing, Phase 19 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 8 (PD-8) for single-family land uses, addressed as 5108 Yacht Club Drive, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord_2nd Reading

	 Z2021-053 - Consider a request by Javier Silva of JMS Custom Homes for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for Residential Infill in an Established Subdivision on a 0.23-acre tract of land identified as a portion of Block 9 of the F&M Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single-Family 7 (SF-7) District, addressed as 803 Austin Street, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord_2nd Reading

	 Z2021-055 - Consider a request by Patrick Filson of Kirkman Engineering on behalf of Marlyn Roberts for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Restaurant with Less Than 2,000 SF with a Drive-Through or Drive-In for the purpose of constructing a restaurant/retail building on a 0.799-acre portion of a larger 2.02-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 2, Block 1, Meadowcreek Business Center, Phase 1 Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, generally located east of the intersection of S. Goliad Street [SH-205] and Ralph Hall Parkway, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord_2nd Reading

	 Z2021-056 - Consider a request by John Delin of Integrity Group, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Amendment to Planned Development District 85 (PD-85) [Ordinance No. 18-32] for a 47.694-acre tract of land identified as Lot 1, Block A, and Lot 1, Block B, Ladera Rockwall Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 85 (PD-85), situated within the 205 By-Pass Overlay (205 BY-OV) and the East SH-66 Overlay (E SH-66 OV) District, located at the northeast corner of the intersection of SH-66 and John King Boulevard, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord_2nd Reading

	 P2022-001 - Consider a request by Nick Hobbs of BGE Engineering on behalf of Randall Schwimmer of Baker Schwimmer Ventures, LLP and Phase 17 Investments for the approval of a Conveyance Plat for Lots 1, 2 & 3, Block A, Seefried Addition being a 23.489-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 25 & 25-1, of the R. B. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120 and Tract 1-2 of the J. H. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Light Industrial (LI) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located on the southside of the IH-30 Frontage Road east of the intersection of Corporate Crossing and IH-30, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Applications
	 Location Map
	 Conveyance Plat
	 Closure Report

	 P2022-002 - Consider a request by Bart Carroll of Carroll Consulting Group, Inc. on behalf of Cathy Strother for the approval of a Final Plat for Lot 1, Block A, Roadside Addition being a 2.7624-acre tract of land identified as Tract 25-1, of the J. Cadle Survey, Abstract No. 65 and Tract 17 of the J. D. McFarland Survey, Abstract No. 145, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District and Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, addressed as 2410 S. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Final Plat

	 P2022-004 - Consider a request by Gerald Monk of Monk Consulting Engineers on behalf of 5 Sharp Real Estate for the approval of a Replat for Lot 8, Block A, Sharp Addition being a 1.91-acre parcel of land identified as Lot 5, Block A, Sharp Addition, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 46 (PD-46) for Commercial (C) District land uses, addressed as 3301 Springer Road, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Development Application
	 Location Map
	 Replat

	 Consider approval of an ordinance amending the FY 2022 Budget to provide funding for Leadership Rockwall project in Lofland Park, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo
	 Ordinance amending budget

	 Consider approval of a resolution authorizing the City Manager to apply for and accept grant funding from the State Homeland Security Grant Program to secure tactical communication headsets for the Rockwall Police Department's SWAT Team, including authorizing the City Manager to execute all necessary and associated documents, and take any action necessary.
	 Grant Summary
	 Grant Application
	 Resolution

	 Consider awarding a bid to Longhorn Harley-Davidson for a 2022-23 Police Pursuit Motorcycle in the amount of $42,435.53 to be funded out of the Police Patrol Operating Budget, authorizing the City Manager to approve the Purchase Order, and take any action necessary.
	 Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a proposal from Tubbesing Solutions, LLC for information technology services in the amount of $35,698 to be funded by the IT Department Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 UPS memo

	 Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a professional engineering services contract with Birkhoff, Hendricks, and Carter, L.L.P. to perform the engineering design and construction plans for the W. Quail Run Sanitary Sewer Project in an amount not to exceed $57,310.00, and take any action necessary.
	 Contract

	 Consider approval of a resolution calling a General Election to be held on May 7, 2022 for the purpose of electing the following Rockwall City Council Member positions: Place 2, Place 4, and Place 6 (each for two-year terms), and take any action necessary
	 Resolution (Order Calling Election)

	 Z2021-052 - Discuss and consider a request by Mike Peoples for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) to allow Chickens on a 42.66-acre tract of land identified as Tract 7 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, situated within the SH-66 Overlay (SH-66 OV) District, addressed as 1700 E. SH-66, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ord_2nd Reading

	 Discuss and consider a request from the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) related to closing Rochell Road and providing an alternate route during upcoming construction, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo
	 Master Plan
	 Alt Detour Routes Map

	 Discuss and consider directing the City Manager to enter into a 380 Economic Development Agreement with Saro Partners, LLC to facilitate the swap of a 4.18-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 9 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122) at the southwest corner of John King Boulevard and FM-1141 for a 5.07-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102) at the southeast corner of John King Boulevard and Airport Road, and take any action necessary.
	 Memorandum
	 Airport Exhibit
	 380 Economic Development Agreement

	 Discuss and consider (re)appointments to the city's Main Street Advisory Board, and take any action necessary.
	 Building Inspection Monthly Report - December 2021
	 Building Inspections - December 2021

	 Fire Department Monthly Report - December 2021
	 Fire Department December 2021 Monthly Report

	 Parks & Rec Department Monthly Report - December 2021
	 Police Department Monthly Report - December 2021
	 Police Department Monthly Report - December 2021

	 Sales Tax Historical Comparison
	 Report

	 Water Consumption Historical Statistics
	 Report




